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for perfection through service from the heart
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e and Commitment to quality
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an-do attitude with integrity and are
o delivering quality that will earn
loyalty of our stakeholders.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBRS

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Wilfred WONG
FEFTHAAET ERBEE

The Group has demonstrated its underlying strength by achieving strong
performances across our core construction, property and related services
operations in Hong Kong and Macau. We have recorded solid growth in both our
revenues and operating profits in the year and supplemented this with a record
high order book going forward into the new financial year 2013.

| was appointed Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Hsin
Chong Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”, together with the subsidiaries,
the “Group” or “Hsin Chong”) in July 2012 at which time | envisioned further
strengthening the core construction business in Hong Kong and Macau, whilst at
the same time developing further our property development business in China. |
am happy to report that our growth target in the construction business has been
achieved for the year of 2012 and we have been able to uphold our core business
values of quality services and project delivery to our clients.

The Group recorded growth in our construction business in terms of the order
book, revenues, and gross profits earned. All of our business divisions have
produced satisfactory results and we are now a much larger, more vibrant and
more forward looking company than we have ever been. This is the result of
a combination of the underlying strength of the business; the capability and
commitment of our people and the effectiveness of our strategies against the
backdrop of a more vibrant market.

In November 2012, we sold one of our businesses, Interiors and Special Projects
("ISP") business to our listed subsidiary, Synergis Holdings Limited ("Synergis”).
This strategic sale was undertaken to enable Synergis to significantly augment its
repair and maintenance business. The result is significant increases in Synergis’
future recurrent revenue and profits which will make the Company a more
attractive proposition for investors.

Furthermore, after our successful acquisition of the prime property site in Tieling,
Liaoning at the end of 2011, we have actively moved ahead with design,
approvals and onsite construction of the project this year. Leveraging our core
construction expertise, we believe that adding a continual property development
business will overtime bring substantial enhancement to the Company’s financial
performance. The Company has over the years undertaken some opportunistic
property development projects, but we now intend to grow this into a core
strategic business.

We envisage that this strategic move into property development in China
will broaden the Company's income base; further facilitate the sustainable
development of the Company; and enable the Group to become an integrated
property business of significance in the coming years.

* for identification purposes only £ {4 5
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Results

Given our growth and diversification strategy and our investment in people
and resources, we were able to achieve a number of records in the year, and in
particular (a) a record high HK$11.9 billion of new orders received for the year,
excluding the nominated subcontractors work of Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2
project; (b) the total outstanding value of contracts on hand at year end set a new
record and exceeded HK$15.3 billion; and (c) record highs for our consolidated
revenues of HK$8.8 billion and for earnings attributable to shareholders of
HK$180 million.

Businesses

Our building division has consistently delivered good results, with a continuous
track record of steady growth. In Hong Kong, we received HK$7.5 billion in
new orders in 2012, which included two Housing Authority developments at
Anderson Road and Hung Shui Kiu; contract works on Third Street in Sai Ying
Pun with Urban Renewal Authority; a research and academic building for Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology; a private residential development on
Ede Road for Chinachem Group; and a Global Network Center at Tseung Kwan O
Industrial Estate for China Mobile International. This latter project, when viewed
together with our existing ongoing HSBC Data Centre contract, and our previous
other similar projects, reaffirms our specialist knowledge and experience in data
centre construction. Our existing building projects on university campuses; private
residential; and Housing Authority projects which we expect to see completion
within the next two years, demonstrates and maintains our reputation and market
position as a quality builder in Hong Kong. Our ISP business was sold to Synergis
in the last month of the year, but continued to prosper during the year with
contract awards and continuation of many high-end alteration and additional
works in the year such as the Lee Gardens, Ocean Gallery and Ocean Centre at
Harbour City, Aeon megastores, as well as the completion of Forever 21 flagship
store in Causeway Bay and the relocation and expansion of Hong Kong Maritime
Museum. The sale was completed in November 2012, and in future years this
business will be integrated into the business and full year results of our listed
subsidiary, Synergis.
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Businesses (continued)

In Macau, we not only continue to provide construction management services to
the Macau Venetian Parcel 5 and 6 projects, we have also been awarded the new
construction management contract for Parcel 3. Moreover, we have also entered
into building construction and related civil engineering work, with the award
of Galaxy Resort and Casino Phase 2 and also a new building contract for St.
Joseph University. In China, we are completing our existing building with Huawei
Technologies in Hangzhou, but in future, given the sheer size and scope of our
first property development project in Tieling, we intend to focus the efforts of our
China team to support our property development division.

Turning to our civil engineering business, we have almost tripled our contract
awards with a record high new order intake of HK$3.2 billion in the year and with
an outstanding workload at year end of HK$3.9 billion. Two significant awards
in 2012 from MTR were the Railway Stations and Tunnels in Sung Wong Toi and
To Kwa Wan in joint venture with Samsung, and the South Island Line Wong
Chuk Hang Depot Superstructure. We continue to expand into the waterworks
and drainage sector with new and existing contracts, and have further increased
our contracts in site formation and foundation work for private residential
developments in both Hong Kong and Macau. In all, with our existing railway
stations; tunneling; waterworks; sewerage; site formation and foundation sector
portfolios, our strength and capability in civil engineering is again well established
and we are well positioned for stable long term growth in this sector, as we
continue to capture additional work from the infrastructure investment by the
Hong Kong SAR Government.

The electrical and mechanical installation business continues to be active in
building services projects; in sewage/water treatment works; in more specialist
mechanical and electrical works for railway tunnel ventilation; in data center and
in hospital works. We have successfully developed into a full range electrical and
mechanical engineering contractor well able to take on large and more complex
projects.

The new strategic initiative to grow our property development business interests is
being executed at speed. We have largely completed the design and Government
submissions work for the first phase of the residential and commercial project in
Tieling. Actual construction work began in August 2012 with delivery of certain
properties expected before the end of 2013. Under this multi-phase project,
phase 1 comprises of a residential development with 22 low-rise and 16-high-rise
buildings amounting to 390,000 sqg. metres, as well as a commercial development
with a GFA of 152,000 sg. metres. The Sales Centre of Phase 1 will open in June
2013, with sales and marketing programmes scheduled in August 2012.

The above mentioned businesses of the Group, together with the property
management services business and the ISP business in the listed subsidiary
Synergis, form a strong and growing construction, property and related services
business well established to achieve our ambitious long term development plan.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012

E £ 16 )
AEBERMMERE RRPIEEHT AFS R Fei g
BRERHEZEEERS TOESENMRIAR 2
EEEEHN RMERRBTRERERLATIZES
BREEFRTRELERN MRESE _HNaL RES
BABNFETREAN -HETETE - B ATRFIEEN
MERRMNET TRD S AR A Z BRI
SEAEHEEEMERRER ZRARE  AESZEN
RIS  BARREMTERTRERER NEIEAEE
H M ZE B R ARPT -

EEARTITRESIE AFENTRANSALTEM
WG FEUSE YR EEER L ERRE3,200,000,000
T BEFR  FHEATHA YBE AB3,900,000,000
T RPN - —FESBEMNEZAL BEDH
ARIR T 2 Uk B A [Tk A 8 B8 0 N B8 T 72 (E2Samsung
A8 AREEEGEMNEREEERNERBIRE -
EERKS IR RKETRER EMGAEE S HE
W FEERRE  ROESRMELAFERRIEE NS
FERMETEFANALY  ME—FSEM-BEME -
AEER B RS IEUE BB KT 5 B FEER
WEZTREMNEKES B AERRMAELAIESE
RIANSERIBE T - WA BB RIGMEZESERR TR
R RfIBEEFTURABRBEIITHRBFERIEER
BryFme Tz

WERETREEBRMMREER  BEIEDHRETFRS
B 5K KIS ERIE T2 - 75 78 38 B B i L O IR A
BEIR BEPOAREREIR - AEBCKNERS K
BHMEETIZAMNR ARENEREALEERNT
IEAE -

BERNEBHNEEITE  IEAR PN DERREEGE
& EEMAINEHET - B EE—BEEREEEE
HEET R LSRN TEE KRBGENK B R2ETER
R-E——FNAEM FOMEBER_T—=FF
KA e ZED PR EREEBEMNE 2 2Em22E
BERIRZEHNEFTEROTEERIER MEE
390,000 5 K » BINfE %2R TE B iR ME152,000F 5
Ko E—HIMER LR -_E—=FXABN HEMT
BHEEETHN - E——FNAERM-

A bl T AREE NS BBFIZE - BRI LB A R
SEENMEREERG RN R ENEM RIFHREE X5
PSR iRIE - MR AR AR TS Y — B OS2 KA BT R A9
XS EE - BRARERENRE BRRMAEANES
et E REER Ao



Dividends

Having regard to the results reported, the reserves of the Company and the
working capital requirements of the Group, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012. Conditional upon approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company, the proposed final dividend will be paid on Thursday, 4 July 2013
to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the registers of the
Company on Tuesday, 25 June 2013 (Hong Kong time).

Together with the interim cash dividend of HK2.5 cents (2011: HK3.5 cents per
share) already paid, total dividends for the year will amount to HK5.0 cents per
share (2011: HK6.0 cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 28% (2011:
27%) on the earnings for the financial year.

Outlook

The Company's outlook is positive based on record high levels of outstanding
workload; the favourable continuing market conditions in Hong Kong for
construction and infrastructure projects; the expanding leisure and gaming
market in Macau providing more contracts and opportunities; and the prospects
in 2013 of starting to see some of our first phase property projects coming to
fruition. However, given the conditions for inflationary trends in salaries and
wages exacerbated by a shortage of professionals and workers; increased costs
of materials and commodities; and the increased industry competition, we have
adopted a conservative approach when bidding and taking on new work. We
are pursuing work and projects that ought deliver better margins and profit
contribution through highly disciplined and structured approach to tendering, cost
control systems and delivery, strategic purchasing and close working relationships
with our suppliers and subcontractors. We will continue to closely monitor
government policies and macro-economic trends in order to position and prepare
the Group accordingly, and our diversified business base will enable us more
flexibility in offsetting potential impacts from policy changes.

Our risk-adjusted bidding strategy aims to deliver appropriate returns to
shareholders. Subsequent to our year end, and further reaffirming on our
successful quality delivery record, we have already been awarded a large contract
for the Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital and are well positioned for winning further
projects across our divisions.

Our recent strategic re-entry into the property development market will open up
significant opportunities for further growth in the future.

With our broadened business base, quality track record and strong client base,
supported by our competent professional and dedicated teams, | am confident
that the Group will advance strongly.
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Appreciation

Our results are a reflection of the quality of our people across the Group and
business lines, from our senior management to our site staff. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to thank all of my Hsin Chong colleagues for their continued
contribution and commitment to our clients, our consumers and our values.

| also thank our shareholders, business partners, clients and suppliers for their
great and continued support and confidence in us. We will do our best to deliver

efficient and quality services.

I look forward to an equally successful 2013!

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Review of Business and Prospects

Financial Overview

The year of 2012 saw Hsin Chong reach new record highs for its core businesses
and show improved financial results in its construction and property management
businesses.

EEEmL RO

EBOBERAR

MELIE

T _FEHENROEBREFRNERERER
VMEREEER B RETBNE -

Performance highlights (in HK$ million) 2012 2011 2010 2009
Turnover* Bxm 8,810 6,381 4,258 3,482
Gross profit* ER] 542 540 445 369
Profit before tax FRIRBIRF 201 212 180 135
Profit attributable to shareholders B RFE{L BT 180 172 136 109
Gross margin EFERAHE 6.2% 8.5% 10.5% 10.6%
Net margin BERTE 2.0% 3.0% 3.7% 3.4%
(in HK cents) ()

Basic earnings per share BEREXERTR 19.0 248 203 16.3
Interim dividend R R 2.5 35 3.0 25
Final dividend KE®E 25 25 3.0 5.5
# Turnover and Gross Profit include the Group's equity share of the jointly controlled entities ~ * EXEBRENSHEAEASENLRIZEHER (A2 WA

(joint ventures)

e Turnover increased by 38%, mainly due to the construction business’ strong
order book.

o Gross profit of underlying businesses in fact demonstrated sustainable
growth. Without the one-time items recorded during 2011, the gross
profit improved by 11% in construction and 18% in property and facility
management services.

o Profit before tax of the underlying businesses also demonstrated sustainable
year-to-year growth of 30% if all one-time items were excluded.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Business Overview

“Hsin Chong is being transformed into a fully integrated property group
with the commencement of its first very large property development
project in the Chinese Mainland.”

Alongside management'’s continual efforts to improve traditional core businesses,
Hsin Chong has commenced its first mega project in the Chinese Mainland,
following the acquisition of land parcels valued at HK$2.48 billion in the last
quarter of 2011. With this significant development, the Group now has three
business divisions:

Hsin Chong Property Development — La Viva (£1%@ =), situated in
Tieling New Town, Liaoning Province on 1.8 million square metres site
area, is a contemporary new town development of mixed residential and
commercial property development. The project will be executed in 5 phases
over several years which will create an approximate gross floor area of 2
million square metres of residential units and 1 million square metres of
commercial properties. Construction of Phase 1 started in August 2012 and
public sales are expected to begin during summer of 2013, with delivery
to be phased from Q4 2013 until the end of 2014, by which time further
phases will commence construction.

Hsin Chong Construction — New milestones were achieved in the year with
approximately HK$11.9 billion new contracts being awarded and with
new records in both revenues and operating profits. The results were due
to increasing order book and satisfactory contract completions across all
business units. Particularly strong and solid growth was achieved in civil
engineering, Macau building and interiors fit-out, whereas the Hong Kong
building business, being the largest business unit, further strengthened its
market position and built up its order books so it too will show growth
during the coming periods.

Synergis — Property Management business has maintained its sizeable
market position in Hong Kong and has expanded in other related businesses
to provide new sources of growth, which included the acquisition of the
Interiors and Special Projects business from Hsin Chong. During 2012,
Synergis was also able to achieve new record revenues and improved
operating profits.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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EEEBRARDM
Review of Business and Prospects (continued) XBOBARER (2
Business Overview (continued) EHLOE (Z)
Change
)
(in HK$ million) 2011 Amount %
(B¥BEET) —E——fF k-
Turnover* gxw
Construction EiE 7,973 5,634 +2,339 +42%
Property & Facility Management Y% LR E IR 804 673 +131 +19%
Property Development & Investment VEERRIEE 33 74 -41 -55%
8,810 6,381 +2,429 +38%
Gross Profit EF
Construction i 392 354 +38 +11%
Property & Facility Management Y R b E IR 123 104 +19 +18%
Property Development & Investment MEERRIZE 27 82 -55 67%
542 540 +2 0%
Operating Profit® ZERfe
Construction B 244 206 +38 +18%
Property & Facility Management Y AR 22 21 +1 +5%
Property Development & Investment MEZERRLIRE (5) 66 71 -108%
Corporate o (55) (63) +8 +13%
206 230 -24 -10%
Net Profit to Shareholders B SR FE (G sEF 180 172 +8 +4%
# Turnover and Gross Profit include the Group's equity share of the jointly controlled entities EEBRENEANEENLRZENERE (A8 WAThE
(joint ventures) =
° Profit before net finance costs, amortisation of intangible assets, taxation and non-controlling e CETF AR ERA SR B EER B8 R IEmaE

interests.
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EEEBRARDMN
Review of Business and Prospects (continued) EBOBERMR (2
Construction Business Review BEXEHLOE

“New Orders’ intake during 2012 reached a new record high in Hsin [Z&—_F#HERENHIETESHIEE R TLHE ]
Chong'’s history.”

New Orders — Contractors Works

FETIEeH-EREeIRE
(HK$ billion & ¥ +187T)

11.9
12
+72%
CAGR B4 HHRR
o,
48% 81
8 6.9
| : l
0 I — I
2009 2010 2011 2012
2009 2010 2011 2012
mmmm  Building Construction EFEs 2.5 4.7 46 7.5
mmm  Civil Engineering TARTEE 0.3 2.1 1.1 3.2
Interiors & Special Projects Z= 5% & & 5 7k 18 B 0.3 0.6 0.9 0.7
mmm [lectrical & Mechanical  #E T2 0.5 0.7 0.3 0.5
Total #at 3.6 8.1 6.9 11.9
Hsin Chong's construction business portfolio continued to improve during 2012 R -Z— —4F HEMNREEKES THRARE BRI &
in size, diversity and quality. A new record intake of HK$11.9 billion new contracts B & J5 T ¥9#5 B ki - BEIFIRBOFIE TZA L)
were awarded from a wide range of many regular and prestigious clients, < %82 B % ¥511,900,000,0007T A XK B TR EHREH R
including: S—REREBERZF EhaE:

(i)  Public building works: Housing Authority projects at Anderson Road and () AHBERTIRE:URTEREMIKENEEREE
Hung Shui Kiu; sewerage contracts from Drainage Services Department; and ZEQIRE  RBEENTKEL: LTREZFNA
Urban Renewal Authority building at Third Street in Sai Ying Pun. ERE-HNEFERIRE-

(i) University buildings: HKUST Research and Academic Building and Macau St. (i) AZREZHRITIE: BB ASHRFEHEKX

Joseph University. BENRBPIEREE RS
L New orders and outstanding workload exclude the nominated subcontractors work of ! S TS RFERTHE N T EIESTNE RN RIREES
construction of Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2. ZHIRIRED HIE IR

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

(i) New MTR projects: tunnel and stations of Sung Wong Toi & To Kwa Wan
for Shatin Central Link (joint venture with Samsung C&T Corporation) and
building of Wong Chuk Hang depot for South Island Line.

(iv)  Macau landmark buildings: Galaxy Resort and Casino Phase Il and Venetian
Sands Integrated Resorts.

(v)  Private clients: HK Science Park Phases 3a & 3b MVAC and electrical
installation; China Mobile Global Network Centre building at Tseung Kwan
O; and Chinachem Group residential building at Ede Road, etc.

As a result of these new contract awards, the outstanding workload has reached a
new record high in Hsin Chong's history, securing its business for the coming year
and beyond.
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EERBBILROW

EBOBRAR (8
BERBLOH (7

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

HBEIER PR T E N TR E & 385 Uk
(ESamsung C&T Corporation& & ) M EE R B SR
SIS B -

P IR R T2 - SR IREE BRI MIREEIS F
R A HEEERN -

AP BEMEEEaR3pBRAEARENE
£ R EBEBN G E R IRIRA H%%EP/UELIE
EMEERNERENETRETIRES -

HEFIEE NS ENTFTEARTRAKRERF T Lk
RTRERTRPENEHE -

Outstanding Workload - Contractors Works
FRARRSVE-BRKETE

(HK$ billion ¥ —+1{87T)

As at 31 December R+=A=+—H

20
15
CAGR E&&FHRR
10
| -
O I
2009 2010 2011 2012
2009 2010 2011 2012
mmmm  Building Construction BT 4.3 6.6 8.1 10.1
mmm  Civil Engineering TARTRE 0.5 2.0 2.2 3.9
Interiors & Special Projects Z= P & 45 7k 18 B 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.6
mmmm  Flectrical & Mechanical HWE TR 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.7
Total #at 5.6 10.0 11.4 15.3

2012 8 EZEEBEERAA



12

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEERLR DN

Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

The weighted-average delivery time of the outstanding orders is expected to be
some 2.2 years?. As of 31 December 2012, Hsin Chong’s outstanding order book
exceeded HK$15 billion (HK$25 billion if nominated subcontractors’ works are
also included).

The outstanding order book is very well diversified with over 30 building and civil
engineering projects together with a greater number of lesser-sized mechanical
and electrical and interiors fit-out projects. This strong order book is a direct result
of the Group's cohesive strategies in a strong albeit competitive market to (i)
maintain a significant market share via participation in major market segments
such as public housing; (i) target particular growth areas in accordance with the
Hong Kong Government's initiatives such as new MTR lines, new hospitals and
university expansions; (iii) developing professional and technical talents and skills
of its people resources to pursue excellence in higher-value contracts such as data
centres and hospitals; and (iv) continue its convincing track record achieved over
many years for execution and delivery of all prior projects.

“Construction Division’s operating results continues to improve with the
successful execution of a larger and more diversified order books.”

EXOBERER(®

BERFELE (&)

TEERF AR A A LR R R I & 402252 - A =
T——F+-A=+—HB FENTFBAEXRANERS
75%15,000,000,0007T : fWET AFEE D HIPg T2 - Al BB
25,000,000,0007T ©

FERTRLREARONDMEE T BFRLATIZRE
BiB30 ERAENUKEREANRERR - AEH
BEAHRBREANTIEGNE FARRERMAEIEER
FAEHNTS  RIRER AR EB2EQHK
FEEIEMSDBEBEANTHIEE  (MREBEFEK
TR EEEES TR REE - IR Rk &
REWERE: (i)ERAEEAANERNEERZM HF
EREEFHERZETRE (MBEHLOLER)hHES S
MRS RVEBRTRRXNABCERERR  REZF
RANER A -

[BEIRFIZREXERETILHEESH  BELFIA
BEEERENS ]

(in HK$ million) 2011 Change
(B¥BE&ET) —T—_—5 —T——F )]
Turnover (including Joint Ventures) BEEN(BESELE) 7,973 5,634 142%
Gross profit (including Joint Ventures) EF(BEEELE) 392 354 1%
Gross profit margin EFEENE 4.9% 6.3% 1 1%
General & admin expenses —RRITHRMAX 160 151 1 6%
Operating profit BEEN 244 206 118%

Turnover grew 42% from the prior years, which is consistent with the annual
growth rate of 40% over the past three years.

2 Average life of the outstanding order book reflects the budgeted timing of revenue booking
based on weighted average of all remaining outstanding contract values in the outstanding
order book.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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CEERLRDIT
Review of Business and Prospects (continued) EBOBARMR (2
Construction Business Review (continued) BEEBLOE (&)
Turnover
BEXT
(HK$ billion ¥ +1{87T)
10
8.0
CAGR B FHRE
6 5 40% :
4 B
2.9 mmmm Building Construction 251
, mmmm Civil Engineering TR T2
Interiors & Special Projects
EREEMRIEHRIEE
0 | _ | B [lectrical & Mechanical #E T2

2009 2010 2011 2012

Our construction business mix represents a balanced and comprehensive presence ~ ANEBMREZBAAERE D BEHEEEMNL
in all segments.

Turnover by Business Unit

REHUMERT

= Building Construction 52
mmmm Civil Engineering /R TH2

Interiors & Special Projects

EREMKAFHRIER
BN lectrical & Mechanical #E T2

2012

2012 5k MELEEEFRAF
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

Gross profit grew 11%, however, at a slower pace than turnover, because gross
margin has been diluted to 4.9% mainly due to the change of business mix as the
higher-margin CMS? has been diluted by the increased volume of conventional
general contractor contracts in both building and civil engineering businesses.
This change of our business mix which has been inevitable with the successful
completion of the large volume of CMS work for Macau Venetian has largely
been completed. Given the sizeable order book now obtained, management’s
focus is to improve operating margins by targeting higher value-added projects
and improved execution in contract cost controls and technical innovations.

EBOBRMR (8

BEXBLOR (&)

EMBRN% FEREERBEE AMENSENEHE
FA49% TEMREBEANE ERMNBERENZEE
BIRBE —REEN T AR TR BERBEQEEIEM
P - RFIBEMANBEAREEERB TIED K
BUBHM TR EBEARE B R RERETRE
AR ERESUNEREENTIEEEARR WIEHA
RS I BT BT - ABRZ A4S &R -

Gross Profit/Gross Margin

EF EHE
(HK$ million &% B &7T) / (%)

CAGR HEFHERE

500 17%

400

300

200

100

The Group's traditional Hong Kong Building Division remains the largest business
unit, and its key objectives have always been quality, safety, reliability, integrity and
on-time execution. During 2012, this Division completed a number of significant
projects, including Student Hostels of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Campus development of Hong Kong Baptist University. Hsin Chong Building
Division maintains long-term strategic relationships with major clients such as the
Housing Authority, the Venetian Group, and other reputable property developers,
whilst at the same time it has developed into other growing niche areas such
as data centres and hospitals. Management's key aims now are to improve its
financial performance via project targeting, project cost control and technical
improvements.

3 CMS is the Construction Management Service provided for Macau Venetian under which
a service fee is booked based on project management manpower provided instead of the
entire construction cost, and hence the margin percentage is much higher than normal
general contractor service.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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6
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4
mmmm Building Construction 512
5 mmmm Civil Engineering =KL

Interiors & Special Projects

EREMRAFHRIER
0 B [lectrical & Mechanical #E T2

AEBENEGABBTRENPIAZAREBEL K
BEER-ARIREE L2 A HERLIERH
T-R-F——F HHFIEZKTZEEERE BFE
BRXARBELEFEEREBIGAEREERIEAR - #15
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Construction Business Review (continued)

In Macau, Hsin Chong's Building Division continued its strong presence with the
delivery of Parcels 5 and 6 of Cotai Strip for Venetian. It is now providing wider
range of building services to other clients with the award of the contracts in the
year for Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2 and St. Joseph University. Management
expects to continue its growth in Macau, having established its reputation with
our proven track record to meet all opportunities from Macau Government's
increased infrastructure projects and the booming leisure industry.

From 2009, the Group has established two additional core business lines which
this year showing significant achievements being Civil Engineering and ISP.

The Civil Engineering division is now managing five mega-size MTR projects, i.e.
Express Rail Link’s West Kowloon Terminus Station South?; Express Rail Link's
Huanggang to Mai Po Tunnels®; Shatin Central Link’s Tunnel and Stations of Sung
Wong Toi & To Kwa Wan®; South Island Line's Wong Chuk Hang Repot; and
foundation works at MTR Nam Cheong Station. In 2012, being its third year since
re-entering this sector, the Civil Engineering Division contributed gross profits of
HK$87 million on turnover of HK$1.6 billion. Looking forward, it will continue
to focus on the many opportunities offered by the Hong Kong Government’s 10
Mega Infrastructure Projects.

The Interiors & Special Projects Division offers quality alterations and additions,
renovations and fit-out services, as well as special building projects, to a diversified
list of commercial and institutional clients. It has established a track record in
renovating retail shops, refurbishment of entire buildings, and also special building
projects such as food factories. In addition, there are many other opportunities
for example in office renovations; entering new territories such as tier-one
Chinese Mainland cities; and Macau projects. During the year, a record HK$750
million of new contract work was secured. After the completion of the Group's
reorganisation in December 2012, the Division is now an integral part of the
Group's subsidiary Synergis, which has itself been running a much smaller scale of
repair and maintenance business.

“While growing at 40% p.a. over the past few years, management is
vigilant about the corresponding increase in overhead expenses.”

Over the past three years, Hsin Chong Construction has increased its talent
pool of professional and experienced staff, to enable it to produce, sustain
and execute a much enlarged order book. Total headcount is currently around
1,900 employees’ as compared with 1,100 at the beginning of 2010. Under the
current plan for 2013, management does not see the requirement to further
increase headcount and aims to further improve processes and productivity. As
the turnover increases, the overhead to turnover ratio has improved to 2.0%,
compared to 2.5% for 2009.

4 In a joint venture with Laing O'Rourke Construction Hong Kong Limited and Paul Y.
Construction Company Limited

° In a joint venture with China Railway Construction Corporation Limited and China Railway
15 Bureau Group Corporation

6 In a joint venture with Samsung C&T Corporation

7 This figure only includes the full-time employees, exclude subcontractors’ staff who work on

our projects or at our construction sites.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)
Construction Business Review (continued)

Construction Business Overhead

BEXHEERR

—RRITHFA X
(B¥BEET)

General and administrative expenses
(in HK$ million)

—REITBAX, SR

G&A expenses/turnover

RGO R AR (8)
BiERHEOM (7)
For the year
£E
2011 2010 2009
—T——F —E-FF —ZEENF
160 151 118 72
2.0% 2.7% 3.3% 2.5%

“Hong Kong construction sector is currently very buoyant. Hsin Chong is
well positioned to participate in this growing market.”

Hong Kong Government's spending on infrastructure and major construction
works is expected to continue in the forthcoming years. In addition, spending in
the private sector has historically matched Government spending. Therefore, we
are likely to see a continuous flow of new projects, in which Hsin Chong aims to
maintain its competitive and market position as one of the top players.

Hsin Chong will continue to strengthen its position in infrastructure, continuing
recent successes in building up the capacity and capabilities of our Civil
Engineering Division. At the same time, we will work to maintain our market
share of the building works, secure major segments offering recurrent works, and
develop new high value-added niche segments.

In addition, we plan to expand our business portfolio in Macau on the back
of our established track record, serving the major leisure and gaming industry
sector whilst participating in infrastructural and building projects of the Macau
Government.

Given a current outstanding order book of HK$15 billion (HK$25 billion
if nominated subcontractor works are included), the Group's turnover in
construction business for the next two years have already been secured at current
levels but management will continue to exploit our strengths whilst improving
management processes and project execution to improve overall cash flow and
profitability.

Property Development Business Review

“La Viva is poised to become major new township itself and is positioned
to be a sustainable source of the Group’s revenue and profit over the next
five to eight years.”

Following the acquisition of the land parcels in November 2011, throughout
2012, Hsin Chong's Property Development Division has established a dedicated
full team of professionals to undertake the planning, design, marketing and sales
of the La Viva (£ 1% F9 =) property development project in the New Town of
Tieling, Liaoning Province, PRC.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Property Development Business Review (continued)

The La Viva (21 # &) project is the creation of a modern and mixed-use new
town, offering local residents a new kind of lifestyle and a new contemporary
community in Liaoning, thereby raising the residents’ quality of life and
introducing an unprecedented experience to the 24 million population of the
Greater Shenyang Economic Region. La Viva (215 =) wil consist of retail,
entertainment, tourism attractions, residential, office and MICE facilities. The
entire project will deliver total development gross floor area of approximately
2 million square metres of residential units and 1 million square metres of
commercial properties, over 6 to 8 years in 5 phases as follows:
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VES A E LA G

ENEFEE RS amE LRIt RRE BRI E
BENERRERSFNTEEFREETNBEALE REEFLE
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£5THITE 492,000,000F 75 2K I 7 A W) 25 32 25 E1 751,000,000
FRK RANENFADAEER @O0 T:

GFA in m? Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Total
HERER(FHX) £ E1 $H=H FmE FLH it
Residential F=E 386,000 331,000 474,000 404,000 399,000 1,994,000
Commercial Gl 247,000 248,000 150,000 18,000 221,000 884,000
Schools and public facilties BREDHRME 1,000 38,000 99,000 - - 138,000
634,000 617,000 723,000 422,000 620,000 3,016,000

In % %% R 210 204 240 140 206

Estimated completion et TR 4Q2014 3Q2015 1Q2017 2Q2018 3Q2019

—Z-|mE -5 ZE+tF ZE-N\F ZZ-NE

E IS F=F £ £-F E=F

Based on Phase 1 design, construction work has commenced since August 2012,
and a series of marketing and sales programs have been planned and some
executed to prepare for public pre-sale to begin during summer 2013. Residential
unit deliveries are scheduled to begin around the end of 2013, with the entire first
phase to be completed by end of 2014.

Phase 1 residential development includes 38 blocks ranging from 8 to 28 storeys,
producing a total saleable area of 340,000 square metres. There will be a total of
3,100 units available for sale, with size ranging from 60 to 160 square metres per
unit, averaging 110 square metres per unit. It is anticipated that the lower blocks
totalling 150,000 square metres will be ready for occupation starting around the
end of 2013. Booking of revenue and profit will begin with the delivery of the
residential units, which would continue until the full completion of Phase 1 by
end of 2014, and during forthcoming years in accordance with the delivery of the
units in the subsequent Phases.

RIBEFE —HMRGH 2ETEEe T —F \ARRM-
EREF—RITGHEENMBEERE ASHTEP
7 R_T-=—FEFHRIANRARBEMER - EEEM
BEMHN —T-=FEMAXN MBEFE -HEREK =
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5T 3£150,000F 5 K EEBEELHON - T — = FRFMABA
ReoFRXMEEEMN W RABFDE AR — 2=
T NFREEE—HERAL MERFE BESH
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2012 8 HEZEEEERAA



18

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEERLR DN

Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Property Development Business Review (continued)

The Phase 1 commercial development includes shopping arcades of an outlet
village and town centre, supermarket, food and beverage, an international school
for Chinese students, and multiple recreational facilities such as cinemas and a
“water world”. The outlet village is scheduled to open for the Chinese Labour
Day in May 2014. Our leasing and marketing strategy has introduced over 100
operators of international brands for the outlet village. And, as of this report
date, more than 20 anchor tenants have been secured with tenancy agreements
signed.

“Hsin Chong will continuously seize opportunities to expand its property
business portfolio.”

Under the Group's long-range business expansion plans in entering the property
development business, management has been regularly evaluating other various
large-scale integrated property development projects. The La Viva ( 1% F =)
project signifies the beginning of the Group's full-scale foray into the Chinese
Mainland property sector, seizing the wide opportunities arising from China’s
unprecedented urbanisation. The Group will continue to seek to develop other
projects in due time, and strive to become a leading brand in the Chinese
mainland'’s real estate market.

Property & Facility Management Business Review

Property & Facility Management Division continued to develop and grow its
property management business. During 2012, this Division achieved a record
turnover of HK$804 million (2011: HK$673 million) and its operating profit has
improved to HK$21.9 million (2011: HK$20.8 million).

In Hong Kong, our core market producing over 95% of this Division’s revenue, we
have maintained our market share, comprised of a large and extensive property
management portfolio of 134 private residential and commercial properties,
totalling over 60 million square feet, and 165,000 residential units as of year
end. Leveraging on this foundation, we have steadily grown other value-added
services to offer more comprehensive integrated solutions to our customers, such
as repair and maintenance, renovation, slope maintenance, energy management,
cleaning, security, materials purchasing, and laundry services. The Division has
successfully secured and operated several new sizeable high profile facility
management contracts in Hong Kong, serving prestigious clients such as Hong
Kong Jockey Club and Cathay Pacific Cargo Terminal. Our strategy of developing
our maintenance business in Hong Kong has achieved good growth.

In China, we had further business development during the year with 36 new
projects. Under the asset management service business, these include the La Viva
(21 ) project in Tieling, Shenyang covering over 100,000 square metres
for Phase 1 and potentially a total 1,000,000 square metres in total, 1,200,000
square metres at Park View Coast (3% 5) in Guangdong. We have also
obtained leasing contracts including Beijing Hotel's (15 Z &R & ) shopping mall,

Shanghai Tsui Wah Catering Management ( /85X A E ), and Capland
Center (#1572 ) and Wanbong Shopping Center (& 8 ) in Qingdao.
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued)

Property & Facility Management Business Review (continued)

Synergis management always strives to expand and build on the Company's
operating platform. While we continue to enhance our Hong Kong core
businesses in property and facility management, we work diligently to identify and
extend our capabilities into new growth areas. In Hong Kong, we are enhancing
and growing our “one-stop shop” solutions to our existing clients in the extensive
portfolio of property management, as well as leveraging our enhanced renovation
and maintenance capabilities to capture opportunities under various Government
initiatives (e.g. the Mandatory Window Inspection Scheme and the Operation
Building Bright Initiatives).

Management anticipates that the Chinese Mainland business will remain
challenging. However, any improvement there would have a significant impact
on the overall results of the Division. In addition, our core business in Hong Kong
remains solid and steadily growing with the development in related services such
as maintenance will drive future result improvement.

Financial Position

“Hsin Chong has significantly grown its financial capabilities with an
enlarging net asset value and corresponding increase in credit facilities
from various banks.”
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Review of Business and Prospects (continued) XBOBARMR (2
Financial Position (continued) HEHERR (&)

“Management is vigilant in managing the balance sheet of each Business [BEEBEREEE¥HKMFINEEAREZ BEFE
Division to ensure adequate funding and liquidity is independently FI¥9EERTLEZLRITEM LIZHFEERE ]
available and secured to support each business.”

Property Property &
Development & Facility
Balance Sheet (in HK$ million) Construction Investment Management Total
MEBER MER
BEABER(B¥EET) BiE R#E BEERE et
Current Assets mEEE
Properties under development BERAYE - 2,839 - 2,839
Receivables and others JRE LS B R B LA 1,359 44 406 1,809
Bank and cash balances RITRIR © A5k 1,133 91 91 1,315
2,492 2,974 497 5,963
Current Liabilities mENE
Bank loans - due in 2013 RITER-——T—=F5H @17) (275) (4) (716)
4% coupon bonds and convertible bonds 4% F EEH KA ESH - (21) - (221)
Payables FEFTBR SR (1,589) (489) (326) (2,404)
(2,006) (985) (350) (3,341)
Non-current FEE
Leasehold land and building HETHRETF - 382 - 382
Intangibles BREE 2 23 118 143
Zero coupon convertible bonds due ER—BBRENTEMNRRES
to a shareholder - (523) - (523)
Bank loans — due over 1 year RITER— BB —FEEIH @7n) - (156) (427)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE - (89) (18) (107)
Others Hil 19 30 15 64
(250) (177) (41) (468)
Net Assets RESE 236 1,812 106 2,154

The Group's liquidity and gearing ratios remain well managed as of year-end and ~REXR  REBMGEFZENRDES R ERNEBBEL R T
were in compliance with various credit facilities' covenants. AEBBEERMERNZGE-
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Net (Debt*)/Cash, in HK$ million

Net Debt* to Tangible Net Assets FEEYMBREEETE

Total Debt* to Tangible Net Assets weRYBREETFE

Current ratio MBI &

F(BE) /BRe (B¥EET)

EEBRARDM
EBOERER (5
EXEELFERROEL
2012 2011 2010
—ET—_F —F— —E—TF
(49) (434) 217
2.5% 24.2% Net cash
FiRe
67.8% 74.1% 64.3%
1.8 2.0 1.3

# include all interest-bearing debts

To cope with the rapid expansion of the property development in Chinese
Mainland, management seeks to raise long-term funding via both new equity
issuance and long-term bank loans.

o During the year, HK$238 million of 4% coupon bonds and 4% convertible
bonds were raised, with the proceeds applied to repay the senior loan note
issued in 2011 for acquiring the land parcels of the La Viva (215 %)
project. This entire lot is convertible to equity at HK$1 per share, and up to
the date of this report, approximately 40% of the total has been converted
to permanent capital.

. In November 2012, HK$180 million of five-year term bank loan was raised
through the disposal of ISP division to our subsidiary Synergis, to support the
initial construction expenditures of the La Viva ( £ 1% ) Project.

Hsin Chong Construction continued to hold sufficient financial capacity to take
advantage of opportunities and whether any economic or operational challenges.
Its major operating entities are registered building contractors in Hong Kong,
which requires regular assessment of our financial competency in line with our
outstanding order book size. Management has been able to maintain a strong
net cash position, as a direct result of our vigilant and robust working capital
management, which are further supported by the available credit facilities from
HSBC, our principal banker for this business, and other banks.

Synergis Property and Facility Management business has consistently generated
positive cash flow in line with its net profit. Additional funding is not expected for
this division at this juncture.

The Group's bank borrowings are mainly charged at a spread to HIBOR. With
regard to the current portfolio of businesses, the management expects that the
Group's financing requirements will be met by a combination of issuance of new
equity shares, retained profits, as well as banking facilities.

' BEMASAE
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SERYED SEREBRBRETHRLERRITER-

o FRBBEITA%EEBEHFRANZEE A BRES
£15745%238,000,000L FTISHEAREE T
——FAWEENEREE B mETHNELER
=g BULES IR ESREE 1 TER AR
RARE BE - (h485E440% M EH DR A A E
$ o

e WMIE—=—F+—A FBREEETRNEMHEER
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180,000,000t A HASRITER ARSI N ERE
FEHEEMNYISRERS

e BE AT MO E NIEERE - AR EEER
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EEERLR DN

Human Capital Investment
Advocating “Social Responsibility”
The Group puts strong emphasis on social responsibility.

The Group has been awarded the 10 Years Plus Caring Company Logo by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Services for our commitment to “Social
Responsibility”. The Group encourages employees to participate in a wide
range of charitable activities and voluntary services, on a regular basis, including
participating in a blood donation day; home repair and maintenance services
arranged for the elderly; arranging regular home visits to live-alone elderly; and
providing picnics for children living in children’s homes.

Staff Training and Development

The Group regards its employees as one of its key assets and invests significant
effort and attention to the selection, training and personal improvement of our
staff.

The Group is committed to developing its staff through the provision of training
and development opportunities. Over 3,850 training courses were conducted
providing over 31,900 attendance hours of training sponsored for staff during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Regular in-house seminars and site visits have been organised, for all levels of
staff, to increase their technical and corporate knowledge.

For the building and construction business, developing young engineers and
supervisory staff is an essential requirement. A graduate trainee club was formed
to encourage fellowship among all our trainees. Social and training programmes
were organised regularly to improve staff commitment and sense of belonging
within the Group. Senior management staff were also trained to take up the role
of mentorship to further help the development of the young engineers. A number
of in-house staff development programmes for various staff disciplines have also
been established. Promotion and salary reviews to ensure alignment with industry
norms, take place twice a year in order to retain good performers. These are
important tools to retain talent in HK's expanding construction business with
limitations in the talent pool of suitable, experienced, qualified people.

For the property and facility management services businesses operated by
Synergis, different staff development programmes have also been launched
by Synergis management to ensure staff work in an healthy environment. To
enhance the sense of belonging of our staff, a full staff satisfaction survey is
conducted annually to identify the staff’s primary concerns with recommended
proposals for improvement. A comprehensive talent management model has
been developed to ensure quality staff are recruited, trained, and that subsequent
performance was properly reviewed with only star performers promoted. The
model has won numerous awards in various human resources and organisation
development competitions.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of 8,885 full time staff,
which included 6,649 full time staff employed by Synergis.
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Human Capital Investment (continued)

Staff Training and Development (continued)

Educational backgrounds of all supervisory and higher staff grades are analysed
below:
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ERERLR DT

ANBERE (0)
BABHIRZRE (&)
A ERBRA BB BESMT

Number of
Qualification employees
BE BTA#®
Master Degree or above === V= 240
Bachelor Degree or equivalent professional qualification BHEMNAFE s EXEER 698
Diploma or Higher Certificate holder MRBREEBIUEFEA 512
Certificate holder BEREA 830

The Group establishes its remuneration policy in order to attract and retain high
calibre staff.

Details of the remuneration policy of the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained in this annual report.

Managing Health, Safety and Environment

Construction remains our core business and, as a major construction group
in Hong Kong and Macau as well as an integrated construction services
provider in the Chinese Mainland and selected overseas regions, the Group has
devoted significant efforts to provide and maintain a safe and healthy working
environment to our workforce and also to minimise environmental impacts
affecting members of the public — in line with our commitment to shouldering
social responsibility.

As an OHSAS 18001 certified company, we will strive to take measures to achieve
continual improvement on the safety performance of our construction sites, which
is crucial in enhancing health and safety at work in society. Sufficient resources are
spent on providing health and safety training, organising safety awareness and
promotional programmes for our employees plus other related parties. Genuine
efforts are taken to establish and implement appropriate health and safety control
procedures for work activities undertaken throughout the Group.

Our corporate environment management system has been certified as in
conformity with the standards specified under I1SO 14001 We shall continue to
take the initiative and adopt positive measures that help contribute to a better
environment.

Managing occupational health and safety, together with protection of the
environment, are vital components of our management objectives. We are
committed to focusing our efforts in furtherance of these goals.

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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ESEN

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
EFHEERE

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai

SBS, JB MPA, BSoc.Sc. (aged 60)

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai (“Mr. WONG") was appointed as
an Executive Director and Executive Deputy Chairman of the
Board in December 2007 and re-designated as the Chairman
of the Board and appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company with effect from 1 July 2012. He is also a
member of the remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the executive committee of the Company and
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. WONG is also an executive director of Synergis and
the chairman of the board of directors of Synergis. He is
deemed to be one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company through Neo Summit Limited under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO").

Mr. WONG joined the administrative officer grade of the
Hong Kong Government in 1975 and served in a number of
key positions including Deputy Secretary for the Civil Service
and Deputy Director — General of Industry. Mr. WONG joined
the private sector in 1992 and since then, he had held top
management positions in a number of Hong Kong listed
companies in property development and construction business
sectors including K. Wah International Holdings Limited,
Henderson China Holdings Limited and the Shui On Group.

Mr. WONG started his political career at the national
level when he was appointed as a member of The Basic
Law Consultative Committee (1985-1990) by the Central
People’s Government. He was subsequently appointed by
The National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic
of China (“NPC") as a member of the Preliminary Working
Committee for the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “HKSAR") Preparatory Committee in 1993 and
a member of the HKSAR Preparatory Committee in 1995,
both bodies were responsible for the transitional policies
and arrangements relating to the establishment of the
HKSAR Government in 1997. Mr. WONG was a Deputy to
the NPC during the period from 1997 to 2013.

Mr. WONG's public service continues through his
participation in a number of councils and committees in
Hong Kong. He is currently the chairman of Hong Kong
Arts Development Council; the chairman of Standing
Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service; the chairman of The Hong Kong International Film
Festival Society Limited; the chairman of Hong Kong Baptist
University Foundation; the chairman of the Pacific Basin
Economic Council; the chairman of Hong Kong Institute for
Public Administration and a member of Hong Kong Film
Development Council. He was the chairman of the Court
and Council of the Hong Kong Baptist University during the
period from 2007 to 2012.

For his distinguished public service, Mr. WONG was awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star by the Government of the HKSAR
in 2007. He was educated at Harvard University (MPA),
University of Oxford, The University of Hong Kong (BSoc.Sc.)
and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG is currently an independent non-executive
director of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, which is listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

*  for identification purposes only £ {4 5/
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Dr. Catherine CHU

BSc, MSc, PhD (aged 35)

Dr. Catherine CHU joined the Group in February 2009 and
was appointed as an Executive Director on 11 September
2009. She is also a member of the executive committee of
the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Dr. Catherine CHU is also an executive director and
a member of executive committee of the board of
directors of Synergis. Dr. Catherine CHU has the overall
responsibility for formulating and overseeing the strategic
development of the Group’s business operations and
internal corporate functions. Dr. Catherine CHU holds
a PhD in Change Management, Master of Science in
Management Information Systems and a Bachelor of Science
in Management, all from the London School of Economics
and Political Science in the United Kingdom. Prior to joining
the Group, she worked as a consultant and researcher
for a global management consulting firm and established
corporations with main focus in providing corporate
strategy analysis and solution advisory services in the United
Kingdom.

Dr. Catherine CHU is the sister of Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin,
a Non-executive Director of the Company.

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

DBA, FCCA, FCMI(UK), FCPA, FHKMA, FHKloD

(aged 68)

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (“Dr. BUTTIFANT") was appointed
as an Executive Director on 22 February 2008 and re-
designated as a Non-executive Director on 19 March 2009
and then further re-designated as an Executive Director
on 26 April 2011. He is also a member of the executive
committee of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is also a non-executive director of Synergis.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Chartered Management Institute,
The Hong Kong Management Association and The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors.

Dr. BUTTIFANT, being a person distinguished in eminence
and by attainments, was admitted to the degree of
Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration (Honoris
Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University in February 2013.
Dr. BUTTIFANT is currently an independent non-executive
director of Giordano International Limited and Daiwa
Associate Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-executive director of
China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd., which is listed on the
New York Stock Exchange and a non-executive director of
Global-Tech Advanced Innovations Inc., which is currently
listed on NASDAQ. He was an executive director of IDT
International Limited. He has been resident in Hong Kong
for over 34 years.

S EEREL

BSc, MSc, PhD (355%)
KAERBEIRN T NF - ARIMAR
E@ YR _TTAFNA+—REZR
TERTEE - FNBAARRITEE
iZﬁRE&ZJSQET%:FWEQETZE

RERELTRANEEEZHITESR
HEZQBETHTZEGZIRE K5
AT RRIANREEARERD
BEZRIBERRAIMEEBE K=
BETRHARE RABOEE R B
EEELEN EEEMARESEL
BUNEESEBE LB - RIIAR
SEZH FEEBRR -—HEREZE
ERMEGARNEEZ RERRIAE
NERH DR EREE DA R BIR T R AR
BznE REERRME I E-

AEBBLRARAFERITEERARE
Bk

2BAEL

DBA, FCCA, FCMI(UK), FCPA, FHKMA,
FHKIoD (685%)
ERABL(EHRALBLIR=_ZZ
NE-_A-+-_HEZTARITESE"
YR -_ZBZAE=A+ILBAEEFE
MITEE HEBR_-_ZE——FWA
ZHRNBATAERTES - BAALAD
RITEZEGZKERARRETH B
NE|ZESE-

FoRARERFAREHNAE
BEHMAY RARFEREY
BEREEHRRESEREY

@8 o

= =

FHAMLINANSER 2 ENTH
B
&
#R

ERNETREEAELK R RS
BN -_T-ZF_AEETT 8L
DTAREBERTIHNEREREFLIEME
2 -ERNLELRAENREBRERR
ANENEEERERAG ZBILIE
MITES MEHRBER L% I8
DRBRAAFESRX ST £z China
Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd. % IR B
N EfE 72 - 2 Global-Tech Advanced
Innovations InC.ZIFRITESZ -KE R
BHEBERARZATES KIS
REETE B34 -

25

Biographies of the Directors

EE[/N

Dr. Catherine CHU

SkmBEL

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

2012 S8 7

=Y
AR=R=

EEAEL

EEBEARAT



26

Biographies of the Directors

BESEN

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung
ERBEE

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung

BSc, CEng, FHKIE, FHKIHT, MICE, R.PE. (aged 65)

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung (“Mr. CHOI") was appointed
as an Executive Director on 22 March 2013. He is also a
member of the executive committee of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He oversees
the overall construction business of the Group.

Mr. CHOI joined the Group in August 2009 as the assistant
managing director and was subsequently promoted to
managing director of the construction business in July
2012. He has over 43 years of multi-dimensional and
multi-functional experience across contracting and client
organisations in Hong Kong, Chinese Mainland, Taiwan,
Macau and overseas. Before joining the Group, he was
the general manager for the Kowloon-Canton Railway
Corporation and MTR Corporation Limited responsible for
the design and construction of various new railway lines.
He brings with him invaluable experience in construction,
property development and project management at most
senior level.

Mr. CHOI graduated from the University of Aston in
Birmingham, United Kingdom with a degree of Bachelor
of Science in Civil Engineering. He is a Fellow of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers; Fellow of The Hong Kong
Institution of Highways and Transportation; Member of the
Institution of Civil Engineers, UK; a Chartered Engineer,
UK; and a Registered Professional Engineer, Hong Kong.
Mr. CHOI is a director of Engineering Forum Limited and
a member of Engineers Registration Board. He is also a
member of Departmental Advisory Committee for the
Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering, The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University; a council member
of Hong Kong Contractor Association; and a council
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Highways and
Transportation.
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Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

(aged 38)

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin (“Dr. Kenneth CHU") was the
Chairman of the Board up to 30 June 2012 and he remains
as a Non-executive Director of the Company. He is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company and was a
non-executive chairman of Synergis up to 30 June 2012.

Dr. Kenneth CHU is a director of Upper Luck Holdings
Limited, Mission Hills Golf Club Limited and Carrick
Worldwide Limited, all of which are the substantial
shareholders of the Company. Dr. Kenneth CHU is the
chairman and chief executive officer of Mission Hills
Group and is responsible for planning and managing the
construction and design of sports and property assets of
Mission Hills Group, including championship golf courses
and residential properties. Dr. Kenneth CHU, together with
the late Dr. David CHU Shu-ho were named by the “Golf
Inc.” as one of the top 35 most influential persons (ranked
9th) in the golf world in 2010. He has over 16 years of
experience in property and golf asset development, and has
been managing Mission Hills Group in developing assets
by blending sports, business, culture, leisure and living
components. Dr. Kenneth CHU has been actively involved
in community services in China and Hong Kong to promote
interaction and collaboration between China and Hong
Kong's young business leaders, including being a member
of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Hainan Committee, a standing committee member of All-
China Youth Federation, a vice chairman of Hong Kong
United Youth Association, a standing committee member of
Tianjin Youth Federation and a director of Hong Kong Chiu
Chow Chamber of Commerce. He is currently a National
Committee Member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. He was educated at The University
of Western Ontario in Canada. He was honored with a
Doctorate of Laws by his alma mater for his contributions in
sports leisure development and community services in China
and Hong Kong.

Dr. Kenneth CHU is the brother of Dr. Catherine CHU, an
Executive Director of the Company.
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BESEN

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him
AEEEE

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

SBS, JP (aged 67)

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him (“Mr. SHEK") was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 23 January 2008.
He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. SHEK is currently a member of the Legislative Council
of the HKSAR representing the real estate and construction
functional constituency. He is a member of the Court of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a
member of the Court and the Council of The University of
Hong Kong and the vice chairman of Independent Police
Complaints Council.

Mr. SHEK was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star by the
Government of the HKSAR in 2007. He graduated from the
University of Sydney, Australia with a degree of Bachelor of
Arts.

Mr. SHEK is currently a non-executive director of The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited; the chairman
and an independent non-executive director of Chuang’s
China Investments Limited and the vice chairman and
an independent non-executive director of ITC Properties
Group Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director of MTR Corporation Limited, Country Garden
Holdings Company Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings
Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, Lifestyle International
Holdings Limited, Midas International Holdings Limited,
NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International
Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, SIM Holdings Limited,
Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited, China Resources
Cement Holdings Limited, Dorsett Hospitality International
Limited (formerly known as Kosmopolito Hotels
International Limited) and Lai Fung Holdings Limited, all of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of Eagle
Asset Management (CP) Limited, which is the manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“Champion
REIT”), and Regal Portfolio Management Limited, which is
the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust (“Regal
REIT”). Both Champion REIT and Regal REIT are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He was also appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Jetstar Hong
Kong Airways Limited in February 2013.
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Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing

BSoc.Sc., ATIHK, ASA (aged 63)

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing (“Mr. MAK") was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 5 June 2009.
He is also the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company.

Mr. MAK graduated from The University of Hong Kong
with a degree of Bachelor of Social Science. He is a fellow
member of CPA Australia and associate member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. MAK has over 34
years of experience in the taxation field. He has extensive
experience in Hong Kong corporate and individual tax
planning and has assisted a vast number of clients in South
East Asia in developing effective tax strategies to minimise
their tax exposure in the region. As an expert in Hong
Kong, United States and international taxation, Mr. MAK
is frequently invited to speak at tax seminars organised
by various professional associations and educational
institutions. He is a frequent contributing author to various
local and international newspapers and professional
journals. Mr. MAK was formerly an assessor with the Inland
Revenue Department. In July 2006, he joined Mazars Tax
Services Limited (“Mazars”) as an executive director and
then became its managing director in January 2008. Before
joining Mazars, Mr. MAK was the partner of Ernst & Young
in tax services and took an early retirement in January 2004
to pursue his governorship of Rotary International District
3450 and also his own consulting business.

Currently, Mr. MAK is the treasurers of H5N1 Concern
Group and The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited; a consultant of Hong Kong Professional
Consultants Association; a member of Tax specialization
Development Committee of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and School Management Committee of
Hotung Secondary School. Previously, Mr. MAK had served
as the president of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong;
the vice chairman of Steering Committee of Hong Kong
Network of Virtual Enterprises; the governor of Rotary
International District 3450; the chairman of Practice Firm
Steering Committee of Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education (Tsing Yi) and District Rotary Foundation
Committee of Rotary International District 3450; a treasurer
of The Hong Kong Road Safety Association and Senior
Citizen Home Safety Association; a member of taxation
committee of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accounts; a member of the Road Safety Council, Joint
Liaison Committee on Taxation, Hospital Authority Public
Complaints Committee, Hospital Governing Committee of
Hong Kong Eye Hospital and Kowloon Hospital; and a part-
time member of Hong Kong Government's Central Policy
Unit.

Mr. MAK is currently an independent non-executive director
of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited, which is listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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BESEN

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung
HEHEE

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

GBS, JB MBE (aged 61)

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (“Mr. LAM") was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director in August 2002. He
is also the chairman of the nomination committee and a
member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. LAM is currently a National Committee Member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He also
holds a number of other public and community service
positions including being a member of the Legislative
Council of the HKSAR, the chairman of Mega Events Funds
Assessment Committee, a member of the board of the
West Kowloon Cultural District Authority, a council member
of Hong Kong Trade Development Council and a general
committee member of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. LAM was appointed as a member of HKSAR
Fight Crime Committee and a non-official member of the
Executive Council of the HKSAR in 2012. He is also a board
member of the Airport Authority Hong Kong.

Mr. LAM was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the
Government of the HKSAR in 2011. He holds a Bachelor
Degree from Tufts University in the United States of
America. He has over 32 years of experience in the toy
industry and is currently the managing director of Forward
Winsome Industries Limited which is engaged in toy
manufacturing. Besides, Mr. LAM is an independent non-
executive director of C C Land Holdings Limited, Wynn
Macau, Limited, China Overseas Grand Oceans Group
Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited and Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited, all of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.
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Business Division

Mr. Keith John BUCKLEY (“Mr. BUCKLEY"), BSc (Civil, CEng, MICE, MHKIE, aged
64, is a director of Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited (“HCC") and Hsin
Chong Construction (Asia) Limited (“HCA"), and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. BUCKLEY is the Executive Project Director of the construction
management business of the Group in Macau. He joined the Group in 2003
and has over 44 years of experience in the field of building construction and civil
engineering.

Mr. Cyras CHIN Chi-keung (“Mr. CHIN"), BSc (Hons), MSc, MHKIE, R.PE., aged
54, is a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. CHIN is a director — Building Construction and is responsible for the
performance and day-to-day operational management of the Group’s building
construction projects and managing the Contract Administration Department
and the Commercial Department in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1994
and has over 30 years of experience in the field of structural design and project
management.

Mr. Phillip Kenneth CLARKE (“Mr. CLARKE"), mRrics, aged 53, is the
commercial director of Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited and Hsin Chong
Engineering (Macau) Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries in Macau. Mr. CLARKE
joined the Group in 2004 and has over 32 years of experience in providing
commercial and technical support in the construction field.

Mr. Alan Clive EVANS (“Mr. EVANS"), MA, FRICS, ACIArb, aged 51, was
appointed as a director of HCC on 1 January 2013. Mr. EVANS is responsible
for overseeing all commercial, legal, insurance and procurement matters for the
whole construction business. He joined the Group in 2011 as Group commercial
manager and has more than 30 years of property and construction management
experience with major corporations and international consultants in the UK, Qatar,
Macau and Hong Kong.

Mr. Joseph FUNG Cho-ning (“Mr. FUNG"), BSc (Eng), CEng, R.PE., FIMECHE, MCIBSE,
MHKIE, aged 60, is the managing director of Hsin Chong Aster Building Services
Limited ("HC Aster”), the electrical and mechanical engineering specialists of
the Group, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. FUNG has
the primary responsibility in managing the business of HC Aster. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 37 years of experience in the engineering field as
consultant, client’s representative and contractor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom
and Australia. Prior to joining the Group, for over 16 years, Mr. FUNG was
engaged in the general management of companies in Australia and Hong Kong
before acting as the general manager of Jardine and Cathay Pacific group of
companies.
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Business Division (continued)

Ms. Karin LAU Shu-ya ("Ms. LAU"), aged 39, is a director of commercial
development of Hsin Chong Property Development Limited. She joined the Group
in 2011 and has over 14 years of experience in both real estate and finance.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. LAU has worked for leading developers such
as Swire Properties Limited and Shui On Land Limited in both Hong Kong and
China. She has extensive property development and management experience and
has worked in strategy, business development, branding, sales and marketing
with a focus in mixed-used development. Of her finance experience, Ms. LAU
has worked for the corporate finance division of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited on various merger and acquisition, corporate
advisory and initial public offering assignments with a focus in finance and
real estate industries. Ms. LAU has a bachelor degree from University of British
Columbia and an MBA from Cornell University.

Mr. Paul LEE Kai-hung (“Mr. Paul LEE"), BEng, MASc, PEng, MCSCE, CEng, MICE,
R.PE, MHKIE, age 56, is a director of HCC, HCA and managing director of HCCG
Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Limited. Mr. Paul Lee was appointed the
assistant managing director of HCC on 1 January 2013 and is responsible for the
Hong Kong Civil Division; Macau Civil and Building Construction Business; Group
Health, Safety, Environment and Quality; and Plant Department. He joined the
Group in 2010 and has more than 33 years of experience in civil engineering and
building construction. Mr. Paul LEE is a registered professional engineer. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Paul LEE was a senior executive with a leading Hong Kong
contractor.

Mr. James LEE Kok-foo (“Mr. James LEE"), BEng, MiEAust, MHKIE, aged 61, is a
director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. James LEE is responsible for the business development for the Building Division
including Design and Build Projects. He is also the Head of Building Services and
Railway Systems Department overseeing business development and contracting
works. He joined the Group in 1981 and has over 39 years of experience in
the field of electrical and mechanical engineering and building construction
management. Mr. James LEE was awarded the 1975 G.t. Murray Memorial Award
by the New Zealand Institution of Engineers for the Best Young Engineer of the
Year.

Ms. Fanny LEE Wing-lan (“Ms. LEE"), Ala, HKIA, LEED AP®, aged 50, is a director
of Planning and Design of Hsin Chong Property Development Limited. She joined
the Group in 2011 and has over 23 years of professional architectural design and
management experience in large-scale mixed use developments in the United
States of America and Asia, including 17 years of China project experience. During
her tenure as Senior Associate Principal at the renowned international design firm
of Kohn Pederson Fox, Ms. LEE was involved in various landmark developments in
China for prominent developers including the 480-meter International Commerce
Centre in Hong Kong, mixed-use commercial developments in the Shanghai
Xintiandi precinct and the large scale residential and commercial mixed use master
plan in Zhenru, Shanghai. From 2008 to 2009, as managing director — China
of Aedas Ltd., one of the largest architectural practices globally, Ms. LEE was
responsible for managing its China operation. Ms. LEE is a licensed architect in
the State of California in the United States of America and in Hong Kong, and is
a LEED AP®. She is a past president of the Hong Kong Chapter of the American
Institute of Architects and a member of the executive committee of the North Asia
Council of the Urban Land Institute.
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Business Division (continued)

Mr. Richard Anthony MYRANS (“Mr. MYRANS"), BEng, CEng, FICE, MiStructt,
MHKIE, aged 56, is a director of HCC and HCA, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. MYRANS is a director (Civil Engineering) and is
responsible for the civil engineering business of the Group within Hong Kong.
He joined the Group in 2008 and has 34 years experience in the field of civil
engineering.

Mr. Simon SIU Miu-man (“Mr. SIU"), MSc MHKIE, MHKIS, MRICS, MCIArb, R.PE,
R.PS.(GP), AP, aged 55, is the managing director of Hsin Chong Property
Development Limited and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group in 2012 and has over 30 years' experience in property
development in Hong Kong and China. He has held senior executive positions
in the field of property development and was involved in different projects
including planning and development of commercial buildings, shopping malls as
well as large scale luxury residential developments. Mr. SIU graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Polytechnic Associateship in Building
Technology and Management and a Master of Science in Electronic Commerce.
He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors — General Practice Division, Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors — General Practice Division and Chartered Institute of Arbitrator. Mr.
SIU is an authorised person under the Hong Kong Building Ordinance of the
HKSAR Government. He is also a registered professional engineer and a registered
professional surveyor (RPS-GP stream). He is an appointed district councilor of the
Kowloon City District Council of the HKSAR.

Mr. Augustine TANG Man-yee ("Mr. TANG"), MSc, MCIOB, MAIB, MHKICM, aged
54, is a director of HCC and HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau)
Limited. Mr. TANG is responsible for the civil engineering and building in Macau.
He joined the Group in 1976 and has over 36 years of experience in the field of
building construction and project management of the mega construction projects
in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shenzhen and Macau.

Mr. YAM Kong (“Mr. YAM"), RPE, FHKIE, FIET, FIRSE, aged 59, is a Deputy
Managing Director of Hsin Chong Property Development Limited. He joined
the Group in 2008 and has over 35 years of experience in the transportation
industry mainly in railway and metro systems. He is a registered professional
engineer. Before joining the Group, Mr. YAM has been in executive positions of
consulting companies responsible for managing the consultancy operation as well
as exploring investment opportunities for transportation infrastructure projects in
China and overseas. Mr. YAM also worked in many different countries including
Canada, UK, Australia, Far East countries and the Chinese Mainland.
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Corporate Services

Mr. Edward YUEN Siu-bun ("Mr. YUEN"), MBA, Msc, CPA, aged 52, is the chief
financial officer of the Group. Mr. YUEN is responsible for the overall management
of the Group's finance and accounting function. He joined the Group in 2009
and has 30 years of working experience in finance, accounting, treasury and
securitization for both multinational and local companies. Outside of work,
Mr. YUEN is a marathon runner and serves in committees of various non-profit
organisations.

Mr. LUI Chun-pong (“Mr. LUI"), B.A, M.Acc, LLM, MBA (Executive), FCPA, FCCA, ATIHK,
CTA (HK), ACS, ACIS, aged 44, is the Group Financial Controller. Mr. LUI is responsible
for overseeing the finance and accounting operations, budget preparation,
group financial control and cashflow management. He joined the Group in 2010
and has over 22 years of experience in corporate accounting, financing and tax
planning.

Project Directors

Mr. CHOI Man-fai ("Mr. M.F. CHOI"), Bsc,, FCIOB, FHKICM, MICE, MHKIE, MRICS, RPE,
Authorized Signatory (RGBC) with the Buildings Department, aged 51, is a senior project
director of HCC. He is responsible for managing all aspects of the construction
operations in projects under his control including the MTRC Shatin to Central Link
Contract No. SCL1109 - Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations and Tunnels.
Mr. M.F. CHOI joined the Group in 2009. He has over 25 years of experience
in the managing and administering of both Government-funded and privately-
sponsored infrastructure projects comprising civil, building and foundation jobs.

Mr. CHOW Tai-wang, Benjamin (“Mr. Benjamin CHOW"), Bsc. (Civil Engineering),
aged 60, is a senior project director of HCC and the head of civil projects
operations. He is responsible for project management, tendering and business
development. Mr. Benjamin CHOW joined the Group in 2002. He has over 35
years of experience in foundation, site formation, infrastructure, structural steel,
road & drainage, marine works, demolition, building and contracting business.

Mr. CHAN Tat-chi, Terry (“Mr. Terry CHAN"), MCiOB, MHKICM, aged 54, is
a project director of HCC. He is responsible for Design & Build Department,
Surveying Department and management of Building Projects including the
redevelopment of Hong Kong Sports Institute, Baptist University Campus
Development, Residential Development at Siu Lam, Tuen Mun, and the Tsuen
Wan Adventist Hospital Extension. Mr. Terry CHAN joined the Group in 2009. He
has over 30 years of experience in the managing and administering of Building
Projects in both private and public sector.

Mr. CHAN Wai-kei, Wayne (“Mr. Wayne CHAN"), BSc. (Arch), MIHEEM, ASHRAE,
aged 57, is a project director of HC Aster. He is responsible for Building Services
project management, tender preparation and business development. Mr. Wayne
CHAN joined the Group in 2005. He has over 33 years of experience in the
managing and administering of both public and private sector E & M projects.
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Project Directors (continued)

Mr. CHAN Wai-leung, Johnny (“Mr. Johnny CHAN"), BEng (Civi), MHKIE, ACIArb,
aged 56, is a project director of HCC. He is primarily responsible for project
management as well as tender preparation and business development. Main
projects involved are MTRC-SIL(E) Contract 908 — Wong Chuk Hang Depot
Superstructure and MTRC-SCL 1109 — Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan Stations
and Tunnels (tender stage). Mr. Johnny CHAN joined the Group in 2011. He has
over 33 years of experience in the construction industry in consultant, developer
and contractors, covering projects of infrastructure, site formation, roads &
drainage, port works, superstructure, building and renovation.

Mr. CHAU Chi-wai, Chris (“"Mr. Chris CHAU"), BSc. (Hons), MHKIE, RPE, aged 51,
is a project director of HCC. He is responsible for construction projects, including
redevelopment of Hong Kong Sports Institute and Shek Mun HSBC Data Centre.
Mr. Chris CHAU joined the Group in 2007. He has over 29 years of experience in
the construction industry.

Mr. LAM Kam-keung, Frankie (“Mr. Frankie LAM"), BSc. (Eng), MA (Arb & DR), CEng,
MICE, RPE, MHKIE, MCSCEHKB, aged 44, is a project director of HCC. He is primarily
responsible for project management as well as tender preparation and business
development. Mr. Frankie LAM joined the Group in 1994. He has over 21 years
of experience in both consulting and contracting business on a wide spectrum
of projects including infrastructure, site formation, roads & drainage, foundation,
deep excavation, geotechnical and ground investigation field works. He is also
appointed as the Authorized Signatory under the Buildings Ordinance (Chapter
123) supervising site formation and foundation works.

Mr. MOK Hon-wa, Kenneth (“Mr. MOK"), MASc, BASc, RPE, PEng (Canada),
PE. (USA), MHKIE, FHKICM, AHKIArb., aged 49, is a project director of HCC. He is
responsible for managing various kinds of building projects including data centres,
institutional buildings and residential developments etc.. In the public works
sector, he oversees all the HKHA's building projects for the Company. Mr. MOK
joined the Group in 2011. He has over 25 years of experience in the construction
fields of Hong Kong and Canada.

Mr. POON Yat-man, Albert (“Mr. POON"), BEng (Hons), CEng, MiStructe,
RSE-PRC, aged 47, is a technical director of HCC. He is responsible for business
development in the Building Division. Mr. POON joined the Group in 2009. He has
over 24 years of experience in the construction industry.

Mr. TANG Sik-ming, Christopher ("Mr. TANG"), BSc. (Hons), MCIOB, MHKIE, MASCE,
MHKICM, MCMI, RPE (Building), MASI, aged 58, is a project director of HCC. He is
responsible for the construction management of Sai Wan Terrace and HKUST
projects. Mr. TANG joined the Group in 2011. He has over 34 years of experience
in building construction management and administration.

Mr. YIU Chi-kin, Simon (“Mr. YIU"), BSc, MSc., MHKIE, MHKICM, MCIOB,
MRICS, aged 44, is a project director of HCC. He is responsible for construction
project management and training programme of young engineers in the Hong
Kong Buildings Division. Projects under his supervision included construction
management of Seymour Road, 28 Hennessy Road and the Academic and
Administration Building of the City University. Mr. YIU joined the Group in August
1991 as Graduate Building Engineer. He has over 21 years of experience in
building project planning and programming, cost control, contract administration
and overall construction management.
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Corporate governance is the system by which the Company is directed and
controlled. The Board is fully aware of its importance to the shareholders and has
developed a rigorous system of checks and balances which allows management
to respond to the strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables the Company to
achieve business excellence and fulfill the Company’s mission.

Corporate Code of Conduct

Since 1995, the Company has published and distributed its Corporate Code
of Conduct to all staff to educate and reinforce the Company’s commitment
to the highest standards of business ethics and the seriousness with which the
Board treats such matters. The Corporate Code of Conduct is a living document
and periodically updated to incorporate comments and suggestions from the
Independent Commission Against Corruption and the other regulating authorities
in Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (effective until 31 March 2012, the “Former CG Code”) and the
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012, the “Revised CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had fully complied
with all code provisions of the Former CG Code during the period from 1 January
2012 to 31 March 2012. It had also complied with the Revised CG Code during
the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, save for the deviations as
explained below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors,
Executive Committee Members and Senior Management
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code")
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its
own code of conduct for regulating securities transactions by the directors of the
Company. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors of the Company, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written guidelines for
regulating securities transactions by the senior management (whose names
appear in this annual report). The Board believes that the senior management
may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information of the Group. Having made specific enquiry of all the senior
management, the Company was advised that all of them have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2012.
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Board of Directors

Composition

The Board is currently comprised of 8 directors, including 4 executive directors, 1
non-executive director and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The names of the directors are set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
(re-designated as Chairman of the Board and appointed as
Chief Executive Officer on 1 July 2012)
Dr. Catherine CHU
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT
Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung (appointed on 22 March 2013)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
(resigned as Chairman of the Board on 1 July 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing

Updated list of directors identifying their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (http:/Amwww.hkex.com.hk) and the Company’s
website (http://www.hsinchong.com) whenever there is any change.

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, including sports,
leisure, hospitality, property development, construction, manufacturing, trading
and finance related work, members of the Board possess a balance of skills,
expertise and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Group which helps promote its success and benefits its management. Save as
disclosed in the biographies of the directors set out on pages 24 to 30 of this
annual report and the facts that Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin, the non-executive
director, is the brother of Dr. Catherine CHU, there is no relationship among
members of the Board.

The Company currently has 3 independent non-executive directors representing
more than one-third of the total number of Board members and is in compliance
with the requirement under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the
independent non-executive directors carry weight in the Board's decisions, and
their participation helps the Board exercise judgment, make decisions and act
objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Composition (continued)

Each of the independent non-executive directors has given to the Company an
annual confirmation of independence in compliance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive directors
are and have remained independent. Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing, chairman of
the audit committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial management
expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Members of the Board, including the names of all the independent non-executive
directors, are expressly identified in all corporate communications which disclose
the names of the directors of the Company.

Functions

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its primary
functions are to set and direct the Company'’s strategy and monitor and measure
the management’s performance. It is accountable for the overall strategic
development of the Group with the objective to enhance shareholder value.
Material matters are reserved for the Board's considerations or decisions which
include, among other things, overall strategy of the Group; business plans; annual
budgets; significant capital expenditure; interim and annual results and reports;
dividend policy and payments; material acquisitions, disposals or investment
proposals; directors’ appointments, re-appointments or removal; and other
material transactions.

Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the Revised CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established set out in writing. On 28 June 2012, the
Company announced the re-designation of Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai from
the Deputy Chairman to the Chairman of the Board and the appointment of
Mr. WONG as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 1
July 2012. The Company considers that this dual role is essential at this time, in
order to continue to oversee the existing construction and property management
businesses, whilst at the same time to manage the strategic development of and
significant additional capital commitments to the property development business.

With the support from the executive directors and the company secretary, the
Board chairman ensures that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising
from Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information on
a timely manner.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the appointment, re-election
and removal of the directors of the Company. The Board set up a nomination
committee in 2011 to recommend the appointment, re-election and removal of
the directors of the Company.

All the non-executive and independent non-executive directors of the Company
have entered into letters of appointment with the Company for a term of two
years subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”), including the requirement of retirement by rotation and
re-election or standing for re-election at annual general meetings of the Company
at least once every three years. The term is renewable upon expiry.

Any new director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided with
information on duties and obligations of director, relevant regulatory requirements
and the Group’s business affairs. All directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy
would be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting of the
Company after appointment.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board meetings for next year are
scheduled approaching the end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the
directors to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will
be convened, as and when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any director who
is not able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference telephone or other similar
communication equipment, in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Board Proceedings

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days in advance,
and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings. The company secretary
assists the Board chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each
director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by
meeting papers with sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each director
not less than 3 days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the directors to
make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed, except where a Board
meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The company secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the Board meetings,
drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to directors for comment
and records, respectively, and in both cases, within a reasonable time after each
meeting. Minutes are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board at the meeting and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the company secretary and open for inspection to any director on request.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Proceedings (continued)

All directors of the Company have access to the company secretary who is
responsible to ensure that Board procedures are complied with and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed. Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information, including reports from the Board committees and reports
from the management. They are also provided with updates on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes
and matters of relevance to the directors in discharging their duties as and when
appropriate.

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, the Board has adopted written
procedures and circulated them to all directors to follow in the case any director
wishes to seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance at the
Company'’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing pursuant to the
Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in a tight timeframe and hence
convening a Board meeting is difficult or not practicable. In the case resolution in
writing is circulated, sufficient information and explanatory materials will also be
provided to the directors at the same time. During the year ended 31 December
2012, eight sets of resolutions in writing were circulated to the directors for
approval and duly passed by the directors. These written resolutions were tabled
for the directors’ review at the next following Board meeting so that directors
were given the opportunity to raise any further comment (if any) on the relevant
matters.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter
(including material transaction with connected persons) which the Board
determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as long as time is
allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the relevant matter first before
any subsequent approval is given by way of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been arranged
to protect the directors and officers of the Group.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Attendances of Meetings

4 Board meetings, 3 audit committee meetings, 2 remuneration committee
meetings, 1 nomination committee meeting and 3 general meetings were held
during the year ended 31 December 2012. Attendances of these meetings by
directors are set out below:
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HE/ RERHESE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meetings
Name of Directors EERE Exg ENZAE FHZERE REZRE BRXE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHAZH
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai' FHEE 4/4 n/a 22 17 33
Executive Directors HiTEE
Catherine CHU rER 444 n/a n/a n/a 23
Barry John BUTTIFANT KA 44 n/a n/a n/a 33
Non-executive Director HHTEE
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin? FNLEg 3/4 23 nfa nfa 213
Indlependent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung s 44 33 2 17 33
Abraham SHEK Lai-him AR 4/4 na 2 1/1 113
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing LSt 44 33 n/a n/a 33

! Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai was appointed as the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 1 July 2012.

2 Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin resigned as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 1 July
2012.

n/a  not applicable /i@

During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held meetings
with the Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
without the Executive Directors present.

Code provision A.6.7 of the Revised CG Code provides that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Save for one Independent Non-executive Director who was not able to attend
both the annual general meeting and the special general meeting held on 29
May 2012 and a Non-executive Director who was not able to attend the special
general meeting held on 15 November 2012, due to their own other important
business engagement, all Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) attended the annual general meeting and the special
general meetings of the Company held on 29 May 2012, 29 May 2012 and 15
November 2012 respectively.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Group's performance and financial position.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision A.6.5 of
both the Former CG Code and the Revised CG Code regarding continuous
professional development. During the year, the Company had arranged a training
session on “The requirements and expectations of audit committees and the best
practices” to Directors which was conducted by an external professional firm. In
addition, the Directors had attended external courses, conferences and luncheons
organised by various organisations.

Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates and other
reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments in corporate
governance practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments. A record
of the Directors’ participation in various continuous professional development
program is kept with the Company Secretarial Department.
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Reading newspapers,
journals and

updates relating

to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws, rules

Giving talks or
attending seminars/

conferences/forums and regulations, etc.
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BITHMESHE RAREREFEZ

Name of Directors EEla WEe g WRiE HE BHREHEM
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai FHE 4 4
Catherine CHU KE&A v 4
Barry John BUTTIFANT FHHEN 4 4
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin KRB v v/
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung L5 4 v
Abraham SHEK Lai-him AtEH v 4
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing HEHLE v v

Board Committees

The Board committees, namely, the executive committee, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee are established
pursuant to the Bye-laws, each of which is to assist in the execution of the Board's
responsibilities and oversees particular aspect of the Group's affairs. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, an integrity committee and a CSR working
committee were established in upholding the Company’s integrity and social
responsibility and sustaining our good corporate governance. The committee of
trustees for employee share subscription scheme was dissolved as a result of expiry
of the employee share subscription scheme on 23 August 2012. Each Board
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly,
and holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.
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Board Committees (continued)

Executive Committee

The executive committee of the Board is currently comprised of 4 members,
namely, Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai, Dr. Catherine CHU, Dr. Barry John
BUTTIFANT and Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung.

The primary duties of the executive committee are to approve any matters within
the normal scope of business of the Company, banking matters, issue of shares
under any share schemes of the Company, and administrative issues of routine
nature (excluding notifiable transactions), with a view to assisting the Board
to discharge partially its executive functions. The authority and duties of the
executive committee are set out in its specific written terms of reference.

The executive committee shall meet as and when required depending on business
and operation needs. Members' attendances would depend on the importance
of the matters to be transacted. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
executive committee held 43 meetings to discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Board is currently comprised of Mr. Alexander MAK
Kwai-wing (independent non-executive director) as chairman, Hon. Jeffrey LAM
Kin-fung (independent non-executive director) and Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin
(non-executive director) as members. None of the audit committee members are
or have ever been a partner of the existing audit firm engaged by the Company.

The audit committee is primarily responsible for conducting an independent and
objective review of the financial reporting process, internal controls and audit
function with emphasis on:

() appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal and
external auditors;

(i) serve as an independent and objective party to review the financial
information presented by management to shareholders, regulators and the
general public;

(iiiy  ascertain the adequacy of the Company’s system of internal control which
management and the Board have established; and

(iv) serve as useful channel of communication between the Board and the
external and internal auditors on matters relating to and arising out of the
external and internal audit.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The authority and duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific written
terms of reference. In order to comply with the Revised CG Code, the Board
adopted a revised terms of reference of the audit committee. Full text of the
revised terms of reference of the audit committee is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the audit committee include, among other things,
recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment or removal
of the Company's external auditor and on its remuneration; reviewing the
Company'’s interim and annual financial statements and other financial reports as
prescribed in the specific written terms of reference; and reviewing the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control procedures (including monitoring the
effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk management systems. The
audit committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity within its duties
and responsibilities and the authority to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice if it considers necessary.

The audit committee meets at least twice a year. During the year ended 31
December 2012, three audit committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed earlier in this report.

During the audit committee meetings held in 2012, the audit committee
members had reviewed, (i) the audit strategy memorandum from the external
auditor; (ii) with the participation of the internal and external auditors and the
management, reviewed the internal control system of the Group; and (jii) with
the participation of the internal and external auditors and the management,
the interim and annual results and the related financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that these financial statements were prepared
in accordance with the accounting principles and standards generally accepted
in Hong Kong. The audit committee had also considered the reports from the
external auditor on the scope and findings of its independent review of the
interim and annual financial statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the audit committee’s view on
re-appointment of external auditor, and they both have agreed to recommend the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuing year at the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Board is currently comprised of Hon.
Abraham SHEK Lai-him (independent non-executive director) as chairman, Hon.
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (independent non-executive director) and Mr. Wilfred
WONG Ying-wai as members.

The authority and duties of the remuneration committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. In order to comply with the Revised CG Code, the
Board adopted a revised terms of reference of the remuneration committee. Full
text of the revised terms of reference of the remuneration committee is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The remuneration committee is primarily responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management of the Company. Its duties are summarised below:

()  make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors and senior management remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors;

(v)  consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(vi)  review and approve compensation payable to executive directors and senior
management for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive;

(vii) review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

(viii) ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The remuneration committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, two committee meetings were held. Attendances of
the meetings have been disclosed earlier in this report.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration committee
members had (i) reviewed and approved the bonus distribution proposal of
the directors and the senior management for the year ended 31 December
2011; (i) reviewed the bonus structure of the executive directors and the senior
management; (iii) reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval the
salary of executive directors and senior management; (iv) considered the services
agreements of executive directors and reviewed and recommended to the Board
for approval of the change of Board members; (v) reviewed, determined and
recommended to the Board for approval the directors’ fees for the financial
year ending 31 December 2013; and (vi) approved the appointments and the
promotions of senior management.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

ESTETZZERE (»

FHZERE (2)
HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFERN FMEZEET
BB EEZNEELSEERBAEDREE -
— F+ A= T —HIEFE 2L (MR RTES R
EEERABZIEAZRE: (it ERITEERSEBEIE
AEZHSERRTRMESRSEREZR (WERWITE
EZREEHRPMEZEEGRNELEFEHBRTRAE
FeEdEs: OVt ESEE =+ _A=1+—8
Y BRFEzES0SEHEN BERREFSEHE
% RVBLESEBEEBABCEARETF-

RIBERERTREBASE UTIESEERAS RN
BE_Z——F+-A=+—BILFENZFHAE:

Number of individuals

In the band of 2Rl o 3 A8
Upto HK$1,000,000 75 #51,000,00070 8 A T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 2 7% #2,000,0007T 14
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 72,000,001 2 7% #3,000,0007T 6
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 #3,000,0017T 2 7% #4,000,0007T 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 74,000,001 % 7% #5,000,0007C 2
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 75 #5,000,0017T 2 7% #6,000,0007C 1

* including Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung who has been appointed as executive director of the
Company with effect from 22 March 2013.

Remuneration Policy of the Group

The Group comprises Synergis, a non wholly-subsidiary whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Owing to its separately listing status
and different nature of the business, Synergis’ remuneration review process is
managed separately and is responsible to set its own human resources policies to
reward staff of Synergis and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Synergis Group”).
However, the key functions and accountabilities of the two remuneration
committees for both companies are similar. The human resources policies adopted
by Syenrgis for the year ended 31 December 2012 are disclosed in its annual
report for year 2012.

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the prevailing
market conditions and a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure
that the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
caliber, essential to the successful leadership and effective management of the
Group. The performance measures are balanced between financial and industrial
comparatives. The components of remuneration package are consisted of base
salary, allowances, benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance
and contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary bonus,
participation in share option scheme and long-term rewards.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Policy of the Group (continued)

The remuneration packages of the directors are recommended by the respective
remuneration committees and determined by the respective boards of directors
(and in the case of directors’ fees, subject to respective shareholders’ approval
in general meetings) except that no director or any of his associates is allowed
to make recommendation on or determine his own remuneration package.
Director’s remuneration is determined by reference to each director’s duties and
responsibilities in the Group as well as the overall performance of the respective
company and the Group and the prevailing market situation and competitive in
the industry.

The remuneration packages of the senior management are recommended
by the managing directors of the respective company and determined by the
remuneration committees and approved by the Boards by reference to their
respective responsibilities and accountability, target achievements, business results
and market competitiveness of the Group. The remuneration packages of the
managerial and support staff are determined by the managing directors of the
respective company.

Incentive bonus scheme for each major business segment is set up for senior
management staff and employees with significant contributions to the business
objectives. The scheme is business result oriented and performance based. Share
options are granted to the directors, senior management and other employees
based on individual performance and overall contributions to the Group. The
number and terms of share options granted to each grantee are proposed by the
respective executive directors (except for options granted to their own), reviewed
by respective remuneration committees and approved by respective boards of
directors.

The Group has sought to make the remuneration policy more transparent and
well communicated to its staff. Details of the remuneration payable to each
director of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Board was established in 2011 and is currently
comprised of Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (independent non-executive director) as
chairman, Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him (independent non-executive director) and
Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai as members.

The authority and duties of the nomination committee are set out in its specific
written terms of reference. Full text of the said terms of reference of the
nomination committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The nomination committee is primarily responsible for formulating nomination
policy and leading the process of identifying and nomination suitable candidates.
Its duties are summarised below:

(i) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group's
corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships;

(iiiy  assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; and

(v)  make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors in particular
the chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee shall meet at least once a year. During the year ended
31 December 2012, one committee meeting was held. Attendances of the
meeting have been disclosed earlier in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the nomination committee members
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and made
recommendations to the Board for approval the re-designation and the change of
Board members.
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Board Committees (continued)

Integrity Committee

The integrity committee was established for the purposes of examining integrity-
related matters. Currently, the integrity committee is chaired by Dr. Catherine CHU
(an executive director), and the members of this committee come from various
departments, including Human Resources, Accounts, Internal Audit, Commercial,
etc. The integrity committee reports directly to the audit committee of the
Company. The authority and duties of the integrity committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference as well as the policies, procedures & guidelines
relating to integrity issues.

CSR Working Committee

The CSR working committee was established for the purposes of upholding the
Company'’s social responsibility. Currently, the CSR working committee is chaired
by Mr. Richard Anthony MYRANS, being one of the senior management of the
Company. The authority and duties of the CSR working committee is set out in
its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy. The Company regards CSR at the
forefront of the Company through its active participation in/sponsor community
and charitable activities/events, with the aim to contribute to the society. For more
details, please refer to the Corporate Social Responsibility Report as contained in
this annual report.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate governance
of the Company and performing the corporate governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(i) review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management;

(i) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to the employees and directors; and

(v)  review the Company’s compliance with the code of corporate governance
and disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board adopted (i) the terms of reference of
the nomination committee; (ii) the terms of reference of the Board of Directors—
Corporate Governance Functions; (jii) the revised terms of reference of the audit
committee; (iv) the revised terms of reference of the remuneration committee; (v)
the shareholder communication policy; and (vi) the procedures for shareholders
to propose a person for election as a director of the Company. Besides, the Board
had also reviewed the policies and guidelines of the integrity committee and
compliance report on Listing Rules amendments.
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Delegation to Management

Management Committee

The monitoring of business operations and implementation of business plans
and strategies adopted by the Board are performed by senior executives led
primarily by the executive committee. The management committee for the
Group's operations comprising all the executive directors and key senior executives
was established to oversee the achievement of the Group’s operations. The
management committee holds regular meetings to review and discuss the
Group's performance against budget, business strategy, operational issues, and
matters relating to corporate services including human resources, corporate
communications, and information technology. Other management meetings,
are also held regularly to review and discuss the day-to-day operations and
performance of individual business divisions.

Tender Procedures for Construction Related Business

The directors of the respective business divisions are responsible for reviewing
business opportunities and their associated risks; formulating viable business
models; and deciding the strategy and tactic towards each opportunity. These
directors or the managing director of the construction division, working together
with the estimator, the bid manager or other persons with relevant expertise
continuously review, discuss and approve the various business proposals
submitted.

Policy for Financial Risk Management

The Group adopted a revised policy statement on authorisation and approval
of financial transactions, involving the assessment, booking and monitoring
of financial instruments to hedge exposures to financial risks and in particular,
liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk, with a view to further
strengthening the financial risk management.

Internal Audit

The Group has separate internal audit functions for its principal construction
and related operation and its property management operation, forming part
of its ongoing effort to focus on greater efficiency and to quickly respond to
the management’s concern for the likely problem areas due to their distinctive
business nature. Internal audit adopts a risk and control based audit approach.
The work plans of internal audit are reviewed and endorsed by the respective
audit committees. Examination of the processes, practices and procedures of
internal controls for business operations and corporate functions of the Group
are performed on a regular basis. Internal audit reports containing findings
and recommendations for improvements are submitted to the respective audit
committees for review.

Technical Audit

The technical audit function is overseen by the Contracts Services Department,
which is independent of site operations, aiming at enhancing the production of
quality and error free products in the production process. The technical audit plan
is also formulated by the Contracts Services Department, and the results of the
technical audit together with any recommendation for improvement are reported
to the relevant project director and executive management for necessary action.
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Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group's internal control system and
the assessment and management of risk. In meeting its responsibility, the Board
has defined a management structure with limits of authority that helps achieve
the business objectives; safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information; and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. Such management structure is regularly reviewed to accommodate
the refined business objectives and changing market conditions. The Board also
aims at increasing the risk awareness across the Group's business operations and
hence has put in place policies and procedures that provide a framework for the
identification and management of risk.

Divisional and functional directors are responsible for overseeing their own
business operations and administrative functions respectively. Proper authorisation
procedures are put in place for the approval of significant projects and major
capital investments. Budgets must be approved before adoption and will be
reviewed and monitored regularly. Proper controls are in place for recording
complete, accurate and timely accounting and management information.

The internal audit and technical audit functions described above also represent
two key components of the internal control system of the Group. The internal
audit function provides an independent assurance to the Board and the executive
management on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group on an on-going basis.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group through discussion
with the audit committee on audit findings and control issues. These procedures
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material errors, losses and
fraud, and manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group's operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern basis. With the
support of the accounting and finance functions led by the chief financial officer
and the financial controller of the Group, the directors have ensured that the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies applied consistently
save for those new and amended accounting standards as disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

To the best of knowledge of the directors, there is no uncertainty relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements, announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, the directors aim
at presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
position and prospects. Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the directors to
make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of the external

auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements,
is set out on pages 85 and 86 of this annual report.
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Auditor's Remuneration

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s external
auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out as
follows:
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Services rendered Fees paid/payable

F R ¢ AR 75 Bft EER

HK$'000

BT T

Audit services EZRG 3,682

Non-audit services: HEZIR

— service in connection with the major transaction of the Company *ZIK AEBAIERSFK

and the very substantial acquisition of Synergis TEEEMNIFFERNMBESENIRSE 1,380

— tax services - %Ri‘% 147

— others —E 526

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communications among Board members. The Company Secretary confirmed that
she has complied with all the qualifications and training requirements under the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and

Communications with Shareholders

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
and press releases, updates on the Group's developments are also provided on the
Company'’s website stated below which is updated on a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are welcome through
the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of business at Hsin
Chong Center, 107-109 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2516 6596
(iii) by telephone at (852) 2579 8238
(iv) by email at info@hcg.com.hk

u

(v) on the Company's website at http://www.hsinchong.com under
Contact”
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Shareholders’ Rights, Investor Relations and
Communications with Shareholders (continued)

Annual general meeting is deemed as a forum for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days together with
detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the annual general meeting of the
Company and 10 clear business days for all special general meetings of the
Company. Separate resolution is proposed at annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of each individual director.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting shall have the right, by written requisition served to the Board or
the company secretary, to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of
meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

During the year under review, there has no significant change in the Company’s
Memorandum and Bye-laws.

Continuous Corporate Governance Enhancement

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance enhancement
including giving closer attention to any regulatory changes with a view to
maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics and integrity and increasing
shareholder value as a whole.
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Introduction

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") is an integral part of the culture of the
Company. The Board of Directors, senior management and staff are committed
to the highest ethical standards as well as to conducting business in a responsible
manner and in a way that benefits all stakeholders, the local community and
society at large.

Corporate governance, safety and health, and caring for the environment, for our
people and for the community are the key principles of the Group’s Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy (the “CSR Policy”), which was officially unveiled
in August 2012. The CSR Policy demonstrates the Group’'s commitment to
sustainable business practices and formalises its efforts to bring its activities into
line with I1SO 26000, the international standard on social responsibility.

For the past 10 years, the Group has been awarded a Caring Company by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. In August 2012, the Group won admission
to the HKQAA-HSBC CSR Advocate Index and officially received the CSR
Advocate Mark. The Index provides quantitative metrics for companies to improve
CSR performance and enhance CSR disclosure and stakeholder communication.
The Advocate Mark is in recognition of the Group’s commitment and dedication
to CSR.

Workplace Safety and Health
The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment for
its employees, stakeholders and subcontractors.

Regular monitoring of the work environment and facilities provided for staff
is undertaken to ensure that employees enjoy a safe and healthy working
environment. In-house health and safety professionals conduct regular checks of
all company workplaces for any possible safety issues and audits and testing are
conducted to ensure that the workplace does not harbour any health threats.
Modern amenities are provided to ensure a user-friendly work environment.

The Group implements and properly manages an Occupational Health and
Safety System which has been certified to OHSAS 18001 Standards. The prime
objective is not only to achieve full compliance with relevant statutory and
contractual requirements, but also to adopt viable and progressive practices
initiated by the construction industry. Responsible suppliers, service providers and
subcontractors are selected on the basis of their willingness to work in line with
the Group’s concept of managing health, safety and quality at work. In addition,
all necessary training in occupational health and safety is provided and the Group
renders support to staff and sub-contractors in discharging their daily duties and
responsibilities. Construction Safety Supervisor Courses are conducted bi-monthly
in order to meet the demand for safety professionals at the project sites. A Safety
Practice Handbook, which includes the safety rules and regulations for different
trades as well as guidelines on various safety aspects, was published in 2012 and
widely distributed in order to raise staff awareness of safety issues.

The Group continues to be the recipient of many industry safety awards and is
proud of this acknowledgement of its safety practices.
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Workplace Safety and Health (continued)

Occupational health and safety is the Group's top priority, and the Company
will continue to be vigilant in policing health and safety issues and proactive in
improving its already impressive health and safety record.

Caring for the Environment

The Group recognises the importance of protecting the Earth against modern
ecological challenges and is constantly improving its management practices so
as to minimise negative environmental impacts, reduce waste and maximise
efficiencies. The Group's Environmental Management System, which has been
certified to comply with ISO 14001 International Standards, is implemented across
all its projects and is constantly undergoing refinement and improvement in line
with latest international trends.

At the Group, a number of emissions reduction and energy saving green initiatives
are being carried out on various project sites. A thorough and comprehensive
environmental management system is established on sites throughout the design
and construction stage, ranging from project planning, procurement and materials
usage, on-site construction and management of subcontractors to materials
recycling and reuse. Some major environmental measures implemented on the
construction sites include the use of solar energy and low energy appliances as
well as a range of recycling initiatives. In addition, sub-contractors and suppliers
are encouraged to sign on to our green initiatives and partner with us in creating
a better environment.

One small initiative, launched in 2012, is indicative of the Group's innovative
approach to recycling and waste reduction. The ‘Banners Upcycling Campaign’
has been implemented to transform waste materials into usable products. The
initiative started after noticing that PVC backdrops and posters used in ceremonies
and activities could be salvaged for other uses. Under the campaign, the Group
solicits contributions of banners and works with charitable organisations to
produce and sell reprocessed products, ranging from corsages to handbags and
file-cases.

Another initiative which enjoys widespread support is the in-house Health, Safety
& Environmental Performance Award Scheme, which enhances the Group's
competitive edge by rewarding continuous improvement in occupational safety
and health, environmental protection and hygiene on project sites. Participating
projects are assessed monthly with the awards process providing a gentle
reminder of the need to remain focused on sound environmental practices.
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Caring for and Development of People
The Group, staffed by almost 9,000 employee, believes a vibrant and sustainable
organisation relies on a strong, stable and dedicated workforce.

To further strengthen the Group’s corporate core values and functionalities and
to develop a continuous improvement culture, a Human Resources Steering
Committee (the “Steering Committee”) was formed in 2012 comprising the two
Executive Directors, Division Heads, HR Manager and Learning & Development
Manager. The objectives of the Steering Committee are to provide effective
recruitment planning and an optimal reward system/programme through
resources management as well as an effective performance review system and
talents pipeline for succession planning. A Training Committee has also been
formed to a develop a comprehensive training system and a quality workforce and
to foster a learning culture within the organisation. Full curricula for both technical
and management training programmes have been set up for the Group's
workforce.

Caring for the staff was further augmented over the year with regular company
excursions, staff events and welcoming functions for new staff. A series of lunch-
time talks on subjects such as food therapy, parenting and photography were
organised to assist in fostering a positive work-life balance. Organisational support
is given to the Company sports teams, an initiative that inspires teamwork and a
healthy lifestyle.

Fair Operating Practices

The Group upholds fair operating practices in its contracting with subcontractors
and suppliers through a fair and efficient procurement system, adopting
competitive tendering and subcontractors’ performance monitoring and
reporting. In 2012, accessibility and transparency was improved in this respect by
the revision of the company website to include an open invitation to prospective
subcontractors and suppliers to apply for inclusion on the Group's approved lists.
This provided an open route for registering an interest which can be monitored to
ensure progress and communication and feedback as appropriate.

A review of subcontract and supply contract terms and conditions was
commenced in 2012 that incorporates the objective of ensuring fair operating
practices between the Group and its subcontractors and suppliers enabling the
development of effective and strong partnerships. The review also covers the
potential enhancement of social, ethical, environmental and gender equality
criteria in subcontracts and supply contracts.
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Anti-Corruption

To support the Group's commitment to ethical practices, integrity and good
corporate governance, an Integrity Committee (the “Committee”) was
established in 2012. The Committee is responsible for examining integrity-related
matters and provides an open channel for staff to report suspected cases of
unethical or corrupt practices with regards to the operations and work processes
of the Group as well as inappropriate behaviour which might affect the Group's
reputation. The Committee will investigate all cases and take any necessary action.

The Committee is chaired by an Executive Director, with members of the
Committee coming from various departments such as Human Resources, Internal
Audit, Accounts, Commercial, Administration and Operation. It reports directly to
the Audit Committee. Members of staff can report in confidence, any integrity-
related issue, knowing that their action will be kept strictly confidential.

Community Involvement

The Group continues to invest in the local community by supporting community
projects and charitable services through donations and sponsorships to both
charities and industry-related and professional bodies, as well as organizing
volunteer services to care for the needy and underprivileged.

Over the past year, the Group has supported and provided sponsorship for many
worthwhile community initiatives such as Lighthouse Club charity events, student
scholarships and the HKYWCA charity initiative.

The Group has supported employees in their participation in a number of activities
designed to provide support and comfort to less fortunate members of society.
These activities included providing volunteer services for severely disabled hospital
patients, performing household repairs for Elderly Centre residents and engaging
in coastal clean-ups.
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The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) have pleasure in submitting to
the shareholders their report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are building construction, civil engineering,
electrical and mechanical installation, property development and investment,
provision of property and facility management services and interiors and special
projects. The provision of property and facility management services and interiors
and special projects business are undertaken by Synergis, a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the shares of which are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements and particulars of its jointly
controlled entities are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment Information
Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 87; the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 88 and the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2012 are set out in the consolidated balance
sheet and Company balance sheet on page 89 and page 90 respectively.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 (HK2.5 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2011). Subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the Company, the proposed final
dividend will be paid on Thursday, 4 July 2013 to shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the registers of members of the Company on Tuesday,
25 June 2013 (Hong Kong time).

Together with the interim cash dividend of HK2.5 cents per share already paid,
total dividends for the year will amount to HK5.0 cents per share (2011: HK6.0
cents per share), representing a payout ratio of 28% (2011: 27%) on the earnings
for the financial year.
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Results and Appropriations (continued)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed
final dividend, the registers of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 20 June 2013 to Tuesday, 25 June 2013, both days inclusive (Hong
Kong time), during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend (subject to
members’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting), all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 19 June 2013 (Hong Kong time). The principal share registrar
of the Company is Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited at 26 Burnaby
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
92 and in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years/period and for the year ended 31 December 2012
is set out on page 173. This summary does not form part of the consolidated
financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Properties

A summary of the properties of the Group held for investment/own use/sale and
properties under development as at 31 December 2012 is set out on pages 179
and 180.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2012, calculated
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
HK$766,282,000 (2011: HK$462,631,000).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although there
is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up
to the date of this report were:

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
(re-designated as Chairman and
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 July 2012)

Executive Directors

Dr. Catherine CHU

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung (appointed on 22 March 2013)
Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho (retired on 1 October 2012)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him

Mr. Alexander MAK Kwai-wing

The brief biographical details of the directors of the Company who are in office as
at the date of this report are set out on pages 24 to 30 of this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-law 98(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai,
Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung shall retire by rotation
but, being eligible, have offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2013
annual general meeting of the Company. Besides, in accordance with Bye-law
101(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Joseph CHOI Kin-hung, who was appointed by the
Board as an executive director of the Company with effect from 22 March 2013,
shall also retire from office, but being eligible, has offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the Company. Save for the
aforesaid, the other remaining directors of the Company would continue in office.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), and considers that all the independent non-executive
directors are independent in accordance with the terms of the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors of the Company offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming 2013 annual general meeting of the Company have entered
into a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding
companies was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of directors” emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERTHRAEAKRETLAFTIREANEZEZ
Bin - RN REFPRBZIHEIRKRE

REZ——F+-A=+—B REBEFLPEED ([F
M HIEED ) 321N ARIETFEZERMATARC
8 HRE ETRBIER T FEARM (LB TAESE
TRFRZNRETA) (MHRETR])ERMARE R
BXFT ARBREZRITRERRBEEZBHEARER
A EEARBER (E& R ERLPERGIFEXVE) 2
Bty B D RESFTHEE 2R ORB T

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RELEIRGEEBRGZIFE
Percentage of
Number of interest in the
Number of underlying issued share
Name of directors Capacity shares held shares held Total capital
HERT
BRZ BRZzHEA BEz
ERER 13 Ein&HE Ein&H @&t ERESH
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BfFzE1) (BffEE2)
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai Beneficial owner 20,000,000 5,000,000 25,000,000 2.64%
FRE EmfEEA
Interest of controlled corporations 143,000,000 496,215,686 639,215,686 67.40%
XA E (Note 3)
(Pf5E3)
Catherine CHU Beneficial owner 790,000 2,000,000 2,790,000 0.29%
KER EmfEE A
Barry John BUTTIFANT Beneficial owner - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.34%
2K EmfEB A
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%
KR EmfEEA
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%
NEx = EHEAA
Abraham SHEK Lai-him Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%
VabE EmfEiE A
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.11%

EEHK

BaEBA
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

(1) Except for 496,215,686 underlying shares held by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai as disclosed
under note (3), the interests in the underlying shares represented share options granted
pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 22 May 2008. Details of
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EERTHRARRETLAFIREEANEZEZ
R HRRNRARGFHERZIESGRKE

(&)

RELXERGRIFGRIGZIFE (&

B 5 -

(1) BRISFEQ)ATHNEE T 518 5 A T A #9496,215,686 % 18 B4 1% 15 1

@y BRI P EA 2B DERBARAR 2T /N\FH
A=+ AERM 2z B BIR 2 R - K b 2 SRR =

share option granted are set out below: BT
Number of
options held as at Exercise price

Name of directors 31 December 2012 per share Exercisable period

R_B—_F T

+=-A=+—H BERITERE (dd/mm/yyyy)

EERR BERRERE (HKS ##¥T) (8B /%)

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 2,500,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018

TufE 2,500,000 2.13 01/01/2010 — 22/05/2018

Catherine CHU 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2011 - 03/12/2019

KER 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2012 - 03/12/2019

Barry John BUTTIFANT 1,200,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018

KA 1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2012 — 25/04/2021

1,000,000 1.70 26/04/2013 — 25/04/2021

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
K

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 — 22/05/2018
WiEE

Abraham SHEK Lai-him 1,000,000 2.13 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
AtER

Alexander MAK Kwai-wing 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2010 — 03/12/2019

EER

) There were 948,349,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2012.

(3)  Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 July 2011 entered into by Hsin Chong Property
Holdings Limited (“HCPHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with, among
others, Neo Summit Limited (“Neo Summit”), a company is deemed to be controlled by Mr.
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai under the SFO, HCPHL acquired a land site at a consideration of
HK$1,828 million. The Company issued 143,000,000 shares and convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$759,210,000 as part of the consideration for a land site in Tieling,
Liaoning Province, China on 18 November 2011. The convertible bonds are convertible into
a maximum of 496,215,686 shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.53 per share. Mr.
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai is deemed to be interested in these underlying shares under Part XV
of the SFO.

*  for identification purposes only (£ {355

Q@ ARAARZZ-—ZF+ZA=ZF+—BZEETRNHA
948,349,662/ °

(B) REARAFZEHAME A FHsin Chong Property Holdings
Limited ¥ 2 EZERAR 2 E ([FEMEER])E (KA
&) Neo Summit Limited (¥TIERAR*) ([¥71%]  BIEFES
REIE R ZARIWR AR ERESEESD L —HBEHA
—E——FtAZTEBRZHE FEMERERIKE —ER
KRB ABE1E1,828,000,0007T R =T ——F+—A+/\A K
A E)E17143,000,0000% 0% 17 K A8 58 4 75 #6759,210,0007T #9 AT
BIRES  (ERUEPBRIESZREERAMABOHNRE - RRE
FAR AP SR BB 5370 K i A 5 %496,215,686/% %
P IRBHEF KRB RIIEXVE  TRELERRRNZENE
B A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s Interests and Short EFR{ITREZERFTLAFREEREIEZ
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and BR{7 -{fiRRMARESFHIRAEZEERIER
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated (%)

Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the debentures of the Company RELFEFCFE
Approximate
percentage
Number of interest
Amount of underlying in the issued
Name of director Capacity debenture shares held share capital
BREZ HERTEREFZ
ExEpR S8 "HEEHE HERGEA HHhEsast
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai Interest of controlled corporation HK$759,210,000 496,215,686 52.32%
T HE AR 75%759,210,0007T
Note: Bt 5 :

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by HCPHL with Neo Summit on 27 July 2011 to acquire the ~ RIEFT EMEZEREHER T ——F+ A - Tt AGGUWREFBEES
land site in Tieling, Liaoning Province, China, the Company issued convertible bonds in the principal & &1 48 FA 0 ATET S 69 35k - AR A RIEE1T AN & 88 A8 16759,210,0007T 2
amount of HK$759,210,000 as part of the consideration to Neo Summit. The convertible bonds ~ FI#RARE % - 1E R MAIFTIE 2 8 FHH (B o AT RARE 5 Al IR 9] 25 K44
are convertible into a maximum of 496,215,686 shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.53 per B A& ¥ 1.537T 3 40 /5 5% £496,215,686[% I 1) < 1R 1578 75 K HI &
share. Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in these debentures under Part XV of the SFO. BIEXVED EREHRARZEEFTHEAER -

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated ~ HBF 2 EIAWEZEZRERIGHRNDZITFE
corporations of the Company
As at 31 December 2012, Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai, Dr. Catherine CHU and RZZE—Z—F+-_A=+—H0 FTHELE KERET

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT has the following interests in Synergis: REBKRNLBLNFTEETEPEEATEZ:

Number of Number of Approximate

ordinary share options percentage of

Name of directors Capacity shares held outstanding Total shareholding

BFRZLRER RITEZ 15848

EEgS 513 e MR iE® B st #nhaastt

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai Beneficial owner 14,420,000 2,000,000 16,420,000 4.95%
THRE BEHERA

Catherine CHU Beneficial owner - 900,000 900,000 0.27%
KER BHERA

Barry John BUTTIFANT Beneficial owner - 300,000 300,000 0.09%
2R BamEE A
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short EERTTHREBREXTLAFRAEREZEZ
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and B3 -HRABROREFIHEEZEERREE
Debentures of the Company and Its Associated (%)

Corporations (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the associated ~ K& 2 EItHEZBZ R RIAMBRBZIFE (&)
corporations of the Company (continued)

Details of share options held: FAZBRERFS:
Number of Exercise price

Name of directors share options held per share Exercisable period
BETER fTE
(HKS$) (dd/mm/yyyy)
EENR BHRRENE (B%xT) (8B %)
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 400,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
THE 400,000 0.82 25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2013 — 24/09/2015
400,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015
Catherine CHU 180,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2015
PN 180,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2013 — 24/09/2015
180,000 0.82 25/09/2014 — 24/09/2015
Barry John BUTTIFANT 100,000 0.82 25/09/2010 — 24/09/2013
2R 100,000 0.82 25/09/2011 — 24/09/2013
100,000 0.82 25/09/2012 — 24/09/2013

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors and chief B EXFTEBEEIN R=E—=—F+-_A=+—8 £&AK
executive of the Company or their associates had any interests or short positions Al & EE MITHAH IEE 2 BHEABMERN R AR K E
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its  {EfR[AEENEE (F & R FEH KB EEFIEXVELD) 2 B&Hm -
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded 188 B 17 [ & 5 A (T (Al b o K 2B 1 50 SR AR I 35
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO % R HAE (K I E352{EAR A RIAFHFE 2 & MR - 8iR
or otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange — {EIZ2E=FBIIZEE AR R 7 KBt 2y o

pursuant to the Model Code.
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Share Option Schemes

2008 Option Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 22
May 2008 (the “2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme,
the directors may, at their absolute discretion, grant options to eligible persons (as
defined in the rules of the 2008 Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia,
any employee, executive director, non-executive director and independent non-
executive director of the Company or its subsidiaries. A summary of the rules of
the 2008 Option Scheme is set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme
(@) Purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2008 Option Scheme is to provide an Eligible
Person (as defined below) with the opportunity to acquire equity
securities in the Company, thus enabling them to participate in the
prosperity of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/or any invested
entity (which refers to any entity in which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries holds any equity interest) (“Invested Entity”) and
consequently such opportunity is an incentive for such Eligible Person
to contribute further to the success of the Company and/or its any
subsidiary and/or any Invested Entity.

(b) Participants of the 2008 Option Scheme
The Board (or a duly authorised committee thereof) shall, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant option to any person
(“Eligible Person”) belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”):

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Company,
any of its subsidiary or any Invested Entity, including any
executive director of the Company, its subsidiary or any Invested
Entity and for the avoidance of doubt, including any employee
employed or to be employed by the Company, any of its
subsidiary or any Invested Entity in The People’s Republic of
China;

(i) any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiary or any
Invested Entity; or

(i) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary
objects) of which includes any of the persons mentioned in
subparagraphs (i) and (i) above.

() Maximum number of Shares available for issue under the 2008
Option Scheme
The maximum number of Shares available for further grant of options
under the 2008 Option Scheme (together with Shares to be allotted
under the 2002 Share Scheme described below) shall not exceed
62,999,966 Shares, representing approximately 6.06% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the 2008 Option Scheme (continued)
(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under the 2008

(e)

()

(9

(h)

Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in any 12-month
period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total number
of Shares already issued to such Eligible Person under all the options
previously granted to him/her which have been exercised and, issuable
to him/her under all the options previously granted to him/her which
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of
the total number of issued Shares on the last date of such 12-month
period unless approval by the shareholders in a general meeting with
such Eligible Person and his/her associates abstaining from voting has
been obtained.

Period for and consideration payable upon acceptance of an
option

An offer for the grant of option must be accepted within the time
period specified in the relevant offer letter. A sum of HK$10.00 is
payable as consideration upon acceptance of the offer. Such amount
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price for Shares shall be a price to be determined by
the Board and notified to each grantee but shall not be less than the
highest of:

()  the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date, which must be a
business day; and

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the offer date, which must be a
business day,

provided that in the event of fractional prices, the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option must be
held before exercise pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme. The
commencement date of the period during which an option may be
exercised shall be determined by the Board and specified in the offer
letter in respect of the option.

Remaining life

The 2008 Option Scheme shall remain in effect for a period of 10
years commencing from 22 May 2008, its date of adoption, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) OB MERE ()

2008 Option Scheme (continued) T/ FEZRENE (E)

(20 Movements under the 2008 Option Scheme 2 —ZZEENFRAREFTE T 22
Details of movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during RZEENFRREAE TRRERFERNZEE R
the year and the share options outstanding as at the beginning and end of RENRFRZ RITERBEFBAT

the year are as follows:

Number of Number of
share share
options . options
Held as at Changes during the year held as at Exercise
Date of 1 January FhzED 31 December price
Name of participants grant 2012 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2012 per share Exercisable period
RZB-Z RIB-Z
-B-H +ZR=1+-8
bz Fd 4. biird
BEALER RHAM #®A g fifE %% 3] AL BRITER TR
(dd/mmiyyyy) (HKS) (dd/mmyyyy)
(B/R/%) (B%T) (B/R/%)
Directors
f
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 23/05/2008 2,500,000 - = B - 2,500,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
THR 23/05/2008 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000 213 01/0122010- 22/052018
Catherine CHU 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 102 04/1272011-03/1212019
RER 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - = - - 1,000,000 1.02 04/12/2012 - 03/12/2019
Barry John BUTTIFANT 23/05/2008 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
2N 26/04/2011 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 170 26/04/2012 - 25/04/2021
26/04/2011 1,000,000 - - = B 1,000,000 170 26/04/2013 - 25/04/2021
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin 23/05/2008 1,000,000 = - = - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
KER
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
iR
Abraham SHEK Lai-him 23/05/2008 1,000,000 . - - - 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
B
Alexander MAK Kwal-wing 04/12/2009 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 102 04/12/2010-03/122019
RER
Ex-director
HEES
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho 23/05/2008 1,000,000 - - - . 1,000,000 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
RER 01/092011 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 129 300092011 - 31/08/2021
01/092011 1,000,000 - = B - 1,000,000 129 30092012 - 31/08/2021
Employees 23/05/2008 4,999,997 - = (333,333) - 4,666,664 213 01/01/2009 - 22/05/2018
&R 23/05/2008 4,999,998 - - (333333 - 4,666,665 213 01/01/2010 - 22/052018
(in aggregate) 23/05/2008 5,000,005 - - (333,334) - 4,666,671 213 01/01/2011 - 22/05/2018
(#zt) 04/12/2009 423,997 - - - - 423,997 102 04/1212010-03/12/2019
04/12/2009 2,750,000 - - . B 2,750,000 1.02 04/12/2011 - 03/12/2019
04/12/2009 2,750,003 - - - - 2,750,003 102 041212012 -03/1212019
01/0922011 166,666 - - - = 166,666 129 30/09/2011 - 31/08/2021
01/092011 916,667 - - - - 916,667 129 30/09/2012 - 31/08/2021
01/09/22011 916,667 - - - - 916,667 129 30/09/2013 - 31/08/2021
01/092011 750,000 - - - - 750,000 129 30/09/2014 - 31/08/2021
40,874,000 - - 1,000,000 - 39,874,000
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Synergis Share Option Scheme

A Synergis Share Option Scheme (the “Synergis Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the shareholders of Synergis, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis Option Scheme, the board of
directors of Synergis (the “Synergis Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, make
an offer to grant share option to any person belonging to any of the following
classes of participants to subscribe for Synergis Shares.

(1) Summary of the Synergis Option Scheme

(@) Purpose of the Synergis Option Scheme
The Synergis Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of recognizing
and motivating the contribution of the Synergis Eligible Persons (as
defined below) to Synergis and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or any
Synergis Invested Entity (as defined below).

(b)

Participants of the Synergis Option Scheme
Synergis Eligible Persons entitled to participate in the Synergis Option
Scheme (" Synergis Eligible Persons”) include:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of Synergis,
any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in which Synergis or any
of its subsidiaries holds an equity interest (“Synergis Invested
Entity”); including any executive director of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity and any employee
employed or to be employed by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Synergis Invested Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The
People’s Republic of China (“PRC");

any non-executive director (including any independent non-
executive director) of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Synergis Invested Entity;

any shareholder of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any
Synergis Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested
Entity who has, in the opinion of the Synergis Board, made
contribution to the business growth of Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or
any Synergis Invested Entity;
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)
(1)  Summary of the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Participants of the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)
(v) any supplier of goods and/or services to Synergis, any of its
subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity;

(vi) any business collaborator, business consultant, joint venture
or business partner, or technical, financial, legal and other
professional advisers engaged by Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Synergis Invested Entity;

(vii) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the directors
or the substantial shareholders of Synergis, any of its subsidiaries
or any Synergis Invested Entity who has, in the opinion of the
Synergis Board, made contribution to the business growth of
Synergis, any of its subsidiaries or any Synergis Invested Entity; or

(viii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Synergis Board, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the discretionary

objects) of which includes any of the abovementioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Synergis Option Scheme, the share
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by one or
more of the above Synergis Eligible Persons.

Maximum number of Synergis Shares available for issue under
the Synergis Option Scheme

The maximum number of Synergis Shares available for further grant
of share options under the Synergis Option Scheme shall not exceed
30,050,000 Synergis Shares, representing 9.05% of the issued share
capital of Synergis at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Synergis Eligible Person under
the Synergis Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Synergis Eligible Person in any
12-month period which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of Synergis Shares already issued to such Synergis Eligible
Person under all the share options previously granted to him/her
which have been exercised and, issuable to him/her under all the
share options previously granted to him/her which are for the time
being subsisting and unexercised, exceeding 1% of the share capital
of Synergis in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
being approved by the shareholders of Synergis in general meeting.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued)
(1) Summary of the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)
(d) Maximum entitlement of each Synergis Eligible Person under

(e)

)

the Synergis Option Scheme (continued)

Where any proposed grant of share option to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of Synergis, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would result in
the Synergis Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted (including share options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the proposed grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of
Synergis Shares in issue for the time being; and

(i) the aggregate value of which, based on the closing price of the
Synergis Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets on the date of the proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0
million, such proposed grant of share option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of Synergis in general meeting
in which all connected persons for the time being of Synergis (if
any) (except where any connected person intends to vote against
the proposed grant of share option and his/her intention to do
so has been stated in the circular) shall abstain from voting at
such general meeting and at which any vote taken shall be taken
on a poll.

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of a share option must be accepted by a Synergis
Eligible Person (and by no other person except the Synergis Eligible
Person) in respect of all the Synergis Shares for which the offer is
made. Acceptance shall be made by such Synergis Eligible Person by
signing and returning the duplicate of the offer letter together with
the payment of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to Synergis
within the time period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the Subscription price for Synergis
Shares

The subscription price in respect of any share option granted under
the Synergis Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the
Synergis Board and notified to each grantee and shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of a Synergis Share; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Synergis Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which an offer for grant of a
share option (the “Synergis Offer Date"”) is made to a Synergis Eligible
Person; and (jii) the closing price of the Synergis Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the Synergis Offer Date
which must be a business day, provided that the subscription price
shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) SOBRMERTE ()

Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued) HEETHEBRENE (Z)

(1) Summary of the Synergis Option Scheme (continued) (1) FEEEBRETEZHE (8)

(9) Minimum period for holding an option before exercise
There is no minimum holding period for which a share option must
be held before exercise pursuant to the Synergis Option Scheme. The
commencement date of a share option period shall be specified by the
Synergis Board in the relevant offer letter.

(h) Remaining life
The Synergis Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing from 19 September 2003, its date of adoption
of the Synergis Option Scheme, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the rules of the Synergis Option Scheme.

(2) Movements under the Synergis Option Scheme (2
Details of movements in the share options under the Synergis Option
Scheme during the year and the share options outstanding at the beginning
and end of the year are as follows:

() BRETRIRHFEZREHR

(h)

BB EEIRBEIE 8 BARERITER L
BERAREAR -TTEHNRBESHNEE
BEERNBBENXNTRIEE -

B THIR
BRENEEREBRETE ZHA T AR
Sh- EEEBIE SR _TT=FNATN
B (BIERM B 8 5t +F IR AR R
B

HEEEBRESET 228
RIEEERBEETE TERERFANZESH RN
FNRFRZRITERBBEFBOT

Number of Number of
share share
options Changes during the year options
held as at held as at Exercise
Date of 1 January 31 December price
Name of participants grant 2012 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2012 per share Exercisable period
:S-:ﬁ9 :5-:39
-A-H +ZA=+-8
BAZ [EZ
BHALER RHAM RRiEnE i i %% HH# RRERE BRITER i
(d/mmAyyy) (HKS) (dd/mmyyy)
(B/R/%) (B¥T) (B/R/%)
Directors of Synergis
HEEEES
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai 250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820 25092010 - 24/09/2015
THR 25/09/2009 400,000 - - = B 400,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24092015
250972009 400,000 - - - - 400,000 0.820 25/09/2013 - 24/092015
25/09/2009 400,000 - - = B 400,000 0.820 25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
FAN Cheuk-hung 250972009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092015
Ll 25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
250972009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/092015
250972009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820 25/09/2013 - 24/092015
25/09/2009 300,000 - - - - 300,000 0.820 25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
01/09/2011 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.760 01/09/2012 - 31/08/2015
01/09/2011 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.760 01/09/2013 - 31/08/2015
01/09/22011 500,000 - - - - 500,000 0.760 01/09/2014 - 31/08/2015
Catherine CHU 25/09/2009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092015
BB 25/09/2009 180,000 - - = B 180,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/09/2015
250972009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820 25092012 - 24/09/2015
250972009 180,000 - - - - 180,000 0.820 25/09/2013 - 24/092015
25/09/2009 180,000 - - = B 180,000 0.820 25/09/2014 - 24/09/2015
Tenniel CHU 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092013
RER 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/092013
250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/092013
Barry John BUTTIFANT 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
2hHA 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/092013
250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/092013
Stephen IP Shu-kwan 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/092013
320 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2011 - 24/092013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
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Share Option Schemes (continued) OB HERE ()
Synergis Share Option Scheme (continued) HETHEEREHE (&)
(2) Movements under the Synergis Option Scheme (continued) (2 HEEEBRESNEAT 225 (5)
Number of Number of
share share
options Changes during the year options )
held as at EhzEH held as at Exercise
Date of 1 January 31 December price
Name of participants grant 2012 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2012 per share Exercisable period
3 3
Ig8-Z% Ig-Z%
-A-H +ZA=+-H
BEZ BEZ
SEALER RHAM kRiEnE it i %% i ] RhRiEng SRITER fHEs
(ddimmvyyyy) (HKS) (dd/mmdyyyy)
(B/R/%) (B%T) (B/B/%)
KAN Fook-yee 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
ELE 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 = B - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/09/2013
WONG Tsan-kwong 250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092010 - 24/09/2013
BRK 25/09/2009 100,000 = - - B 100,000 0.820 25/09/72011 - 24/09/2013
25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 250972012 - 24/09/2013
David YU Hon-to 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2013
BER 25/09/2009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092011 - 24/09/2013
250972009 100,000 - - - - 100,000 0.820 25092012 - 24/09/2013
Employees 250972009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820 25092010 - 24/09/2015
&R 25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820 25092011 - 24/09/2015
(in aggregate) 25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) B 720,000 0.820 25/09/2012 - 24/09/2015
(#3t) 25/09/2009 870,000 - - (150,000) - 720,000 0.820 25092013 - 24/09/2015
250972009 870,000 - - (150,000 - 720,000 0.820 25092014 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 . B - - 60,000 0.996 25/09/2010 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 250972011 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 25092012 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 = - - B 60,000 0.996 25/09/2013 - 24/09/2015
28/06/2010 60,000 - - - - 60,000 0.99 25092014 - 24/09/2015
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860 07/06/2012 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 = - (420,000) B 330,000 0.860 07/06/2013 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860 07/06/2014 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 - - (420,000) - 330,000 0.860 07/06/2015 - 06/06/2017
07/06/2011 750,000 = - (420,000) B 330,000 0.860 07/06/2016 - 06/06/2017
16,100,000 - - (2,850,000) - 13,250,000
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Employee Share Subscription Scheme

An employee share subscription scheme was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company on 23 August 2002 (the “2002 Share Scheme”). Pursuant to the
2002 Share Scheme, the directors may make offers to subscribe for shares of
the Company to full time employees and executive directors (excluding non-
executive directors) of the Group ("“the Group” in the context describing the 2002
Share Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it under the rules of the 2002
Share Scheme) who have worked for the Group for a period of not less than six
months immediately before the commencement of any operating period whereas
operating period refers to every six-month period either from 1 January to 30 June
or from 1 July to 31 December.

During the year, no share of the Company was issued and allotted pursuant to the
2002 Share Scheme.

Reference was made by the Company’s announcement dated 21 August 2012,
the 2002 Share Scheme had expired on 23 August 2012.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

During the year, the Company operated a share option scheme and an employee
share subscription scheme (up to 23 August 2012) pursuant to which options and
offers may be granted and made to the directors of the Company for subscription
of shares in the Company. Certain directors of the Company, being also directors
of Synergis, are also eligible to participate in the Synergis Share Option Scheme
pursuant to which they may be granted options for subscription of shares in
Synergis. Details of the 2008 Option Scheme, the Synergis Share Option Scheme,
and the 2002 Share Scheme and their respective movements are set out in the
paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes” and “Employee Share Subscription
Scheme” above. Further details of options granted and/or shares allotted or
transferred to the directors of the Company are disclosed in the paragraph
entitled “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations” and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin was the
director of Mission Hills Golf Club Limited (“MHGCL"). The principal businesses
of MHGCL and its subsidiaries (other than the Group) comprise, among other
things, property development (the “Excluded Business”) and property and facility
management services (the “Relevant Business”). As such, Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-
kin was regarded as having interest in these competing businesses of the Group.
The Excluded Business was operated and managed by MHGCL with independent
management and administration. On this basis, the Directors believe that the
Group is capable of carrying on its property development business independently
of the Excluded Business and at arm’s length from the Excluded Business. On
the other hand, the size of the Relevant Business is insignificant when compared
with the size of the property and facility management services of the Group, it
is unlikely that the Relevant Business may compete with the property and facility
business of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company were interested
in any business apart from the Group's business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2012.

Changes in Directors’ Biographical Details

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of Directors’
biographical details since the date of last interim report of the Company are set
out as follows:

Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
e  ceased to act as the chairman of the Court and Council of the Hong Kong
Baptist University with effect from 1 January 2013

o ceased to act as a Deputy to The National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China

Dr. Catherine CHU
e the service agreement was renewed for a term of 3 years commencing from
1 January 2013 to and including 31 December 2015

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

o being a person distinguished in eminence and by attainments, Dr.
Buttifant was admitted to the degree of Honorary Doctorate of Business
Administration (Honoris Causa) by Edinburgh Napier University in February
2013
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Changes in Directors’ Biographical Details (continued)

Dr. Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

o appointed as a National Committee Member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference

Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai-him
o appointed as an independent non-executive director of Lai Fung Holdings
Limited with effect from 19 December 2012

o appointed as an independent non-executive director of Jetstar Hong Kong
Airways Limited with effect from 28 February 2013

Hon. Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung
o appointed as a non-official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
on 17 October 2012

e  ceased to act as a member of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of
Independent Commission Against Corruption with effect from 1 January
2013

o ceased to act as a member of the Steering Committee on Community Card
Fund with effect from 1 January 2013

Updated biographical details of the Company’s directors are set out on pages 24
to 30 of this annual report.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights

On 11 November 2011, the Company issued zero coupon convertible bonds (the
"Zero Coupon CB") with a principal amount of HK$759,210,000 in settlement of
the acquisition of land sites in Tieling. The Zero Coupon CB are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and will be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount on 17
November 2018. The Zero Coupon CB entitles the holders to convert into Shares
at any time between the date of issue and 17 November 2018 at a conversion
price of HK$1.53 per Share.

On 19 June 2012, the Company issued 135,000,000 warrants (the “First
Warrants”) to confer rights entitling the holders to subscribe for up to
HK$135,000,000 in aggregate in cash at HK$1.00 per Share (subject to
adjustment) during the period from the date of issue to the date falling on the
first anniversary of the issue of the First Warrants.

On 3 August 2012, the Company further issued 54,000,000 warrants (the
"Second Warrants”) to confer rights entitling the holders to subscribe for up
to HK$54,000,000 in aggregate in cash at HK$1.00 per Share (subject to
adjustment) during the period from the date of issue to the date falling on the
first anniversary of the issue of the Second Warrants.
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Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar
Rights (continued)

On 15 August 2012, the Company also issued the 4% coupon convertible bonds
due 2013 (the “"4% CB") in an aggregate principal amount of HK$49 million at
an initial conversion price of HK$1.00 per Share (subject to adjustment) at which
the holders of the 4% CB may subscribe for the new Share(s) during the period
commencing on the date of issue and expiring on the date immediately following
twelve months after the first issue of the 4% CB.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, an aggregate amount of
HK$2,000,000 of 4% CB were converted into 2,000,000 Shares at the conversion
price of HK$1.00 per Share.

Save as above and other than the 2008 Option Scheme and the 2002 Share
Scheme described in the paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes” and
"Employee Share Subscription Scheme” above and the convertible bonds
and warrants set out in notes 29, 33 and 34(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company had no other outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights as at 31 December 2012. Other than those
disclosed above and in notes 29, 33 and 34(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participated defined contribution retirement schemes during the year.
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 2(s)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the following
substantial shareholders (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

RELXEIRGBEIEHBRBEIHE

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Percentage of
interest in the

Number of issued share Number of
Name of shareholders Capacity shares held capital underlying shares
HERTEREZ
BERARE 47 BHERHEAE gaasl HAKGEE
(Note ii)
gD,
The estate of the deceased Interests of controlled corporations 375,921,240 39.64% -
Dr. David CHU Shu-ho
EMABRELT 2 EE RyEEE S
Upper Luck Holdings Limited Interests of controlled corporations 375,921,240 39.64% -
(“Upper Luck”) S ABE R (Note i)
(M=ED)
MHGCL Interests of controlled corporation 375,921,240 39.64% -
SRz SiEEE (Note i)
(H=ED)
Carrick Worldwide Limited Beneficial owner 375,921,240 39.64% -
("Carrick”) ERBEEA (Note i)
(B &Ei)
Neo Summit Beneficial owner 143,000,000 15.08% 496,215,686
i E=mEBA (Note iii)
(B i )
MA Kwing, Pony Interest in controlled corporation 143,000,000 15.08% 496,215,686
51 S B s (Note iii)
( B i )
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

(continued)
Notes:

(i) Carrick is a wholly-owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of MHGCL. MHGCL
is a wholly-owned subsidiary and hence a controlled corporation of Upper Luck. Upper Luck
is under the estate of the deceased David CHU Shu-ho. By virtue of the SFO, each of the
estate of the deceased David CHU Shu-ho, Upper Luck and MHGCL were deemed to be
interested in the same lot of 375,921,240 shares held by Carrick in the Company as at 31
December 2012.

(i) There were 948,349,662 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2012.

(iii) Neo Summit is owned by (a) Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited as to 28.89%; (b) Summit
View Holdings Limited as to 13.33%; (c) Jones Capital Investments Limited as to 28.89%;
and (d) Becl World Holding Ltd as to 28.89%. Pinnacle State Real Estate Limited is indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai. Summit View Holdings Limited is owned as
to 50% by Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai and 50% by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony. Jones Capital
Investments Limited is wholly-owned by Ms. MA Kwing, Pony. As such, Neo Summit
is deemed to be controlled corporation of Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai and Ms. MA
Kwing, Pony under the SFO. Mr. Wilfred WONG Ying-wai’s interest is disclosed under the
section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interest and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than persons who were directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transaction

During the year, the Company announced the group reorganisation and
realignment of business activities to dispose of the interiors and special projects
business (the “ISP Business”) to Synergis at a consideration of HK$224 million.
The consideration was satisfied by way of cash of HK$180 million and allotment
of 58,666,667 convertible preference shares at an issue price of HK$0.75 per
share at completion on 30 November 2012. As a term of the sale and purchase
agreement, the vendors had given a guarantee that the aggregate amount of the
net profit or loss after tax of the ISP Business will not be less than HK$28 million
for the financial year ended 31 December 2012. If the actual profit is HK$30
million or more, Synergis will allot and issue 21,333,333 convertible preference
shares to the vendor or its nominee. Base on the management accounts of the ISP
Business, the actual profit exceeds HK$30 million, Synergis will issue 21,333,333
convertible preference shares within 30 days of the date of guarantee certificate
to be issued by the auditor of the Company.
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Connected Transaction (continued)

Synergis is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company where Carrick, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, is directly interested in approximately
17.42% of the issued share capital of Synergis. Hence, Synergis is regarded as
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction
constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the connected transaction
mentioned above.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company and/or its subsidiaries
had entered into (or continued to be a party to) the following continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the annual review and reporting
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these continuing
connected transactions are set out below:

(A) Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements

Deventer Limited (“Deventer”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as landlord entered into the Tenancy Agreement and Carpark Agreements.
The ownership of Hsin Chong Center had been changed from Deventer
to Cogent Spring Limited (“Cogent Spring”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to the assignment made between Deventer
and Cogent Spring on 4 July 2011. Cogent Spring is the landlord of Hsin
Chong Center as from 4 July 2011 and the tenancy agreement entered into
between Deventer and SMS on 17 December 2010 had been assigned to
Cogent Spring on 4 July 2011. The annual cap for the Tenancy Agreement
and the Carpark Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2012
was HK$1,800,000. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcement dated 17 December 2010 of the Company.

REXH (&)

MEETBARNNREEEHENBAR MARRZEE
R Carrick EEF B EEEA17.42% 2 B 3TIRA
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(A) HERBBRRFESHE

AKRABZ2EHBWNEBE QR Deventer Limited
([Deventer |)fERZE - 5137 T E Rz RIEEI51H
% ° IR K Deventer B2 K A 7] 2 & # A M8 2 &) Cogent
Spring Limited ([ Cogent Spring | ) R =Z——F+t A
PO B RIS 2 ek » #T& H 0 2 ¥ 6 7 FA Deventeri$ %
Z Cogent Spring ° Cogent SpringE —Z——F -+ AT
A A# & F D2 %= - MDeventerf2 3 & & 12 IR 75
R-E—ZF+-A+tAfIuZHERHER =
T——F+ AP AER ZE Cogent Spring ° & %
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ZFE LR ABE1,800,0007T X B FIEEHEER
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Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person’s interest
HEAL hEaMa KRR 23 FERE MWEALZHEGRERER
Synergis Management Services  Tenancy Agreement 3 years from Lease of portion of 5th Floor HK$1,347,333.00  SMS is a wholly-owned subsidiary
Limited (“SMS") as tenant dated 17 December 1 January 2011 to and portion of 10th Floor of Synergis, a non wholly-
2010 31 December 2013 of Hsin Chong Center, owned subsidiary of the
107-109 Wai Yip Street, Company where Carrick,
Kwun Tong a substantial shareholder
MEEERBEBERAT ARR-_Z2-ZF =FRIE—F HEBRERZE107-1005%  711,347,333.007T of the Company, is directly
([FEERRK]) - TZAtTtEZ —A—REZE HERLSEBHEER holding 17.42% of Synergs.
tERTP HERZ —Z-=fF 10 HER Hence, Synergis and SMS are
+=A=1+—-H connected persons under the
Listing Rules.
SMS as tenant Two Carpark On monthly term Lease of 11 car parking HK$258,70400 HEEEREARNAFELE
Agreements dated commencing from spaces located in Hsin EENBLARNEEE 28
1 April 2005 1 April 2005 Chong Center BEMBAR MARAEE
MEERRY rREP WABBAZZZRF B-_ZTRFNA-RAE MAENEHLVERER 7 1258,704.007 BRCanickEEHAEEE
mA—HH BAHE 17.02% 2 ez L - 1R4R
FESHE ERA HEERRME

EERBABEAL:
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(B)

©

General Business Services Agreement

The Company entered into a General Business Services Agreement with
Synergis pursuant to which the Synergis Group is the service provider. The
annual cap for the General Business Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2012 was HK$9,500,000. Details of the General Business
Services Transaction were disclosed in the announcements dated 10
December 2009 and 10 February 2011 of the Company.
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Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s)  Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person'’s interest
WEAL 1 1=k HR i3 FERE WEALCHESKEREE
Synergis General Business 3 years from provision of property and HK$7,047,556.33  Synergis is a connected person
Services Agreement 1 January 2010 to facility management under the Listing Rules.
dated 10 December 31 December 2012 services, cleaning services
2009 and miscellaneous
services by relevant
members of the Synergis
Group to relevant
members of the Group
MEER BHAZZTNE =F hZT-TF MEERSBAMKERT  B¥7075563B3T  RELHRA FEEEAMEE
TZAtTHZ —A—-B% AL ERBNE QA Ate
—REBREHE -2—= REDENREEER
+=A=1+—A 1% BRI AR

The General Business Services Agreement has been renewed on 27
September 2012 for 3 years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.
Details of which were disclosed in the announcement dated 27 September
2012.

Service Agreement

The Company entered into the Service Agreement with MHGCL to
regulate the services provided by the members of MHGCL. The annual
cap for the Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2012
was HK$2,000,000. Details of the transactions was disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2011.
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Annual  Nature and extent of
Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person’s interest
WEAL i} 1=R HR i3 FERE WEALCESKEREE
MHGCL Service Agreement 3 years from To regulate the services HK$959,778.97  Carrick is a substantial shareholder
dated 13 December 1 January 2011 to provided by the members of the Company and is a
2011 31 December 2013 of MHGCL. wholly-owned subsidiary of
MHGCL. Hence, MHGCL is a
connected person under the
Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

(D) Tender Services Agreement
The Company entered into the Tender Services Agreement with Synergis
on 30 November 2012 pursuant to which the Group will provide tender
services to Synergis Group. The annual cap for the Tender Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2012 was HK$1,000,000,000.
Details of the transactions were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 September 2012 and circular dated 26 October 2012.

HHRMERXS (#)
(D) REFEHE&E

MN-E——F+—A=+8 ARREHFEEETL
BIZRE W B ASBE RS T EEBIRER
ERE -H#E-_T——F+-_A=1+—HLtFE &
TERRFEHERE IR A78#1,000,000,0007T ° & 5 5E1E
HARAFABMA-—SE——FAATAZAHBEA
A ZT——F+A-t+"HzZ@K-

Annual Nature and extent of

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) ~ Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person'’s interest
MEAL 1 1= HR i3 FERE WEALCESLEREE
Synergis Tender Services upto 31 December 2014 To provide tender servicesto ~ HK$265,508,333.54  Synergis is a connected person
Agreement dated Synergis Group under the Listing Rules.
30 November 2012
MEEE ABA-T—=F BEE-T-IWF MFEEERMIREMRE 826550833354 BELTRA HEERA
+-A=1+B2 +=ZA=1+-8 BEAL-
RERBHE

(E) Supporting Services Agreement

The Company entered into the Supporting Services Agreement with
Synergis on 30 November 2012 pursuant to which the Group will provide
supporting services (which mainly involve staff costs in health, safety,
quality, environmental, plant, surveying, site administration, building
services and special projects, etc.) to Synergis Group. The annual cap for
the Supporting Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2012 was HK$9,200,000. Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 September 2012 and circular
dated 26 October 2012.

(E) XEREWE

NAFHEFEEEN T —F+—A=+H3Ix
TIERE R B AEEBRFSEEEEIRE
TERS EPEESRER T2 RE RBRE B
BT WwBRERE EFRELFIHIEESE TR
Ko X ERBHREREBE_SE——F+-_A=1+—H
IFFEZFE LR AB%9,200,0007T ° X 5 15
ERARE —E——FNATHAZRAER=ZE—=
FHA-+NBZBEK-

Annual Nature and extent of

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s)  Terms Particulars consideration  the connected person’s interest
WEAL E 1=k Hm B FERE MWEATZHEGHEREER
Synergis Supporting Services upto 31 December 2014 To provide supporting HK$180,761.00  Synergis is a connected person

Agreement dated
30 November 2012
mEER RBE-ZT—=F HEE-T—NF
+-A=TRZIE +=ZA=+—-H SRRH
PR % thhi

services to Synergis Group

MEEEREMEH

under the Listing Rules.

#180,761.00  RELMRA HEEEB
BEAL.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) of the
Company have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected
transactions mentioned in (A) to (E) above conducted in the year were
entered into on the following basis:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable

to the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(E) Supporting Services Agreement (continued)
(0 in accordance with the relevant agreements governing these
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing
connected transactions mentioned in (A) to (E) above.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for 41% (2011: 39%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer of the Group accounted for 14%
(2011: 11%) of the Group's total revenue for the year.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% (2011: less
than 30%) of the Group’s total purchases for the year. None of the director, any
of their associates or shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers.

Bank Borrowings
The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2012 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Donations
During the year, donations made by the Group for charitable and other purposes
amounted to HK$1,386,000 (2011: HK$3,086,000).
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HEMER S (1)
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AR BB GEFI 3810 A FRT L -

REFEE SN AEGEMANE B EEEBER3000
5 (B LM BENBRRBERUIMNELTE| A2
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FEERRHER

RER REBZFAAMNETEHAERAWZEE 241% (=
T——1:39%) MAEEZAEFMERE® AU
214% (ZFB——%F:11%) °

RERN AEBFARMEREEEAEE 2 BFEBEIR
30% (ZZFE——4F: LR30%) cEF THEEZHEA
SR (BESHANBEARNRFCEITRAMIBS%E )
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2012 8 HEZEEEERAA



84

Report of the Directors

ESZRS

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Public Float

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best of knowledge of its directors.

Auditor

The retiring auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed its willingness to
offer for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming 2013
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hsin Chong
Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 87 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

*  for identification purposes only {£ {455
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement
meINmE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——HF+_A=+T—HILFE

2011
Notes HK$'000
B aE BT
Group revenue EB W= 5 7,249,312 5,884,204
Cost of sales 8 & B 8 (6,788,965) (5,378,305)
Gross profit EH 460,347 505,899
Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities A E 2 ) B 8 m A1 F 58 81,529 33,875
Other income H A WA 6 23,192 22,023
General and administrative expenses —RMRRITHFX (342,469) (318,952)
Other operating expenses HE g st 8 (30,382) (26,724)
Net finance costs B R AR
— interest income — R B A 17,891 4,913
— interest expenses —MBEMAX 7 (8,884) (8,948)
Profit before taxation W 354 B 8 201,224 212,086
Taxation I8 11 (21,134) (22,458)
Profit for the year NEE 180,090 189,628
Profit attributable to: JEAE & F :
Equity holders of the Company ZAYNSIL: SES TS DN 180,008 172,419
Non-controlling interests FEE IR = 82 17,209
180,090 189,628
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) GRREARZF (BE) 12 19.0 248
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREERF (BEE) 12 15.4 23.9
Dividends f% 2 13 49,643 47,371
Group revenue and share of revenue of SEKEREG
jointly controlled entities HEESE Bz 5 8,810,112 6,381,128

2012 8 EZEEBEERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

0 AN\ £
O %ﬁ”iﬁﬁﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2012
HEZZ——F+-A=+—HLFE

2011
HK$'000
BT T
Profit for the year IR FE Sk F) 180,090 189,628
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hi2mEWaE (FE)
Fair value gain on leasehold land and building HELWREF AR ERF 49,582 95,711
Deferred tax on fair value gain of HELHREFAAERNZ
leasehold land and building EEFIA (8,181) (15,792)
Exchange differences arising on B N 2= FHE A
— translation of foreign operations —BINERE 2 ]E 19,603 27,795
— dissolution of a subsidiary — BB — AR B A A (4,230) -
Interest rate swap 2= 42 5 = 956
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax A F LMK B R 2
Hip 2R 56,774 108,670
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEETEKRETE 236,864 298,298
Total comprehensive income attributable to: [EIE R EI AR
Equity holders of the Company RArlE=RRFAA 237,682 279,070
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR (818) 19,228
236,864 298,298

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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FORESER

As at 31 December 2012
RZE—ZF+ZA=+—H

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 _HK$'000
B aE BETT BT
Non-current assets 5F°ﬁ-‘.§l|?§
Property, plant and equipment LER T 3 15 418,682 388,086
Investment properties BEY % 16 29,690 46,080
Intangible assets BEEE 17 101,007 114,999
Goodwill [5EES 18 42,002 42,002
Jointly controlled entities HREZESIER 20 194,348 71,298
Available-for-sale financial asset A E TS EE 21 9,831 2,991
Deferred tax assets IR IB & = 27 174 192
795,734 665,648
Current assets mENEE
Properties under development BERPYE 22 2,838,784 2,522,163
Stocks and contracting work-in-progress ENSY &ﬂﬁii%q:‘ I 23 677,774 712,281
Receivables and prepayments ERESRRBNE 24 1,125,382 1,208,270
Amount due from non-controlling interests VW;‘ET&HX% i /TAIE 31 3,446 -
Held-to-maturity investments ER|H 2 %3 25 2,486 -
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents T_/TA CHe &fﬁﬁﬁfﬁ 26
— restricted — R 291 4,006
— unrestricted —REZR 1,314,534 892,939
5,962,697 5,339,659
Current liabilities g A=K
Bank loans fETTE?A 28 (1,142,904) (830,647)
4% coupon bonds 4% EBEH 29 (176,977) -
4% convertible bonds 4% B AT IR 55 33(@a) (44,184) -
Payables and accruals FEER R K EAT & A 30 (2,385,906) (2,095,584)
Amounts due to non-controlling interests FEASS FE4E MR A 2 RUIE 31 - (9,546)
Current tax liabilities EHWIBAE (17,979) (15,793)
(3,767,950) (2,951,570)
Net current assets mENEERE 2,194,747 2,388,089
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTDAR 2,990,481 3,053,737
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Senior loan note BEEFRIE 32 - (500,000)
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities JE ELRIIEHIE FE A 20 (198,256) -
Convertible bonds AR E S 33(b) (523,157) (491,063)
Long service payment liabilities EHR%aE (9,030) (7,654)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIE A E 27 (106,440) (102,825)
Total non-current liabilities R & FEE (836,883) (1,101,542)
Net assets BERE 2,153,598 1,952,195
Equity e
Capital and reserves attributable to ENFREFFABRGEEFR
the Company’s equity holders % e
Share capital [N 34 94,835 94,635
Other reserves H W;%f% 1,479,275 1,323,798
Retained profits RE & ﬂ 514,475 383,067
Proposed dividend R AR S 25,984 23,659
2,114,569 1,825,159
Non-controlling interests RS 39,029 127,036
Total equity Rl 2,153,598 1,952,195
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai E3&{& Catherine CHU k%= &
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer /& F# 7T EC A4, Director %
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Company Balance Sheet

NYBEERER

As at 31 December 2012
RZE—Z—F+ZA=+—H

2012 2011
NO’EE\*S HK$'000 HK$'OOO
B eE B¥TT BT T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M 2SR 15 4,783 4,590
Investment in subsidiaries HEBARIEE 19 2,124,294 2,123,674
Loans to subsidiaries B THEBAR 19 482,000 463,000
2,611,077 2,591,264
Current assets REEE
Loans to subsidiaries BRTFHEBAR 19 72,640 93,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL T 1 R 5RIE 19 805,527 620,735
Receivables and prepayments FEUWBR R R FE & 24 22,575 12,028
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeEE 26 1,018 1,477
901,760 727,240
Current liabilities nEHER
Bank loans RITENK 28 (587,904) (496,647)
4% coupon bonds 4% R BEFH 29 (176,977) -
4% convertible bonds 4%ZE A MR ES 33(@a) (44,184) -
Payables and accruals BRI X EEH & A 30 (17,175) (33,974)
Amounts due to subsidiaries ARG B S 19 (64,232) (69,979)
Loan due to a subsidiary Er—REKEAREZEZER 19 - (50,000)
(890,472) (650,600)
Net current assets mEEESRE 11,288 76,640
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREBAR 2,622,365 2,667,904
Non-current liabilities FnEAR
Senior loan note BEERERE 32 - (500,000)
Convertible bonds AI AR E S ! 33(b) (523,157) (491,063)
Loan due to a subsidiary Er—EMBAREEZER 19 (100,000) -
Long service payment liabilities RERBEEE (450) (762)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 27 (39,414) (44,244)
Total non-current liabilities & FAE (663,021) (1,036,069)
Net assets BERE 1,959,344 1,631,835
Equity Ba
Capital and reserves attributable to ENFREBBEAEEEFR
the Company’s equity holders =11 ]
Share capital i 34 94,835 94,635
Other reserves Hitbf# 35 1,098,227 1,074,569
Retained profits REE i A 35 740,298 438,972
Proposed dividend R BB 35 25,984 23,659
Total equity It 1,959,344 1,631,835

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai T3 &

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer /& # 7T IEC A4 2,

Catherine CHU k=&
Director &%
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
ROREMNER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_ZT——HF+_A=+T—HILFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks BT BT T
Operating activities BEEE
Net cash inflow from operations e 2 HE MmN TR 45 226,616 15,624
Interest received 2 WA 7,131 4,317
Interest paid EfFIE (18,485) (6,775)
Tax paid BEfFIE (24,237) (21,725)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating EEEBZHERAN
activities ()28 191,025 (8,559)
Investing activities BREER
Net cash paid for acquisition of assets — WHEEE-gatRo Nz
land parcels in Tieling e H5E 36 - (265,374)
Time deposit over three months =@ R A EEHTFER (52,340) (43,190)
Repayment to non-controlling interests EBRTIEERERRER (9,546) (27,836)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE L RE (18,290) (21,842)
Purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets BERSERHRMEEE (2,486) -
Advance to jointly controlled entities LT HREHER 2 BEX (12,976) (10,068)
Net cash paid for consideration for acquisition of ~ U — I B AR~
a subsidiary REZBEMNIESFE 37 (14,500) (3,574)
Addition of intangible asset ENEREE = (1,600)
Dividend income from an associated company KA S QT 2R BHA - 21
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - R RREMEHR
plant and equipment 197 810
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREMEER - 5,906
Dividend income from jointly controlled entities KB HEZEH B REKA 27,587 17,500
Advance from/repayment from jointly REHEEHERZER
controlled entities ERER 142,124 76,697
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing REXEBZHERA
activities ()28 59,770 (272,550)
Financing activities It $
Drawdown of bank loans REERTTE R 905,000 557,000
Proceeds from issuance of 4% coupon bonds, BITA% R EEHF 2 FTSHIA
net of transaction costs MR Z A 183,834 -
Proceeds from issuance of 4% convertible bonds, ~ 3£174% 2= B A[ AR EH 2
net of transaction costs FRS5IE - fIBR 2 S A 47,775 -
Issue of shares BTG, — 142,428
Transaction cost for issuance of shares BITIR D 2 R B A = (4,332)
Transaction cost for Group reorganisation SEBEAHZFHHAR (3.527) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BER T IFERE R IR R AR S (8,470) (9,656)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders Bk T AN AR R AR B (47,318) (44,037)
Payment to non-controlling interests due to FERBEx B AN E A Rm
dissolution of a non wholly-owned subsidiary Sz A FET2E AR s AR PR R IE (1,081) -
Repayment of senior loan note EEELEREENIE 32 (365,711) -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (592,743) (165,353)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEBZHQRABH 117,759 476,050
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEEZBM 368,554 194,941
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year R E¥IR & MIREEHE 849,749 647,018
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents RekRSFEEL Y 701 7,790
Cash and cash equivalents at RERAERASEE
the end of the year 1,219,004 849,749
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash ReRBSFEREFEZRA:
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash — unrestricted RITEGFERIRE - TR 1,314,534 892,939
Less: Time deposit over three months S =1 A EFEEER (95,530) (43,190)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERAERASEFE
the end of the year 1,219,004 849,749
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mROERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HEZZ——F+-A=+—HLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ERELTAREHEA
Capital Convertible
redemption bonds and
and Share  warrants Non-
Share Share  Exchange  general Special  Revaluation options equity  Hedging Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve  feserve  reserve reserve  feserve  reseve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
TRRRS
RERER HEE RRREE FiER
k% BRHER ERER  HERR  NRBE  EREG R H2EE HAEE RBRE  REER it #a a8
(Note ) (Note i) (Note i) (Note iv)
(Baki) (ki) (Kiti) (Htw)

HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKPOOD  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKFOOD  HKS00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000
BETT  BMTR  ARTR  BETn BMTR  A¥TR BNTn RMTR  A¥Th BMTn RMTR A¥Tr BMTn BT

At 1 January 2011 N 67317 184,578 12467 14420 1179671 25447 (956) 275989 697,29 17,181 814416
Profit for the year TR - - - - - - - - - - A9 49 17209 189628
Other comprehensive incomefoss) EhaEkhs/ (K8
Fair value gain on leasehold lnd and buiding &t RIEF 2 A4t IR - - - - - 95,711 - - - - - 95,711 - 95,711
Deferrd tax on fair value gain of leasefold RETHRETAL ERH 2 ELT
land and buiding b - - - - - (1579 - - - - - (1579 - (1579)
Bichange difference EiEE - - BT - - - - - - - - BT 2019 2779%
Interest rate swap jiEeets - - - - - - - - 956 - - 956 - 96
Total comprehensive income - - 25,776 - - 79919 - - 956 - M9 279070 19228 298298
Issue of shares 12,585 125,850 - - - - - - - - - 138,435 - 138,435
Transaction cost of issuance of share - 4332) - - - - - - - - - 4332) - 4332
Issue of share capital upon share options exercised 33 5027 - - - - (1.467) - - - - 3993 - 3993
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - - - 3469 - - - - 3469 27 3746
Transfer upon share options lapsing - - - - - - (2.3%) - - - 2355 - - -
Acquisttion of assets - land parcels in Tieling 14,300 204490 - - 332,046 - - 245342 - - - 79,178 - 79,178
Deferred tax lizbilty on recognition of equity
component of convertible bonds - - - - - - - (44,846) - - - (44,846) - (4 846)
Dvidends paid - - - - - - - - - - (44,037) (44,037) (9,656) (53,693)
At 31 Decerber 2011 and at 1 January 2012
94,635 515,613 38243 14420 332,046 197,886 25,004 200,49 - - 406726 1,825,159 127,036 1,952,195
Profit for the year TR - - - - - - - - - - 180008 180,008 8 180090
Other comprehensive incomefoss) H2ake/ (i
Fair value gain on leasehold land and buiding ~ & T RIEF 2 A1 BIEF - - - - - 958 - - - - - 8958 - 49582
Deferrd tax on fairvalue gain of leasefold BELHREFAAERRZ
land and building EREHE - - - - - (8181 - - - - - (8,181) - (8181)
Exchange difference arising on: EXEEEL
~ dissolution of a subsidlary -BH-EHBAA - - (2.961) - - - - - - - - (2961) (1,269) (4230)
~ ranslaton of foreign operations -BINEHAE - - 193 - - - - - - - - 193 % 19603
Total comprehensive income FENEES - - 16273 - - 41401 - - - - 180,008 37682 (818) 236,864
Iste of shares upon converson of R A% S8 AR ER TR
4% convertile bonds 200 1822 - - - - - (139 - - - 1883 - 1883
Recogniton of warrants BIIRES - - - - - - - 1783 - - - 8% - 8%
quity settled share-based transactions WG AR REEERS - - - - - - 2548 - - - - 2508 % 2574
Transfer upon share options apsing T SIGE - - - - - - (1,083) - - - 1083 - - -
Recognition of equity component of Bu%E BT RRES 2 BRI
4% convertble bonds - - - - - - - 3409 - - - 3,409 - 3,409
Deferred tax iabiity on recognition of equity ~~~ BEA%F S A RREFERIDHZ
component of 4% convertible bonds gy - (765) - - - (765) (765)
Payment to non-controling interests due to RRH-FH2 ERENBATM
dissolution of anon wholly-owned subsidiary ~ FIEERERTRRIE - - - - - - (1,081)
Change in ownership interests in subsidaries B XEEHBNOERT HELT
without loss of control (Note 38) LEERRZE (M) - - - 71,664 - 71,664 -
Fouity transaction arising from reorganisation ~~ EAEERERR 5 - - - (3521) - (3527) (3521)
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - - (w1318 (@1318) (55,788)
At31 December 2012 RZE-ZF+ZA=1-A 517435 220835 - 131 540459 2,114,569 2,153,598
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Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital redemption reserve created during the repurchase of shares of HK$4,420,000.
General reserve amounts to HK$10,000,000.

Special reserve comprises the difference between the fair value of the consideration, net of
deferred taxation and fair value of acquiring land parcels in Tieling, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). This reserve will be recognised through the retained profits upon the
earlier of the disposal of the subsidiaries or the disposal by the subsidiaries of the assets to
which it relates, in proportion to the percentage the Group disposes. See note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements for further details.

Revaluation reserve comprises the fair value gain, net of deferred tax, on leasehold land and
building held for own use.

Other reserve was resulted from the Group's reorganisation and realignment of business
activities.

On 30 November 2012, the Company completed the disposal of Interiors & Special
Projects division (“ISP division”) to Driven Power Management Limited ("“Driven Power”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), a separately listed
subsidiary. The transaction was accounted for as a transaction with non-controlling interests.

As part of the settlement of the consideration, Synergis issued 58,666,667 convertible
preference shares (“CPS") to the Company. In determining the Group's economic interest
in Synergis after the transaction, management has taken into account the rights of the CPS
holders, among other things, potential voting rights and the same entitlement to dividends
and other distributions as ordinary shareholders and that a holder of the CPS is entitled
to the return of capital in priority of ordinary shares in case of winding up of Synergis.
Accordingly, the economic interest in Synergis increased from 50.94% to 58.31% and the
gain on disposals to non-controlling interests of HK$77,664,000 was recognised in equity.
(Note 38)

*  for identification purposes only £ {45/
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imE W RKRMEE

*  for

General information
Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) are engaged in building construction, civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical installation, renovation and fitting-
out, property development and investment, and provision of property and
facility management services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda. The Company has its primary listing on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, and were approved for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 22 March 2013.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment properties, leasehold land and building and
available-for-sale financial assets which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

identification purposes only £ {25 5
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new/revised HKFRSs, amendments and
interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2012. There is however no significant
impact on the Group's results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asset

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle issued in
2012

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKAS 1

New and amended standards have been issued but are

not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2012 and have not been early adopted

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial 1 July 2012
(Amendment) Statements - Other
Comprehensive Income
Annual Improvements  Annual Improvements 1 January 2013
Project 2009-2011 Cycle
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  First Time Adoption 1 January 2013
- on Government Loans
HKFRS 10, HKFRS Consolidated Financial 1 January 2013
11 and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint
(Amendment) Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2013
(Amendment)
HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
(Revised 2011)
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and 1 January 2013
(Revised 2011) Joint Ventures
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 1 January 2013
Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2 EEHEBREE )

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) HEERE(E)

(i) New and amended standards have been issued but are (i) FFTRLEFTEACHEMG HERR -
not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January ——F—A—BHHBRZHBEEER
2012 and have not been early adopted (continued) By RRBHESH (E)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other 1 January 2013 EARBHLEN  RENENERNES -“E-=F

Entities F12% -A-8

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013 ERYERLEN  DAEHE -k

F13% -A-H

HKFRS 7 Finandial Instruments: Disclosure 1 January 2013 EAOBRLEN  ARTE BEHY —T-ZF

(Amendment) - Offsetting Financial Assets E75% (BIR) HEEERES -A-H
and Financial Liabilities &

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production 1 January 2013 % (BReBRE BABLEESNIE 2K

Phase of a Surface Mine 2EZEE) A -A-8
-REZ0%
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities 1 January 2014 EEBRRLRD  REEE —I-ME
and HKAS 27 (2011) F10% E125 R -A-H
(Amendments) BRGHER
F27%
(Z%—-F)
CHEY
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: 1 January 2014 FACHENENS SBTH ZHHY “E-mE
(Amendment) Presentation ~ Offsetting (B374) HEERIKA -B-A
Financial Assets and Financial &
Liabilities
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Finandial Instruments; 1 January 2015 ERUBREEN  SRIE-RE B —E-1f
(Amendments) Disclosures — Mandatory EEArE L BIRREERE -A-H
Effective date of HKFRS 9 and (B37%) fslitENaE
Transitional Disclosure REEERE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015 BENRBLEL  4BIE —E-[&
0% -A-A
The Group will adopt the above new or revised standards and REEBN izl & (& T £8| RIRA %L
amendments to existing standards as and when they become S ET N A SRS B4R Bl o REF D B G
effective. The Group has already commenced the assessment of the Hh SRR AREBE R ABEYE (S
impact to the Group, except for HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial B R IRE R FE10%E [ EIRE | BRI
Statements” which management assessed having no impact to EEEBLTHRRABIEREHMNB AR DA
subsidiary classification, but is not yet in a position to state whether EE) BEREREESAER 2 LEE£E
these would have a significant impact on its results of operations and TSR e B REMERTE -
financial position.
(b) Basis of consolidation (b) HEEE
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements SAEMBERRBIERAANTIREMENEATE
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. 2+ A=+—HItZzHBEHE-
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

0)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assesses existence of
control where it does not have more than 50% of the voting
power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies
by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control may arise from
circumstances where it does not have more than 50% of the
voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating
policies by virtue of de-facto control. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group.

The Group applied the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference
is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

For purchase of subsidiaries which constitutes a purchase of
assets rather than a business combination, the assets and
liabilities acquired are accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies for the assets and liabilities rather
than the acquisition method of accounting.
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

0]

(ii)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and income and expenses
between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to their joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the economic
activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(ii)

Jointly controlled entities (continued)

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in the other comprehensive income is recognised
in the other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.

(c) Foreign currency translation

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK dollars”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such
as equities classified as available-for-sale are included in other
comprehensive income.
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

—  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

- income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates; and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(d) Intangible assets

0]

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose identified according to operating segment.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Intangible assets (continued)

(e)

(ii) Trademarks and trade names
Separately acquired trademarks and trade names are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and trade names acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite useful life are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
They subject to impairment testing annually and whenever there
is an indication that it may be impaired.

Secured contracts

Secured contracts acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The secured
contracts have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of the contracts of 5
years.

(iii)

(iv) Client relationships

Client relationships acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The client
relationships have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over the expected life of the client

relationships of 9 years.

Investment properties

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and is not occupied by the companies in
the Group. Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition of an investment
property is met. In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases. A property interest that
is held by a lessee under an operating lease may be classified and
accounted for as investment property if the property would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property and the lessee uses the
fair value model for the asset recognised.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
the end of the reporting period by independent professional qualified
valuers.
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Investment properties (continued)

()

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
assets. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices in less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

Subsequent expenditure is recognised in the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the financial
year in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are charged in the consolidated income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Property comprises leasehold land (classified as a finance lease)
and a building held for own use and is stated at fair value less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluation is performed
with sufficient regularity by independent professional qualified
valuers. Changes arising on the revaluation are dealt with
in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in the
revaluation reserve, except that, when a deficit arises on
revaluation, it will be charged to the consolidated income
statement to the extent that it exceeds the amount held in
the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately prior to
revaluation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

When a revalued asset is sold, the amount included in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i) All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the consolidated income statement during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost less accumulated impairment over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land classified as over the unexpired period of
finance lease the lease

Building 5%

Leasehold improvements over the unexpired period of
the lease

10%-50%

10%-50%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%-30%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(g) Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is estimated taking into account
the price ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable variable
selling expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

The costs of properties under development comprises costs of land use
rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying
assets and professional fees incurred during the development period.
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

(i)

Stocks are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred plus an
appropriate proportion of profits after deducting progress payments
and allowances for foreseeable losses. Cost comprises direct materials,
labour and overheads expenses incurred in bringing the work-in-
progress to its present condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers
for contract work for all contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention are included
within trade and retention receivables. The Group presents as a liability
the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Financial assets
The Group classifies its investments as available-for-sale financial assets
and held-to-maturity financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.
Changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

0]

1)

Financial assets (continued)

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group were to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be
tainted and reclassified as available for sale. Held-to-maturity financial
assets are included in non-current assets, except for those with
maturities less than 12 months from the end of the reporting period,
which are classified as current assets.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current bid
prices. For financial assets that are not traded in an active market
(and for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models,
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement.

Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group is the lessee
Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessors are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

(i) The Group is the lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the balance sheet based on the nature of the asset.
Lease income from an operating lease is recognised over the
term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

)

(m)

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation,
and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators
that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturity of three months or less from the date of investment.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associated
companies, jointly controlled entities and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed and
considered for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012

2 FEEHRFREE®»)
(k) EYRER

0]

FEW BRI EIR & o (B HER - LR AB IR
EIRE AR AT R ER B E - BRI Z
RERENLRTEERRAANEEELZE
WER 2 RA R BT & R B
ANBE|EA 2 B H5 IR & 2 B A] RE I ER AR AE o
MEEHERAARROKERNT  HERE
WERERRBE - BRECEAEEREER
HEIARRRERERE REENERIERTE)
ZEF -BREENEARaRAER B8
R W AR SR AR WR A S FT H ) - B R R U AR
B - BRI D EMEH < R BN AR
BRERTAER -

HeRFLFHE
RekReSEBEEFRE RITBAFT
HiREMAR=EASAT Z RS2 Ra
BE-

(m) M2 E] B &L B A2 AR R IR

BRERRZRE

BEEEERFHZEE (PIEmE)BRE
i BEEFARBEETAR SREENESR
S HRYE RN E R REEERN A
i - ZARUBEET TR R ERBLREEZRE
EBRHEMTWEESE ZRER 7 WE S
NEBEZ AR EHRIEEXNAKEREEME
ZHBEERE -EERASHBNRERE
(ReELEN) 2&EEBRAEENBETR
Bt -BREEIN ERZREZIVHEER
FERE BHOFRER S ATAR RETRN R
R

BWEIMB R AHRE < BBE - i SiRE M E
REERBE AR 2H IS AFE  RAEE
BUBHRT ZREEMEBLRRENEE
FERFAMBEmRT ZREE (BFEHE)
A BH A BIREETRERNR



2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred taxation liability is settled.

Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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fRE B R&RME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(p) Current and deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

(s)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

Employee benefits

(i) Retirement benefits
The Group participates in mandatory provident fund schemes
in Hong Kong which are defined contribution plan generally
funded through payments to trustee-administered funds. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), the subsidiaries in the PRC
participate in the municipal government contribution scheme
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible employees. The
municipal government of the PRC is responsible for the entire
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions required by the scheme. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred.

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date. It is the Group's policy
to forfeit any untaken annual leave within a specific time period.
Subject to regular assessment of staff turnover rate, a provision
will be made or reversed. Employee entitlements to sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market service and performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest. The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the
Company revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares and the proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy.

Bonus plans
Provisions for bonus are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated income statement in the year in which
they are incurred.

Revenue recognition

Contract costs are recognised when incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are likely to be recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract
will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included in contract revenue to the extent that they have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on the stage
of completion of the contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of contracting work can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to date as
compared to the total contract sum receivable under the contracts.

Income from sale of stock of property is recognised when the risks and
rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers, that is upon
completion of the sale and purchase agreements.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Property and facility management fees are recognised when the
services are rendered in accordance with the terms of agreements.
There are two types of property and facility management agreements,
namely management remuneration contracts (“MR Contracts”)
and lump sum contracts (“LS Contracts”). Under a MR Contract,
the Group is remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility as management
remuneration and only such fee is recognised as revenue for the
Group. Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee which
normally covers the costs involved in the management of the property
or facility, thus the whole of the lump sum fee is recognised as revenue
for the Group.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

wv)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from provision of other supporting services for the
management of the property or facility is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Plant and plant staff hire income, secondment fee income, consultancy
fee income, services centre charges, building management fee and
copying service income are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts outstanding and the
interest rates applicable.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments and making
strategic decisions.

(w) Financial guarantee contracts

x)

(7

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficial holder of the guarantee (i.e. the holder) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The Group does not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting date
by comparing its carrying amount of the net liability from the financial
guarantee with its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised in
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company'’s equity holders is recognised as
a liability in the financial statements in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(z) Convertible bonds, coupon bonds and warrants

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holders, where the conversion price is at a stipulated price that
will be adjusted, subject to terms and formulae provided for in the
agreement of the convertible bonds, to adjust for the dilutive effects
of share split or consolidation, capital distribution, capitalisation of
profit or reserves, issuance of new shares or share options or warrants,
and etc, are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

The liability component of convertible bonds is recognised initially
at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is recognised initially at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component.

Coupon bonds with detachable share purchase warrants are
accounted for separately as debt instruments and equity instruments
respectively, and are recognised initially at fair value.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing convertible bonds
and coupon bonds with detachable share purchase warrants are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their
initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of convertible
bonds and the coupon bonds are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component of convertible
bonds and the warrants are not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

Financial risk management
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(i) Market risk
(1) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk exposure arising from the Group's
operation in Macau and the Chinese Mainland are
monitored by proper synchronisation of receipts and
payments in different operating currencies, hedging of risk
is not considered because of insignificant exposure to the
Group’s working capital. The Group has no outstanding
forward exchange contract as at 31 December 2012, but
will consider hedging the foreign currency exposure by
using forward exchange contracts if needed.

As at 31 December 2012, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2011: 5%) against Hong Kong dollars
with all other variables held constant, the Group's profit for
the year would have been approximately HK$4.9 million
(2011: HK$4.0 million) higher/(lower), mainly as a result
of net foreign exchange gains/(losses) on translation of
foreign currency denominated trade and other receivables,
deposit, cash and bank balances and trade and other
payables.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

0]

(i)

Market risk (continued)

(2) Interest rate risk
Financial instruments at fixed and variable rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk respectively. The Group's interest-rate risk
arises mainly from bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk due to fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings.

At 31 December 2012, if interest rates on Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings had been 50 basis points
(2011: 50 basis points) higher or lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would have decreased/increased by approximately HK$2.2
million (2011: HK$2.4 million) as a result of higher or lower
interest expenses on floating rate bank borrowings.

(3) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
financial asset held by the Group classified as available-
for-sale financial asset. The Group considers the price risk
exposure is not material.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from deposits, cash and
bank balances and receivables. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit rating.

Before entering into construction contracts, assessment on the
potential customers is carried out as part of the acceptance
procedures for the new contracts.

To manage the credit risk associated with receivables, the Group
adopts risk control to assess the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account of their financial position, past
experience and other factors. Aging analysis is performed and
reviewed regularly by management of each operating segment
and follow up action will be taken, as appropriate.
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MBEREE®
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) MERBER (&)
(iii) Liquidity risk (i) RBELEK

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash, and
having available funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities.

Cash flow forecast is performed in the operating segments
of the Group and aggregated by corporate finance team.
Corporate finance team monitors forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. Where a counterparty has a right to request for
repayment on demand, the whole amount of the liability is then
allocated to the earliest period the Group and the Company can
be required to pay. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest payment.
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors
do not consider that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment, and believe that the bank loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in note 28.

AEBRAFEZRBESCRBRERE B
RERRERTEHR LA S LHEBRE
FEMZAHEERBERSGITSHRES-

REnBRANNAEESEEEDENE
T YR EEMBEE RS CEPKE
BERAKENEARSESTH  HEiF
AEBEERERE BN EERT -

TREREEBRARR 2B BEE &
TR R HAER REREERESD
B A Z R HREETOM - ENE B
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HifE] - ERARBEZ B AR HMERRR
ZASRERBRNEAX EFEKE
BAEE 2 PBHR  BRARITIEITE
HENZRANEENRE WAEARE
IARIBEH M 28 2 EAREF AR ER
RITER

The Group
*KE

Less than Between Between

1year 1and2years 2 and5 years Total
PR—F —FERF MEELF e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BeTT BRTT B¥TT BRTT

At 31 December 2012 A_E—_F

+=B=+—H
Bank loans RITER 1,142,904 = = 1,142,904
4% coupon bonds 4% R B EH 196,560 - - 196,560
4% convertible bonds 4% B ARk EFH 48,901 = = 48,901
Payables and accruals ERERFR R IEETEA 1,697,171 63,728 55,018 1,815,917
Amounts due to jointly S HEEIEH| B
controlled entities A - 198,256 - 198,256
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 759,210 759,210
Total 4Bz 3,085,536 261,984 814,228 4,161,748
At 31 December 2011 N _EB——5F
+=-R=+—H
Bank loans IRITER 830,647 - - 830,647
Payables and accruals FETBR AR R FEET B 1,622,502 53,626 60,506 1,736,634
Amounts due to non- JEA IEIE AR A 2 IR
controlling interests 9,546 - - 9,546
Convertible bonds AR E S - - 759,210 759,210
Senior loan note BAEERER - 525,000 - 525,000
Total 4 RE 2,462,695 578,626 819,716 3,861,037
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 MBERREE®

(@) MEBERREER (£Z)
(i) RBESEE (F)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company
. 3/
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2 and5 years
DPR—F —FEEMF MEERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT B¥ETT
At 31 December 2012 WZZT—_%f
+=-RA=+—H
Bank loans RITER 587,904 - - 587,904
4% coupon bonds A%ZEBEFH 196,560 - - 196,560
4% convertible bonds 4% FE B AR ES 48,901 = - 48,901
Payables and accruals JETTER R N fE AT B A 17,175 - - 17,175
Amounts due to FEAH B A R FRIE
subsidiaries 64,232 - - 64,232
Loan due to a subsidiary ~ fE[A —E KB A A
BEZEX 102,280 - - 102,280
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 759,210 759,210
Total B 1,017,052 - 759,210 1,776,262
At 31 December 2011 R-ZT——%F
+=-H=+—H
Bank loans RITER 496,647 - - 496,647
Payables and accruals JETBR A R FEST & 33,974 - - 33,974
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 759,210 759,210
Senior loan note BARBER - 525,000 - 525,000
Amounts due to FESTB B R R FE
subsidiaries 69,979 - - 69,979
Loan due to a subsidiary ~ f&E[m)— R E A A
BREIZER 51,375 - - 51,375
Total B 651,975 525,000 759,210 1,936,185
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Capital risk management

()

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives are to safeguard its ability
to continue operation as a going concern and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total debt-to-tangible-
net-assets ratio. Total debt is defined as bank loans, interest-bearing
coupon bonds, interest-bearing convertible bonds and senior loan
note. Tangible net assets include total net assets of the Group and
exclude goodwill and intangible assets. The ratio is 67.8% at 31
December 2012 (2011: 74.1%). As a result of long-term funding
raising activity to cope with rapid expansion of property development
in the Chinese Mainland, the Group has a net debt position of HK$49
million as at 31 December 2012 (2011: net debt HK$434 million). Net
debt position is the sum of deposits, cash and equivalents less bank
loans, interest-bearing coupon bonds, interest-bearing convertible
bonds and senior loan note.

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments — Disclosures’ requires
disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair
value measurement hierarchy:

—  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

—  inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

—  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. These instruments
are included in level 1. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group
did not have financial instruments under this category.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as
possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group did not have
financial instruments under this category.
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

©

Fair value estimation (continued)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has available-for-sale financial
asset for equity securities amounting to HK$9,831,000 (2011:
HK$2,991,000) and is categorised under level 3 of fair value
measurement hierarchy (2011: level 3). No liabilities are measured at
fair value at 31 December 2012 and 2011.

The fair value of available-for-sale financial asset is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows.

4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions having a significant effect on
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(a) Acquisition of assets — land parcels at Tieling

The Group acquired subsidiaries which hold land use rights of land
parcels at Tieling, the PRC. Please refer to note 36 for details of the
acquisition.

The Group assessed the acquisition in accordance with HKFRS and
concluded that the acquisition constitutes an asset acquisition. To
account for the assets and liabilities acquired, significant judgment was
required in determining the fair value of the land use rights acquired,
the tax liabilities assumed and the convertible bonds issued.
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

Acquisition of assets — land parcels at Tieling (continued)

For details of the respected estimates and assumptions being made
for the convertible bonds, the land use rights and the tax liabilities
assumed, please refer to note 4(b), note 4(e) and note 4(f) respectively.

Fair value measurement of convertible bonds, bonds and
warrants

On inception, the fair values of convertible bonds, bonds and warrants
that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select methods
and make assumptions, including those based on market conditions
on valuation date for valuation. The assessment of the fair value of the
bonds and the liability component of the convertible bonds involved
key management assumptions, among other things, the expected
volatility, dividend yield, etc.

Construction contracts

As explained in note 2(u), revenue recognition on a project is
dependent on management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work done to date. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared for each construction
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted construction income
is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, the management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted amounts to the
actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in estimating
the total contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of percentage of
completion and job profit taken.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group are based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of account
receivables and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer.
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
(e) Impairment of assets

()

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and trademark have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(d). The recoverable amounts of goodwill and
trademark are the higher of the assets’ fair values less costs to sell and
value in use.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions are required
in estimating the recoverable amount of goodwill and trademark,
including growth rate, gross margin and weighted average discount
rate applied to the discounted cashflows.

The Group also assesses annually for an intangible asset that is not
being amortised, to determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
For the trademarks held by the Group, management carries out the
assessment by performing an analysis of all of the relevant factors,
including the ability to hold and use the trademarks and the market
environment of relevant industry, to consider whether there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to
generate net cash inflows for the Group.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on the higher of fair
value less cost to sell or value-in-use calculations. These value-in-use
calculations require the use of estimates.

No impairment was made during the year.

Estimate of fair value of properties
The valuation of properties is performed in accordance with the ‘The
HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (First Edition 2005)" published
by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The valuation is reviewed annually by qualified surveyors by
considering the information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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4 (Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)
(f) Estimate of fair value of properties (continued)

(iii)  rental income derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using capitalisation rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the rental income.

If information on current or recent prices of properties is not available,
the fair values of properties are mainly determined using income
capitalisation valuation techniques.

The Group uses assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at balance sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management’s estimation of fair
value are those related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected
future market rentals; void periods; maintenance requirements; and
appropriate discount rates. These valuations are regularly compared
to actual market yield data, and actual transactions by the Group and
those reported by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of
current market rentals for similar properties in the same location and
condition.

(g) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
PRC income taxes. There are a number of transactions and calculations
for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will affect
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

5 Segment information
(a) Operating segments

Revenue comprises gross billing value of contracting work to third
parties, property and facility management services income, sales
proceeds from stocks of properties, rental income from stocks of
properties and investment properties and rental related income.
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5 Segment information (continued)

5 S¥EEHE e

(a) Operating segments (continued) (@) EERE &)
In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting provided BEAEERXTESERREETEAEBZA
to the Board of directors and senior management, the reportable HWBRER - ETERCEE D ERNEF
operating segments are (1) building construction; (2) civil engineering; B QEARIR: QENEMEFHRIER
(3) interiors & special projects; (4) electrical and mechanical installation; WEBLRETIR: O)ERERIBEIERS A
(5) property and facility management services; and (6) property REe)yDEERRIRE -
development and investment.
During the year, the Group has changed the composition of FAAREEREDERE 2EE  FHEE
its reportable segments to six operating segments (2011: five). EOMEER (ZF—F 1) At - #E=
Accordingly, the corresponding items of segment information for the E——F+_A=t+—HIEFESEERZIE
year ended 31 December 2011 have been restated. FEIEE EELED-
Property Property
Building Civil Interiors & Electrical & and facility development Corporate
construction engineering  special projects mechanical management  and investment (Note 1) Total
ERKHR WER NERE oL
BFRE TRIE WHAA #EIR RIEEE RE#® (1) #n
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BRTT BUTR BUTT BRTT BUTT BUTT BRTT BUTT
Year ended 31 December 2012
Turnover
~The Group 4190073 1,077,323 819,840 32730 803993 3353 - 7,209,312
~ Share of jointly controlled entities ~EEAREHEE 1,024,202 518,631 - 17,967 - - - 1,560,800
5214275 1,595,954 819,840 32,697 803993 33353 - 8810112
Gross profit 2] 174,468 44,688 53,419 37,977 12729 27,066 - 460347
Share of net profits of EEAREHRBENTE
Jointly controlled entities 38,006 8,715 - 748 - - - 81,529
Mman 87,463 53,419 38,725 122,729 27,066 - 541,876
Other income AfBRA 401 35 54 7,087 200 8,349 1,305 319
General and administrative expenses TRR% (77,193) (43,466) (16,976) (22.221) (103,281) (23,087) (56,245) (342,469)
Other operating income/(expenses) A/ (R%) - - - - 40 (16,800) - (16,390)
Operating profit et 139,292 44,302 36,497 23591 21,899 (8472 (54,940) 206,209
Interest income FEBA - - - - m 1,218 6,562 17,891
Interest expenses FleR% - - - - (573) - (8311) (8,884)
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEERY - - - - (13,992) - - (13,992)
Profit before taxation BB A& 139,292 44,302 36,497 23591 7,445 6,746 (56,689) 201,224
Taxation 2] (21,134
Profit for the year EERT 180,090
Capital expenditure AAMEE (68%0) (103) (246) (182) (4338) (3:850) (2691) (18.290)
Depreciation & (5673) (446) (1,305) (522) (6,867) (19,899) (2,468) (37,180)
Amortisation of intangible assets EVAESH - - - - (13,992) - - (13,992)
Fair value gain/loss) on investment RENFAAEER/ (HR)
properties - - - - 410 (16,800) - (16,390)
Wite back of impairment on unsold stocks sk tH & ¥ ERERE
of properties - - - - - 4418 - 4418
As at 31 December 2012 i it
=+-8
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents FRRERELEE - - - - 90,718 - 1,224,107 1,314,825
Bank loans BOER - - - B (180,000) B (962,904) (1,142,904)
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5 S¥EH
(a) EERM (&)

5 Segment information (continued)
(a) Operating segments (continued)

Property
Building Interiors & Property development
construction Civil  special projects Electrical & and facility  and investment Corporate
(restated) engineering (restated) mechanical management (Note 2) (Note 1) Total
ZREHR WERR
BFRE HARAE xR RER &
(#EE7) TRIE (BE7) #EIE BHER (MiE2) (1) #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT BRI BRTT BT BRTT BRTT BETT
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-T-——F+tZA=1-H
IHEE
Turnover EXE
- The Group -A£8 3,180,678 592,813 680,182 683,260 673,031 74,240 - 5,884,204
— Share of jointly controlled entites R EE 179,966 264,387 - 52,571 - - - 496,924
3360,644 857,200 680,182 735,831 673,031 74,240 - 6,381,128
Gross profit ES] 196,624 38,785 35,148 49,042 104,335 81,965 - 505,899
Share of net profits of EEAREHERRAFE
Jointly controlled entities 17311 14,308 - 2,194 - 62 - 33875
213,935 53,003 35,148 5123 104335 8,027 - 539,774

Other income L:0LION 3,627 480 - (176) 1,487 1,119 5486 22,023

General and administrative expenses TR (77,689) (41,507) (10,131) (21,769) (85,759) (14,274) (67,823) (318952

Other operating income/(expenses) EfgBRA/ (%) 912 - @ (1,126) 77 (13,095) (136) (12,732)

Operating profit 140,785 12,066 25,013 28,165 20,780 65,777 (62473) 230,113

Interest income - - - - 104 - 4,809 4913

Interest expenses - - - - - - (8,948) (8,948)

Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - (13,992) - - (13992)

Profit before taxation BBATER 140,785 12,066 25013 28,165 6,892 65,777 (66,612) 212,086

Taxation pidl (22,458)

Profit for the year REFERN 189,628

Capital expenditure BRMRS (7,800) (65) (3364) (757) (4852) (1367) (3637) (21842)

Depreciation & (5,606) (1,037) (1,251) (1,022) (6,946) (15177) (3919 (34,958)

Amortisation of intangible assets BYEERY - - - - (13,992) - - (13,992)

Fair value gainloss) on investrent RENERAEER]/ (B8)

properties - - - - 680 (13,100) - (12,420

Write back of impairment on unsold stocks K HEWETF ERERE

of properties - - - - - 5,599 - 5,599

Gain on disposal of investment properties i &AM E R - - - - - 5,906 - 5906

As at 31 December 2011 WZE——%t+ZA=t-H

Deposits, cash and cash equivalents BRBERELZE - - - - 57,812 - 839,133 896,945

Bank loans HITER - - - - - - (830,647) (830,647)

Notes: Bt 3

1. Corporate mainly represents corporate and administrative activities, and shared 1. TBREERABIRTBUEE  URHAZRS
services.

2(a). Included in gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 was a cost 2@). BHE_Z——F+_A=+—BLEFEZEF+H"
adjustment of HK$15,089,000, which was determined based on a revised cost AR AN F 2855 1515,089,0007T * :2 £ 28 TR IE R
estimation of a completed project in the Chinese Mainland. FE A — I TIE B A SR AN R E -

2(b). In August 2011, the Group and the seller of a property in Beijing agreed to 2b). RZZE——FN\A FAEEE-FILRYEZ

HEIMERLEEBA - BNFANZEEE
40,000,000 fE R W) I E 0 J8 2 s

terminate the sale and purchase agreement. The excess of the settlement
amount of HK$40,000,000 was recognised as revenue in the property
investment segment.
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5 Segment information (continued)

()

()

(d)

5 9¥MEHE e

Geographical analysis (b) WESH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Revenue Wz
Hong Kong B 5,570,964 4,457,622
Macau JBFS 580,114 668,926
PRC e 1,082,278 703,488
Others HAith 15,956 54,168
7,249,312 5,884,204
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT ST T
Non-current assets IEMBEE
Hong Kong B 783,181 662,053
Macau JEPY 50 114
PRC H 2,498 298
785,729 662,465
Available-for-sale financial asset AIHEE B EE 9,831 2,991
Deferred tax assets ERERRIAE B 174 192
Total non-current assets IEmENEELRER 795,734 665,648

Customer base analysis

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes one (2011:
one) customer with transactions exceeded 10% of the Group's
total revenue. Aggregate revenue from that customer amounted to
HK$998.1 million and was derived from building construction (2011:
HK$631.1 million from building construction and property and facility
management services).

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue

EFEERDIT

AEBZEEFEMOE MEF—FR (ZZT——
F—R)BPIZRSFHEMAEEBIE10% A
L ZERPZHRBZREEFRES L AEY
998,100,0007T ( =& — — 4 : & #631,100,000
TREEFEEEMERBEEERE)

ATFEHD T 22 2IME

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Reportable segment revenue AT E2WMH AR 8,810,112 6,381,128
Less: share of revenue of jointly W FE( R HI B B U E
controlled entities (“JCE") (1,560,800) (496,924)
Group revenue E Bz 7,249,312 5,884,204

According to HKFRS, revenue of JCE is not recognised as part of
the Group’s revenue under equity accounting method. However,
management closely monitors the construction activities carried out
by its jointly controlled entities, among other things, by revenue, for
the purpose of financial performance assessment. Therefore, this has
been included as a non-HKFRS financial information to serve as an
additional information to the report users for better understanding of
the Group's performance.
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Other income 6 HfxA
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
Dividend income from available-for-sale A E 2 IS E E R AR B
financial asset 7,463 -
Net exchange gain HE 5, )% F 3 58 7,180 2,231
Write back of impairment on unsold stocks of 7K Hi & ¥ 2 15 & Rl (& [3 5
properties 4,418 5,599
Secondment fee and service centre charges WaHRAZEHEE EEEARBER
received from jointly controlled entities RIS LB 1,623 1,475
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - MR R R ER T T
equipment 65 -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 W= - 5,906
Waiver of amounts due to non-controlling A0 B FEIE AR pE 2 I (BT Ei)
interests (Note i) - 5,141
Miscellaneous Hth 2,443 1,671
23,192 22,023

Note:

(i) Due to dissolution of a partially-owned subsidiary of the Company, the amounts due
to the non-controlling interests were waived unconditionally and irrevocably during
the year ended 31 December 2011.

() ARBEARRBNEE BT ENIEERER
RERBE-T——F+-A=+—-HILFEERER
TATHE A S o

Interest expenses 7 FIBRRX
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Interest on bank loans and overdraft WITERRER ZFE 17,376 8,941
Interest expense on 4% coupon bonds 4% EBEHFZFBHAX
— coupon interest expense —EBMX 3,772 -
— imputed interest expense (Note 29) —fHE MBI (FFE29) 10,977 -
Interest expense on convertible bonds AIMRES 2 M ERX
— coupon interest expense —ZEMX 732 -
— imputed interest expense (Note 33) —HERM R (MFE33) 33,772 3,648
Interest expense on senior loan note BABRER A EREZ - 1,505
Reversal of interest expense upon early REEEELEFREEMBLIE 2
repayment of senior loan note FEmMxz (1,262) -
Interest paid on interest rate swap Fl=t= Bz BE 2 BAAILE
arrangement - 1,029
65,367 15,123
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets ~ J5i : IR A BIRE EE AR (L 2 FE (56,483) (6,175)
8,884 8,048

The annual interest rates of bank loans are ranged from 1.7% to 3.7%
(2011: from 1.6% to 3.1%), of which the capitalised interest rates are
ranged from 3.0% to 3.1% (2011: from 3.0% to 3.1%). The imputed
effective capitalised interest rates of securities issued after taking into
account of the valuation of equity portion and transaction costs are ranged
from 6.5% to 21.1% per annum (2011: from 2.5% to0 6.5%).

RITERZEFENT17%E37% (T ——F:
1.6%%£3.1% )  HPREXFEN F3.0%E3.1%
(ZF——F N F30%E3.1%) K&t REm D
NEERRZKAE  BETEFNGHEEREARNL
FRENF65%E211% (ZZE——F : N F2.5%
%£6.5%) °
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8 Profit before taxation 8 KWMAF
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Cost of sales SHERE
Cost of construction FRAERAR
— Staff costs —BTITHA 689,329 637,898
— Other construction costs — H At JEIE R AR 5,412,085 4,179,436
6,101,414 4,817,334
Cost of property and facility management )% 2 5%t TR AR A A AR
services
— Staff costs —BTHA 482,885 433,628
— Others —HAfb 198,379 135,068
681,264 568,696
Cost of property development and WEER RIREKAR
investment
— Stock of properties sold —BEMETFERAR 3,201 4,916
— Others (Note) —H At (FFE) 3,086 (12,641)
6,788,965 5,378,305
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #73 - #28 K iR B T & 37,180 34,958
Other operating expenses Ht#EEmX
Fair value loss on investment properties KEMELAREEIE 16,390 12,420
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 13,992 13,992
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE KRR ZEZEIEFHE
plant and equipment - 183
Provision for impairment of receivables FEU AR FOR B R - 129
30,382 26,724
Auditor's remuneration ZE RN & 3,682 3,943
Operating lease rentals for land and buildings T MEFL&LEHEH G 10,818 5,760
Outgoings in respect of UTRIEZER:
— investment properties in Hong Kong —REBZIREME 3,125 4,527
— owned property in Hong Kong —RERBHEB ZME 5,487 4,718
Staff costs, included in general administrative 5T AfTE Y 2 8 TAA (Fi7E14)
expenses (Note 14) 224,667 217,243

Note: Other cost of property development and investment for the year ended 31 December B EE - BE—Z-——F+ A=+ HIEFEMH HXEERE
2011 included HK$15,089,000 reversal of cost of a completed project in the Chinese REERARBER—PEAME THE B HKAR
Mainland. # - #%15,089,0007T ©
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9 Directors’ and cheif executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of the directors and cheif executive officer for the year
ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

127

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Y=Lk

9 ERRTHEZMNS
REERITHERNEE S ——F+-_A=+—
BItFEZBME0T:

2012 2011
Salaries,

allowances Contributions Share-based

and benefits to retirement  compensation
in kind scheme (Note iii) Total

LIRS

Fl RUR BT ERZHER
EEng Eka {E4T ARG ( PR ) #8 Eok ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Names 2] ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT BT
Wilfred WONG Ying-wai* TR 353 12,311 4,831 27 55 17,577 13,275
Catherine CHU KRR 355 2,271 736 114 150 3,626 3,345
Barry John BUTTIFANT £ 420 3,000 1,500 - 476 5,396 3,970
Kenneth CHU Ting-kin REH 310 - - - 4 314 374
Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung Mg 220 - - - - 220 200
Abraham SHEK Lai-him hiEF 220 - - - - 220 200
Alexander MAK Kwai-wing EEH 220 - - - - 220 200
Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho (Note ) 258 (FiEi) 167 3,509 1,111 = 453 5,240 6,870
David CHU Shu-ho (Note ii) KR (i) - - - = = = 52
2,265 21,091 8,178 141 1,138 32,813 28,486

* Chief executive officer

(i) Mr. Edmund LEUNG Kwong-ho retired as an executive director of the Company and
ceased to be a member of the Executive Committee upon expiration of his service
contract with effect from 1 October 2012.

(ii) The deceased Dr. David CHU Shu-ho resigned as a non-executive director and the

chairman of the Company with effect from 16 February 2011.

(i)  Share-based compensation represents the fair value of share options granted by the

Group recognised during the year.

No benefit arose on shares issued and allotted to directors of the Company
under the employee share subscription scheme of the Company adopted on
23 August 2002 for both years as no such share allotment was made for the

year.

None of the directors have waived their rights to receive emoluments for

both years.

* TR AL

() HRRBAaOER REREER_ZT——_F+A—AH
REEARRRTEERTHREENTEZEGHNKE

iy MZTB——F_A+AEHNAESELRELARTF
FFMITEERER
(i) VARG AR 2 i ER R AR ER RN F AR

ZBRME

EMEFEALERBEARANR_ZFZT_F/\A
=AM ZEERBROFAIRERD TAR
BEE B2 AT RBCE D A A E A

N3
ZS o
jinng

EMEFEAL EEENER WS 2T -
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InEWBEBRRME
10 Five highest paid employees 10 AfimEHFEER
There were three directors (2011: two) whose emoluments were among the rEERUSESFNEEFRBRE=NESE (ZF——
five highest in the Group and included in the analysis set out in note 9. Fmf) - Hle B RENH TR -
Details of the emoluments paid to the other two (2011: three) individuals, BEHmMi (ZF—F =) e i AL A8z
who are not directors but whose emoluments were among the five highest WIARREEZEBNAEELUSSHMNES
in the Group are as follows: E&sF5)m
2011
HK$'000
BT
Salaries and other allowances S N2 E )2 RG 7,081 8,317
Bonus TE4T 2,687 6,046
Contributions to retirement scheme IRKAE R EH B R 6 220
Share-based compensation VARR 1 B 2 i E 84 214
9,858 14,797
Number of Individuals in each band
EBEAE
Emolument bands B E m 2011
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 75 #4,000,0017TC — #&%4,500,0007T - 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 7 #4,500,0017C — #&%5,000,0007T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 75 #65,000,0017T — 7 #5,500,0007T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 75 #65,500,0017T — 7 #6,000,0007T - 1
2 3
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mEMBRRWE
11 Taxation 11 R\
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the MEEMBANERDIRBBFE 2G5 ERE R
estimated assessable profits for the year after application of available tax MR AFRUZRBEAHER S 2 T AR
losses brought forward for both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been i o RE B 2 8 5NE R B 18 R IR AN Z 5T FER T
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of EAMAESLERR 2 IRITHETE -
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated income statement A WERINB () 2B T
represents:
2011
HK$'000
BT
Provision for the year NEZRE
- Hong Kong profits tax —BEBEMFH 14,488 14,545
— overseas tax — 85N BiE 12,271 11,563
Overprovision in prior years BT FEBERE (336) (105)
Deferred tax (Note 27) EIEFETE (M 5E27) (5,289) (3,545)
21,134 22,458
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the REBBRT AR 2 BIEEERERAR AT AR T E
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home RZBEMFAE 2 IEmME s 2T
country of the Company as follows:
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Profit before taxation (excluding share of net  BRFEATEF (T EIEFE(G L EIEH E S
profits of jointly controlled entities) s K FER) 119,695 178,211
Taxation at Hong Kong profits tax rate at BEBENEHE165%1E 2 HIH
16.5% 19,750 29,405
Effect of different taxation rates in other HABR TR R 2 72
countries (2,236) (5,332)
Overprovision in prior years W FE R (336) (105)
Income not subject to taxation EARBIA (6,028) (11,151)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose A 17 2 FI 2 7,041 7,842
Temporary differences not recognised REWRAZERER (1,673) (1,222)
Tax losses not recognised RNEHRZ BB 9,274 11,568
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ERARARGHERTE
losses (4,658) (8,547)
21,134 22,458
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REUBRRMEE

12 Earnings per share 12 SEREH
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit BRERBN R AEEERFE ARG RFR N
attributable to the equity holders by the weighted average number of FABBET 2 EBRINELOREE -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group's profit BREERN RAEE 2 BEFEE ARIE &R
attributable to the equity holders by the weighted average number of AR RARITEE RN  PIRIR &5 LR AR E
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the potential dilutive effect B e BENARR B BT ERRMNETY
in respect of outstanding share options, convertible bonds and warrants IREGTE -

during the year.

2011

HK$'000

BT

Profit attributable to equity holders (HK$'000) 1Ez5#5H AE(ER| B T 1) 180,008 172,419
Weighted average ordinary shares issued BT 2 BRI T 15 AR

('000) () 946,574 695,032

Adjustment for share options R T 24 2,935

Adjustment for convertible bonds AR E AR 220,052 24,254

Adjustment for warrants SRR A FE B 813 -

1,167,463 722,221

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZHN (BEEW) 19.0 24.8

Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) TSRESE AT (BEL) 15.4 23.9
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mEMBRRWE
Dividends 13 KR
Dividends recognised as distribution during the year: RERERAD RIS
2011
HK$'000
BT T
2012 Interim dividend — HK2.5 cents - FHERE-ERBE2.5
(2011: HK3.5 cents) per share —T——F FREEE3S) 23,659 23,712
2011 Final dividend — HK2.5 cents —T——FREBRE - FRA2.5L
(2010: HK3.0 cents) per share —E-TF  GRBEE3.00L) 23,659 20,292
Additional prior year final dividend arising from 1T S 8B & 5 B I iMAR &0 B 1N
increase of ordinary shares on the related Enz REARR S
record date - 33
47,318 44,037

At the Board meeting held on 22 March 2013, the Board resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend, amounting to HK$25,984,000,
of HK2.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
proposed final dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in the
financial statements until it has been approved by the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

NZE—=F=A-_+_HBTrE=ees
EEeRAREREBE S ——F+-A=+—8
IEFERERPRETIREBREE 25 854
7 %25,984,0007T ° It #E IRk R HARR B30 R 78 B i gk
AR AREMRE BEEZBERARRARNEET
ZREAFARS FERRIER TS AR

Staff costs 14 BEIR®E
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BWTT BT

Wages, salaries and allowances (including IE HFMkEM (BEBEEEMR)

directors’ emoluments) 1,341,359 1,231,136
(Reversal of)/provision for annual leave FR(BE) B (14,428) 3,130
Termination benefits BLIERIEE A 10,728 1,748
Long service payment RERG S B 1,376 1,929
Contributions to retirement schemes RREFFT IR 55,272 47,080
Share-based compensation VARG AR 7 Bt 2 i (8 2,574 3,746
1,396,881 1,288,769
Charged to cost of sales (Note 8) BAEFEHERAF (H:ES) (1,172,214) (1,071,526)
224,667 217,243
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RS M B R E

15 Property, plant and equipment 15 ME - BIREME
The Group %M
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
building improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
HELH HEME A BE
RigF K& B REREM RE ot ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT AETT BETT BETT
Cost or valuation RFHEE
At 1 January 2011 R-T——F—F—H 269,000 44,081 48,707 55,353 4,225 421,366
Exchange difference ERER - 65 - 152 35 252
Additions hE . 5,683 5210 7,620 3,329 21,842
Acquisition of a subsidiary and assets in ~ WEE—FAMB AR REEEE
Tieling (Note 36 & 37) (Pfi#36137) - 91 - 268 518 877
Fair value gain on revaluation DRAESHRE 81,000 - - - - 81,000
Disposal e - (486) (958) (551) (1,106) (3,101)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—H 350,000 49,434 52,959 62,842 7,001 522,236
Exchange difference EHREE - 1 - 36 26 73
Additions NE - 3,964 4344 6,250 3,732 18,290
Fair value gain on revaluation N EESRT e 32,000 - - - - 32,000
Disposal e - (809) (1,269) (1.234) ©7) (3,409)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=ZA=1+—H 382,000 52,600 56,034 67,894 10,662 569,190
Accumulated depreciation iﬁﬁﬁ
At 1 January 2011 —T——%—f—H - (37,750) (39,824) (36,104) (2,175) (115,853)
Exchange difference ER%%E - (55) - (77) (26) (158)
Depreciation for the year AFENE (14,711) (6,501) (4,391) (8,034) (1,321) (34,958)
Elimination of fair value gain on HEARBERNE
revaluation 14,711 - - - - 14,711
Disposal e - 393 939 277 499 2,108
At 31 December 2011 WZE——F+ZA=1+—H - (43,913) (43,276) (43,938) (3.023) (134,150)
Exchange difference ERER - @ - (23) (10) @37
Depreciation for the year AFENE (17,582) (3,779) (4,548) (9,342) (1,929) (37,180)
Elimination of fair value gain on HEARBERNE
revaluation 17,582 - - - - 17,582
Disposal e - 801 1,226 1,161 89 3277
At 31 December 2012 R=E——F+=-f=+—H - (46,895) (46,598) (52,142) (4,873) (150,508)
Net Book value or valuation RERESEE
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1+—H 382,000 5,705 9,436 15,752 5,789 418,682
At 31 December 2011 RZT——F+ZA=+—H 350,000 5,521 9,683 18,904 3,978 388,086

The leasehold land and building was revalued on the basis of its open
market value by an independent professional firm of valuers, Knight Frank
Petty Limited as at 31 December 2012.

If leasehold land and building had not been revalued, it would have been

included in these consolidated financial statements at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation of HK$111,245,000 (2011: HK$119,484,000).

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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fREMBERERME

15 ME - BBIREM ()
B+ i RAEFRIAES WA RS-

The leasehold land and building is situated in Hong Kong with a medium-

term lease.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's leasehold land and building of
approximately HK$382,000,000 (2011: HK$350,000,000) were pledged as
collateral for the Group's banking facilities.

RZZE——F+-_A=+—H AEENHEELH
N8 F 4975 %382,000,000T ( —Z T ——F | B
350,000,000t ) E A S BESIRTTRVE (E A -

The Company £ 4 F)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
e FE- BT
MEEE BERERE RE 1]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BT T
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2011 R—E——F—H—H 19,013 12,693 1,097 32,803
Additions NE 705 1,250 1,683 3,638
Disposal ak= - (66) (950) (1,016)
At 31 December 2011 R-ZT——4F
+=—A=+—~” 19,718 13,877 1,830 35,425
Additions NE 1,300 713 650 2,663
Disposal & - (562) - (562)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZT——4F
+—A=+—~” 21,018 14,028 2,480 37,526
Accumulated depreciation RERE
At 1 January 2011 W—_ZE——F—H—H (16,784) (10,060) (483) (27,327)
Depreciation for the year REEIE (2,405) (1,071) (445) (3,921)
Disposal ak= - 17 396 413
At 31 December 2011 R-ZT——4F
+=—B=+—8H (19,189) (11,114) (532) (30,835)
Depreciation for the year REFINE (673) (1,225) (570) (2,468)
Disposal & - 560 - 560
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=—F+=A
=t+—H (19,862) (11,779) (1,102) (32,743)
Closing net book value RERE
At 31 December 2012 N_E—=
+=-A=+— 1,156 2,249 1,378 4,783
At 31 December 2071 RZT——%F
+=-—A=+—8 529 2,763 1,298 4,590
2012 8 EZEEEERAA
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REMBRRME
16 Investment properties 16 ¥_EWMXE
The Group &5 H
2011
HK$'000
BT T
At 1 January R—H—H 46,080 58,500
Fair value loss N EEE (16,390) (12,420)
At 31 December W+—B=+—H 29,690 46,080
The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows: AEFEREMERERSTHOT :
The Group &5
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR¥ETT BT T
In Hong Kong, held on short lease EEE REPEERE 26,600 43,400
In Hong Kong, held on medium-term lease EHE EZPEHEERE 3,090 2,680
29,690 46,080
The properties were revalued on the basis of their open market value by an VI BB R SR TR IDAIET RN T B IR A AR
independent professional firm of valuers, Knight Frank Petty Limited. HARMEEMN-
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mEMBRRWE
17 Intangible assets 17 EEEE
The Group %K H
Other
Secured Client trademarks and
Trademark contracts relationships trade names
(Note i) (Note i) (Note i) Sub-total (Note ii) Total
Hti@m\R
it n®/aeHh EFRE HREn
(M¥&Ei) (PaEi) (PeEi) it (M &Eii ) thy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BETT BB BETT BT
Cost BF
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—-H—H 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 3,000 163,039
Expired during the year AEEEER - - - - (3,000) (3,000)
Additions for the year KEERE - - - - 1,600 1,600
At 31 December 2011 and —E—%+ZR=1—
31 December 2012 H&_?—:iﬂ'_ﬁ
=+—H 58,469 30,497 71,073 160,039 1,600 161,639
Accumulated amortisation REMS
At 1 January 2011 \—F——F—F—H - (14,224) (18,424) (32,648) (3,000) (35,648)
Expired during the year AEERER - - - - 3,000 3,000
Amortisation for the year AEEHH - (6,096) (7,89) (13,992) - (13,992)
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+-A=+- - (20,320) (26,320) (46,640) - (46,640)
Amortisation for the year REEEH - (6,096) (7,896) (13,992) - (13,992)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZF+-A=1—H - (26,416) (34,216) (60,632) - (60,632)
Net book value REPE
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-——F+-A=+—A 58,469 4,081 36,857 99,407 1,600 101,007
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1—H 58,469 10,177 44,753 113,399 1,600 114,999
Notes: B3 -
(i) Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of Synergis included a trademark, (i) WHEsEEBMEA B EE  BREBE IEEHK

(ii)

secured contracts and client relationships. The trademark has an indefinite useful life
as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the trademark is expected to
generate economic benefits to the Group.

As at 31 December 2012, the management of the Group determined there is no
impairment of the trademark. The basis on how the recoverable amount of “Property
and facility management” segment, to which the trademark is related, is determined,
are the same as those used in the impairment assessment of the goodwill allocated to
the “Property and facility management” segment (Note 18(i)).

The estimated useful lives of secured contracts and client relationships of 5 and 9
years respectively are based on the terms of existing contracts and historical data.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group acquired the use of trademark
of “Hsin Chong Aster” under the Trade Mark Licence Deed for use in the electrical
and mechanical industry in Hong Kong, Macau and the Chinese Mainland at a cost of
HK$1,600,000.

The trademark has an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademark is expected to generate economic benefits to the
Group.

The amortisation for the year is included in other operating expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

(ii)

BEPBFE - BRI BT A RAEE I mN Ry
REBMELHNEERGELRBEAFAR AR -

R-ZE——F+ A=+ AEEERBRTEHZ
WELBRAE ETHPEaEs (MEEIEEE] H
Bz Al e & BB - FTIRIRE B BARE S E Y
R EE | HANRBETRETE TR S
[ (P EE18()) °

RSAHRBEFARZ B AIERFHRRERFAH
2GR RELBED BT RAFRAF-

BE_Z——F+_A=+—HLFE AKEREH
T%%HE? FERARBETZ [METMTE| BROERE RNE
BORFIRTEAM 2 BETREREANCR KAREE
1,600,0007T °

PRIR A E A LA Ukl R IR
EENEERGELR AR RR R -

4 K S B P

AEZ BB AEGERER 2 KK EFHXIA

To

2012 8 EZEEEERAA



136

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE B R&RME

18 Goodwill 18 g

The Group &%
Notes HK$'000
B 5E BT
At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE—HF—H—H (i) 18,753
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) Y bt 8 | (P EE37) (ii) 23,249

At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 RZE—F+_A=+—HK
—E——_F+-_A=+—H 42,002

Notes: PfET -

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business AEDEZTERREBSHPRSENE 2 ReEELE -

combination.

(i) Goodwill arising from Synergis, allocated to the “Property and facility management”
segment, amounting to HK$92,618,000 (2011: HK$92,618,000), was previously
reduced through recognition of an impairment loss of HK$73,865,000 (2011:
HK$73,865,000).

At 31 December 2012, the management of the Group determined that there is
no impairment of goodwill. The recoverable amount of the “Property and facility
management” segment has been determined based on the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. Management has assessed that the fair
value less costs to sell is higher than the carrying amount of “Property and facility
management” segment and no impairment provision is considered necessary.

(i) Goodwill arising from acquisition of Hsin Chong Property Development Limited
("HCPD"), allocated to the “Property development and investment” segment has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. The value in use calculation is
derived from cash flow projections based on financial budgets and plans covering
a six-year period. A discount rate of 12% is adopted to reflect specific risk relating
to the "Property development and investment” segment. The key assumptions for
the value in use calculations are those regarding the growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the budget period which have been
determined based on management's expectations for the market development.

* for identification purposes only (£ 545
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Synergis Holdings Limited (3712 &R EEBR AR ) EE
ZEE BEOREMERZRER]HE 2EABE
92,618,0007T ( =& ——4F : 1%92,618,0007T ) * M FE Al
BB BRI ERE5%73,865000T (ZF——F 78
#£73,865,0007T) F LA T &

R-E——F+-A=+—B r£EEEEBRTHE
WELBRE [MERREER] B2 ARESRETY
LEARBEREERASIREABEMEZARSER
AT - ERERBAN ERBBERAR [WE KL
B DB EEES  SEAERER -

DEE [MERRGERE | DEREKBEHEHEZRE
RAR (EMERR])NHE HBREREERNE
Ratdl - AEEDENRENFRZPBRRENRSR
IEHE - BERIR12% 2 B RIARBR [ R MR E
DEFRZEERR st EERBEMBHERRE 2
BEHRNERE UREERERRATENLDER
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REMBEBRRNE
19 Subsidiaries 19 BT
The Company &2 7
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost IEETRRA - A AR 2,278,063 2,278,063
Less: impairment in value R ORE (153,769) (154,389)
2,124,294 2,123,674
Loans to subsidiaries BERFHBAR
— non-current —3ER 482,000 463,000
— current — B 72,640 93,000
554,640 556,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries A PNEIE /S 844,362 669,306
Less: provision T B (38,835) (48,571)
805,527 620,735
Loan due to a subsidiary FEm—EMEARER ZEK
— non-current —JERNHA (100,000) -
— current — BN Hj - (50,000)
(100,000) (50,000)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETI B A IR (64,232) (69,979)

Loans to subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are unsecured and bear
interest at HIBOR plus 2% per annum (2011: HIBOR plus 2% per annum).
The loans amounting to HK$482,000,000 (2011: HK$463,000,000) are
not repayable within one year and the loans of HK$72,640,000 (2011:
HK$93,000,000) are repayable on demand with no fixed terms of
repayment. The carrying amounts are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Loan due to a subsidiary as at 31 December 2012 is unsecured, bears
interest at HIBOR plus 2% per annum, and not repayable within one year
(2011: HIBOR plus 2% per annum and repayable within one year).

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing, have
no fixed terms of repayment and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of balances with subsidiaries approximate their fair
values.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

R-E——F+_A=+—HRERETFTHBERRZE
RIEAR WiRF BABBEITRERE %
(ZZE——F FEUFBRITAEREIN2Y% ) 5HE
F B o B EEB£482,000,0007T ( Z B ——4F B
463,000,00070) EE N —FANEE MERBESE
72,640,0007T ( —Z——4 : & #93,000,0007T ) A%
TGEF WEREFENE - B ERAENEE A
B

R-E——F+-A=+—H En—RHHEARE
B2 B AEERMRE B AT B RTRZER SN
2% EME - MEFR—FREE (ZFT——F 5
BIRITRAEFRBIN2% LAR—FRER) -

FEYL, FEAT BB X IR IE T SRR - S B R EEE
B WABEREL-

o

MBARFIRZEHEERLAAENR

s

T EHBAR 2 BRI K 46 -
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REMBRRME
20 Jointly controlled entities 20 XFEZEHER
The Group &5 H
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Share of net assets/(liabilities) EnEE(afF)FE 18,128 (28,052)
Amounts due from/net amounts due from FEUERIESIEEE SR
jointly controlled entities 176,220 99,350
194,348 71,298
Amounts due to jointly controlled entities RSB E SR (198,256) -
The Group's share of assets and liabilities and net profits of jointly controlled REBEEERXRZEHER EE BERENFEE
entities is summarised below: RSB ET :
The Group &5 H
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT R IT
Current assets MEVEE 778,607 499,472
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (129,533) (368,602)
Current liabilities mEAE (630,946) (158,922)
Net assets/(iabilities) BE/(8fk)FH 18,128 (28,052)
Income — contracting revenue WA —& # Wz 1,560,800 496,924
Expenses s (1,479,271) (463,049)
Profit for the year AN K 81,529 33,875
Amounts due from/to jointly controlled entities are unsecured, non-interest Rl ENEARTHERSENERE 2 RE
bearing and not repayable within one year. E—FNEE-
During the year, a dividend of HK$27,587,000 was received from jointly A E IR ER H R ) B S 2 ik B A 627,587,000
controlled entities (2011: HK$17,500,000). 7L (ZF——% : %1%17,500,0007T) °
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Name

£8

20 Jointly controlled entities (continued)
Details of the Group's interests in the jointly controlled entities are as

Place of incorporation
and operation

R R 3L B 4 bt B
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fREMBERERME

20 HEZEHER &
AR S SRR B Y s BT

Principal activity
FERH

Effective percentage of
interest held

Hsin Chong - Yau Lee Joint Venture
ME-BNAERE

Leighton — Hsin Chong Joint Venture
BE-FEEERE

Maeda — Hitachi — Yokogawa —
Hsin Chong Joint Venture
Al — B3 — 10— 2B

MBH Joint Venture
MBH& &b 3

Yau Lee — Hsin Chong Joint Venture
B - ER L

CRCC - Hg — CR15G Joint Venture
RS R ERISREE AT

GAS Joint Venture
PER NG

Hsin Chong — Maeda JV

N/A  not applicable /3

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong

HHBRLE 2 FEEE
2AELE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong
HHEBRE 2 FEEE

ZEBEE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong

EEBKE 2 IEBER
ZaBhE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong
EHBREZIEEEE

ZERELE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong

EEBREZIEEEE
ZaBhE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong

EEBREZIFEEE
ZaBhE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong

EEBREZIFEEE
ZaBhE

Unincorporated joint venture
operating in Hong Kong

HHEBRE 2 FEEE
2AELE

Building construction
BFEE

Dissolved
(2011: Civil
engineering)

BB (=T %

+ARIRR)

Civil engineering
TARTIR

Civil engineering
TARTRR

Building construction
BT

Civil engineering

TARITE

Electrical and
mechanical
WETRE

Building construction
BFRE

RAERRESZ
B

| 2012 | 2011
50% 50%
N/A 50%
20% 20%
20% 20%
40% 40%
30% 30%
30% 30%
60% 60%

2012 8 EZEEEERAA
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20 Jointly controlled entities (continued)

Place of incorporation

HLFEEFEE (0

Effective percentage of

Name and operation Principal activity interest held
BFRERERZ
£\ HEMAILREEHE FEEH Bkl
‘:im 2011
Laing O’ Rourke — Hsin Chong — Paul . Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 22.5% 22.5%
Joint Venture operating in Hong Kong TARIE
ERBREZIFEEE
ZEERE
Hsin Chong Aster — China Comservice J V. Unincorporated joint venture Electrical and 70% -
MEDME - PRAGEREEZ AT operating in Hong Kong mechanical
ERBREZIFEEE WETRE
Z/\ M/\%
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 60% -
MEEREE operating in Hong Kong TARTE
ERBKE 2 IFEEE
2/\ M/\%
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 57% -
TS 2 (DC/2012/07) operating in Hong Kong TARTE
ERBKE 2 IEEEE
ZRERE
Hsin Chong Tsun Yip Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 57% -
2R E (DC/2012/08) operating in Hong Kong TARTRE
EHBEE AR
ZaBhE
Samsung - Hsin Chong Joint Venture Unincorporated joint venture Civil engineering 40% -
operating in Hong Kong +ARTHRE
EHBEE 2 FBEE
ZaBhE
Note: PftET -

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreements, the profit sharing for each year of all
jointly controlled entities listed herein above shall be distributed to the joint venture parties in
proportion to their respective interests.
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Available-for-sale financial asset
Available-for-sale financial asset comprises the following:
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fREMBERERME

21 WHHEZHMESE
A Y S AERIEN TEIER -

Equity securities
Unlisted, at fair value

BREEEF
FELT ROAE

The Group &5
2011
HK$'000
BETT
9,831 2,991

The fair value of unlisted securities is determined based on cashflows
discounted using a rate based on the market interest rate and the risk
premium specific to the unlisted securities (2012: 7.70%; 2011: 5.31%).

RS2 DA ERRERE RRETBHELR
I LA L AREE (2B — =7 7.70%

TE——f:531% )8R E

Properties under development 22 BRYE
The Group 5 E
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
At 1 January ®—HA—H 2,522,163 -
Acquisition of land parcels, including U S IR - B FE RSP AN
construction cost - 2,479,645
Exchange difference MEHZEE 21,915 25,378
Additions during the year FRRNE 294,706 17,140
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 2,838,784 2,522,163
Properties under development comprise: BRPYIERE
The Group &5 H
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Land use rights T fE AR 2,485,163 2,465,903
Construction cost and capitalised expenditure 33k A8 & & AL FI 2 290,963 50,085
Interest expense capitalised AR ERX 62,658 6,175
2,838,784 2,522,163

2012 8 EZEEEERAA
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23 FRRAEBPRIE

23 Stocks and contracting work-in-progress

The Group &5 H
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Gross amounts due from customers for EREF 2 TRHEEE (M)
contract work (Note) 656,357 692,290
Raw materials, at cost AL 3= AR 1,417 1,991
Stocks of car park properties, at cost BAYMEGFE R 23,856 27,558
Less: impairment in value R E (3,856) (9,558)
Stocks of car park properties, BUYEFE RAUSRFEE
at net realisable value 20,000 18,000
677,774 712,281
Note: P 5E
Cost plus attributable profit BN 0N FEAS i AR AT T8 RS 18
less foreseeable losses 8,945,090 6,095,921
Less: progress payments received and R B FE M TARER K
receivable (8,479,904) (5,511,245)
Contracting work-in-progress EpEh T2 465,186 584,676
Representing: RE&:
Gross amounts due from customers for GFEMEEFTREET
contract work included in stocks and BREEREF 2 TIEFIAERE
contracting work-in-progress 656,357 692,290
Gross amounts due to customers for ERERRETEAET
contract work included BIEENEFP 2 ITIEFIAERE
in payables and accruals (191,171) (107,614)
465,186 584,676
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24 Receivables and prepayments
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The Group &%

fREMBERERME

24 BEFRRTAME

The Company &2 5

Trade receivables Z S REBERR
— third parties —$=5 563,170 805,323 — -
— provision for impairment — R EEE (423) (423) = -

Retention receivables RES YRR

— third parties —$= 419,018 304,253 - -
— provision for impairment — BB (125) (125) = -
981,640 1,109,028 - -

Other receivables H R UER K
— subsidiaries VNG - - 4,849 6,350
— third parties —$= 41,515 53,265 - -
— jointly controlled entities —HREZEHER 21,060 6,841 40 165
— provision for impairment — BB (201) (3,024) = -

Deposits and prepayments Ze kENE
— subsidiaries —MIB AR - - 2,025 1,831
— third parties —%=H 81,368 42,160 15,661 3,682
1,125,382 1,208,270 22,575 12,028

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the Company’s receivables and
prepayments are denominated in the following currencies:

The Group

2012

201

AREERARBRESESRRBNSEREEA TIIE
MREA:

The Company
2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T BT T BT IT

Hong Kong dollar ot 951,934 904,298 22,575 12,028
Renminbi AR 168,312 256,579 = -
Macau pataca prsle 5,136 46,730 = -
Other HAb - 663 = -
1,125,382 1,208,270 22,575 12,028

2012 8 EZEEEERAA
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24 Receivables and prepayments (continued)
(a) Trade and retention receivables

0]

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

The aging analysis of trade and retention receivables by due days
are as follows:

24 BIRIERRTEMNE (&)

(a) BBREESEKER
2 5 RIRES IR SR BIE B ~ B
W

@

The Group &£ EH
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Not yet due K EIHS 840,984 873,475
1 to 30 days —XE=1+X 55,345 157,820
31 to 90 days =t+—RENTXK 15,256 43,234
91 to 180 days At+—RE—BNATX 4,101 11,040
Over 180 days —aNA+XRUE 65,954 23,459
981,640 1,109,028

As at 31 December 2012, for the receivables which are not yet
due, there is no indication that they will be non-performing as
there is no history of default of the customers.

The Group's credit terms for its contracting business, property
rental and property and facility management services are
negotiated with and entered into under normal commercial
terms with its trade customers. The credit period for the trade
receivables for contracting business and property and facility
management generally ranges from 30 to 60 days (2011: 30 to
60 days).

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective contracts.
Rental income is billed in advance of the rental period. At 31
December 2012, retention receivables held by customers for
contract works amounting to approximately HK$233,154,000
(2011: HK$172,898,000) are expected to be recovered or settled
in more than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
and retention receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

Depending on the credit history and financial position of each
individual customer, trade and retention receivables that are
less than 180 days past due are not considered impaired.
As at 31 December 2012, trade and retention receivables of
HK$65,954,000 (2011: HK$23,459,000), net of provision for
impairment, were past due over 180 days but not impaired as
there are no recent history of default of independent customers
and no objective evidence of the receivables being not fully
collectible.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RZE——F+-_A=+—H" ' HK2NEH
REWERATERFEBRENRZT
B HUSBEMBTRE NERIT BN

REEREANER VEAERMER
BT RIS 2 S EE TR R — M
EREEFHZENEFR] BEANELR
MERBHBEENEIRWERZEE
BN F=tESN+R(ZZT——F:
ZtEXRTXK) -

BEANER 2 RE S EURERZIZRER
ARIZIGEREE - HBERARREGAHEE
B REEW - R - ——F+ 8
=t+—H BFREEAHNIEFHEZR
&4 fE UL BR 2R 4078 15 233,154,0000T ( — &
— — 4 #1#172,898,0007T ) * TEER
SRR EB T A A% K=k
BEA e

HRAEEEF /BT D  HE 5 RRE
SRBERLEBEERT AR -

RIERRFE 2 = Bt R AR R M
E B 5 NRE S EWEE U ER D 180K
TWRABEFE- N -_T——F+_F4
=t+—H B RRELEMBRRERE
2 EURBR 318 165,954,000 ( —Z&F——
F B 123,459,000 ) 45 B i1 B A 13180
X B EELRE RESBY P
R EHRE RS NEREEEER
ZE R RE A2 H U E -
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mEMBRRWE
24 Receivables and prepayments (continued) 24 BRRFRBEAMR ()
(a) Trade and retention receivables (continued) (a) BERFELEKKE &)
(vi) Movements in the provision for impairment of trade and vi) BHRRESEBERRZREREZ S0
retention receivables are as follows: Ik
The Group &5
2011
HK$'000
BT T
At the beginning of the year REF] 548 1,500
Amounts recovered W B IR = (952)
At the end of the year RER 548 548
The provision for impairment represents trade and retention RE R R M E S EAREERI80K 2
receivables aged over 180 days in both years. B 5 RIRE S EUARR
(b) Provision for impairment of other receivables (b) R AELRRRZ i ER
Movements on the provision for impairment of other receivables are as HEMERERR REREZHNT
follows:
The Group &£
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
At the beginning of the year REH] 3,024 2,990
Provision for impairment AR = 1,124
Amount written off as uncollectible HiEE TP el 2 5k (2,823) (1,047)
Amounts recovered Uz Bl 3R I8 - (43)
At the end of the year RER 201 3,024

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group does
not hold any collateral.

RZZE——F+_A=+-—HR=ZT——F
TZA=T—B AREWERE EAERD -
25 Held-to-maturity investments 25 BEIRRE

Held-to-maturity investments represent a certificate of deposit with nominal R IEHIRE L EE A AR 2,000,0007T (75
value of RMB2,000,000 (HK$2,486,000) and bear an interest of 2.5% per 2,486,0007T ) BT R E - F B2.5%:T B BIHIR A
annum with maturity date on 14 January 2013. —E-=F—-HA+WmEA-

2012 8 EZEEEERAA
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26 Deposits, cash and cash equivalents

26 FR -BeRBELFEE

The Group &5 H

The Company &2
2011

2012
HK$"000

BETT
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEFRRS 237,962 213,448 1,018 681
Short term bank deposits (Note i) 5E BRI TR (PR EEI) 981,042 636,301 - 796
1,219,004 849,749 1,018 1,477
Time deposit over three months 238 =& A &9 E B fE X
(Note ii) (P& 95,530 43,190 - -
Unrestricted deposits, cash and bank N R &l 2 F578 »
balances Re RRITETF 1,314,534 892,939 1,018 1,477
Restricted bank deposits 2R 2 RITIF K
(Note iii) (P i) 291 4,006 - -
1,314,825 896,945 1,018 1,477
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following G -BRekBeSENUTIEE BERM:
currencies:
The Group &5 H The Company &2
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT BT T
Hong Kong dollar T 913,313 562,221 1,018 1,331
United States dollar ET 74,367 51,551 - 146
Renminbi AR 167,898 259,291 - -
Macau pataca TR 152,455 15,150 = -
Singapore dollar ¥ T 6,295 6,464 = -
Other HAth 497 2,268 - -
1,314,825 896,945 1,018 1,477
Notes: PftET -

(i) The short term bank deposits of the Group and the Company have original maturities
of three months or less.

(ii) The time deposits of the Group carry an effective interest rate of 3.0% per annum
and have an average maturity period of 286 days.

(i) As at 31 December 2012, restricted bank deposits include a deposit given to a bank

for providing a guarantee to the Government of Macau SAR in obtaining a labour

agency licence in Macau by a subsidiary.
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(ii)

(iii)

AEERARTZ ERRITERSNIBA A= EAR
BT

AEENEHFRRERFMNE30%:TE - FHIHA
286K

RZF——F+-A=+—RB XRHZ/ITEREHE
EDRPTRF BITT B R BUR 1 H B R T 62— PR B 2 Rl AR
PUERSIBENBATTREBRM RRITAE T 2FR e



27 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% for both years.
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fREMBERERME

27 EERIA
REHIEAMEFERABAEINEERERES
K16 5%ER H -

The movement of the deferred tax is as follows: REBIE 2 SBIAT
The Group &%
Accelerated tax  Property under Intangible Fair Convertible
depreciation development assets value gains bonds Tax losses Total
MEFREHE BEPYE BRRE LREKS ARRES iR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BB BB BB
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-A-H 1177 - 21,021 23,344 - @2 45,540
Charged to other comprehensive TR M2 EREMIN
income - - - 15,792 - - 15,792
Charged to equity RERAMR - - - - 44,846 - 44,846
(Credited)/charged to consolidated 7R AR A (RA) /B
income statement (1,350) 602 (2,309) 12 (602) 2 (3,545)
At 31 December 2011 RZF-——%+=fA=1+—H° (173) 602 18,712 39,248 44,244 - 102,633
Charged to other comprehensive  7EE A 21 Wz A afR
income - - - 8,181 - - 8,181
Charged to equity RERARR - - - - 741 - 741
(Credited)/charged to consolidated A MERA (FA) /K
income statement (2,836) 5572 (2,309) (145) (5,571) - (5,289)
At 31 December 2012 WZE-ZF+ZA=1-H (3,009) 6,174 16,403 47,284 39414 - 106,266

The deferred tax liability of the Company of HK$39,414,000 represents the
convertible bonds, which is shown above.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in
the consolidated balance sheet:

ARBZIEIERIR A BB #39,414,0007T K 3R ATHAAY
E% N LRI

ERAEENAGRANAEERRARNARAER
- MAEETR IS K B — A B RE - B AT S B EATR 18
BEENPHAABEAEE Et AEEEHE -
THeRERaEERERAIIK:

The Group &5 H The Company &2 7

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTRT BT BRTT AT

Deferred tax assets EETETBEE (174) (192) = -
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 106,440 102,825 39,414 44,244
106,266 102,633 39,414 44,244

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$159,676,000 (2011:
HK$155,665,000) which can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses amounting to HK$45,709,000 are expiring from 2013
through 2017 (2011: HK$42,389,000 expiring from 2012 through 2016).
The remaining tax losses do not have expiry dates.

MEE 2 REBEEERBEERR UWHBRS
FBEBARESBARERNENERZHEA
R ANEBEABERELRBEE FREHRES
#159,676,0007T ( =& —— 4 : # #155,665,000
TC)  HAAE DK R RERBRRA - BEEE
45,709,000t 7 BB ENR —_E—=FE _T—+FR
fEim ( Z B ——% : #142,389,000 R —E——
FEZT—XNFRER) - EHRBIBLEEMEFR -

2012 8 EZEEEERAA
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28 Bank loans

Bank loans, wholly payable within

28 MITER

The Group &5 H

2012
HK$’000
‘¥ TT

The Company &2

20M

five years RITE K 1,142,904 830,647 587,904 496,647
The repayment schedule of bank RITERZ BFEATIR
loans is as follows: NS
Short term revolving bank loans REERRITER 625,000 533,000 250,000 199,000
Portion of bank loans due for AR—FANERZIRTT
repayment within one year *?ximﬁ 91,450 19,743 67,450 19,743
Portion of bank loans due for SERERBEAER
repayment after one year which *ﬁ{éi@ﬁ@ZﬁEﬂE
contain a repayment on demand REBD
clause
() in the second year () MRE_F3H 107,640 37,450 83,640 37,450
(i) in the third to fifth years, iy RE=Z=FRF
inclusive ZI HA 318,814 240,454 186,814 240,454
1,142,904 830,647 587,904 496,647

Notes:

(@  The bank loans of the Group and the Company were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and carried weighted average interest rates of 2.3% and 1.8% (2011: 2.1%

and 1.8%) per annum respectively.

(b)  The bank loans of HK$225,000,000 are secured by the Group’s leasehold land and
building of approximately HK$382,000,000 (2011: HK$350,000,000).

() A floating charge over the assets of certain subsidiaries of the Group is charged to a

bank loan of HK$180,000,000.

(d)  The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate their fair value.
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REBRAR R ZRITETABE BB R EETFHE
MES R R2.3%5%1.8% (ZF——F:21%K%1.8%) °

RITE A5 1225000000tz HHERARNEEZHE
+ i AR T (BEX) 2/8%382,000,0000T (=T ——4:

350,000,0007T) ©

*Iﬁfiﬁ‘é X4 55 180,000,000 T AR £ B E T B
REIZEEEFBIFL -

RITERZREEEER
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29 4% coupon bonds

On 19 June 2012, the Company issued 4% coupon bonds at a principal
amount of HK$135,000,000 (the “Bonds 1") for a consideration of
HK$135,000,000. 135,000,000 warrants (the “Warrants 1”) were issued,
for no additional payment, by the Company to the first holders of the
Bonds 1 on the basis of one warrant for every HK$1.00 in the principal
amount of the Bonds 1 taken up. On 3 August 2012, the Company issued
another 4% coupon bonds at a principal amount of HK$54,000,000 (the
“Bonds 2") for a consideration of HK$54,000,000. 54,000,000 warrants
(the “Warrants 2") were issued, for no additional payment, by the Company
to the first holders of the Bonds 2 on the basis of one warrant for every
HK$1.00 in the principal amount of the Bonds 2 taken up.

Both the Bonds 1 and the Bonds 2 bear interest at 4% per annum and will
mature on the date immediately following twelve months after the issue of
Bonds. The Company may at any time before the maturity date redeem the
Bonds (in whole or in part) at 100% of the total principal amount of such
Bonds together with payment of interests accrued up to the date of such
early redemption. The effective interest rates of the liability element before
and after issuance costs are 13.9% and 17.4% respectively for the Bonds 1,
and 17.1% and 21.1% respectively for the Bonds 2.

Both the Warrants 1 and the Warrants 2 are exercisable at any time from
the date of issue at an exercise price of HK$1.00 per share, subject to
adjustments, to subscribe for shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2012, 135,000,000 warrants of the Warrants 1 and 54,000,000 warrants
of the Warrants 2 were outstanding. Exercise in full of the outstanding
Warrants 1 and Warrants 2 would result in the issue of 135,000,000 and
54,000,000 additional shares with an aggregate subscription amount of
HK$135,000,000 and HK$54,000,000 respectively.

The initial recognitions of the 4% coupon bonds are set out as below:
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29

fREMBERERMEE

4%RBEF

AR-—T——FXA+TNE ARFBETI%NZEES
EE A% 5 A7 135,000,0007T ([EA1])  RE
/A7515135,000,0007T ° 135,000,00017) 5215 ([32
feRERE ) BARRBIT TERI 2EHRFEA KBS
BEBEIMIF BEAFABEFI RS LSBT LY
1.007C A EE—MRREFE - R=_E——FNA=
B ARAIETS 4% EEES  EMASEAS
#54,000,0007T ([fE#2]) X B A&7 54,000,000
JT ° 54,000,00017 RRIERE ([RIEE2]) AR A
BOTERZEUBEAN BEDABIMIK £
EEFHRBEFASEPBBEI.00T Al EE—1H

RAAERE ©

BEHFNNEFIRF B RA%T B W R EREE S
1T+ AR E B EH - KA BRI AR HE B B e By
ERaHkISmnESsS BEReBAEHEESZAS
4858 B E R E IR R ER HHAOFE - ghiE A
REF2ME  BEIBHIOBREBEITAAE N ERF
R D RIAE13.9%817.4% LA KR17.1%K%21.1% °

RAEIEE 1 LRI E B2 0] (BT A HARE - IR TEE
FREEE1.007T (A] TR ) BERS1T1E - BELARRIEA R
ARHD - N=FE——F+=-A=-+—H " 135,000,000
19 SR AE 75 1 5254,000,00017 RRLHERE 2 (8 AR TT{E » 76
HITHE R RITE Z RRAER 1R EE2 B8R
EEHM£1T7135,000,00005% B%15 & 54,000,0000% %17 * 58
% 48 %8 575 5135,000,0007T M 78 54,000,000

BRERA%RBESFEIIMT

Bonds 1 Bonds 2
19 June 2012 3 August 2012
BEH1 %2
AA+AhH INBZ=H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Nominal value at date of issue RETHHZEE 135,000 54,000
Equity component R HEE (11,786) (6,048)
Transaction cost paid B[R SKA (3,595) (1,571)
Carrying amount at date of issue REITH B2 REE 119,619 46,381

2012 8 EZEEBEERAA
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29

30

4% coupon bonds (continued)
The movements of the liability component of the 4% coupon bonds are set
out below:

29

1%RBEHEF ®
L%BEEEHZBBEBHEBSHHIIMT

Bonds 1 Bonds 2 Total

"% R%H2 et

HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFIT BT T BT T

At 1 January 2012 R-B——F—HF—H - - -
Issue of 4% coupon bonds BITA%ZE B EFH 119,619 46,381 166,000
Imputed interest expense (Note 7) HEFBMAX (MiF7) 7,985 2,992 10,977
At 31 December 2012 RZTE——F+=A=+—H 127,604 49,373 176,977

Subsequent to year end, 55,000,000 warrants of Warrants 1 were exercised
and 55,000,000 ordinary shares were issued. The Company redeemed
the Bonds 1 for the aggregate amount of HK$55,000,000. As of the date
of this report, the outstanding principal amount was HK$80,000,000 for
Bonds 1 and HK$54,000,000 for Bonds 2.

Payables and accruals

The Group &£ H

30

R 1% + 55,000,00017 RALIE BN 2 RN EE B &
1718 }% B #£7755,000,0000% I 18 % - KA &) HE Bl &5
14 %8 4285 #£55,000,0007T « A AR 45 HHR - &1
MEF2HAREER S TED B A7 1E80,000,0007T &
P54 000,0007T, ©

FEfTARRR R FE AT B

The Company E2F)

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BT HBETT BT T
Trade payables — third parties ESRNER-F=FH 1,265,722 1,191,223 - -
Retention payables — third parties RE S EMAERR
—¥=h 312,490 234,258 - -
1,578,212 1,425,481 - -
Other payables, deposits and HEM R e &
accruals EstE A
—third parties vl 442,401 293,778 17,175 19,454
— accruals for tax liabilities on e N
acquisition of land parcels 3 > FE S A I8
in Tieling af& 363,419 358,950 - -
— payables related to acquisition — % RN B L A
of a subsidiary 2 FERTERRR
(Note i) (B &Ei) 1,874 17,375 - 14,500
— subsidiaries —HIB AR - - - 20
2,385,906 2,095,584 17,175 33,974
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30 Payables and accruals (continued)

31

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and Company’s payables and accruals

are denominated in the following currencies:
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30 EFERRENER &)
AEERAA T EN R RSB R EEENT
5| S5 M (E A B -

The Group &M The Company &2 5

Hong Kong dollar ot 1,655,525 1,359,425 17,175 33,974
Renminbi AR 620,569 661,798 = -
Macau pataca SR PTEE 109,812 74,055 = -
Other Hity - 306 - -

2,385,906 2,095,584 17,175 33,974

The aging analysis of trade and retention payables by due days is as follows:

B 5 HEREEENERIIZIAZRESTOT

The Group &K H

2012 2011
HK$’'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Not yet due REIH 1,472,821 1,346,488
1 to 30 days —XE=t+X 33,304 31,580
31 to 90 days e B N i b N 27,020 6,250
91 to 180 days nt+—XRE2—BNA+TX 7,331 11,013
Over 180 days —BNATRRE 37,736 30,150
1,578,212 1,425,481

Notes: PR -

(i) The payables related to acquisition of a subsidiary included an amount due to a
director of HK$1,874,000 (2011: consideration of HK$14,500,000 and an amount
due to a director of HK$2,875,000). The amount due to director is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and has no fixed repayment term.

Amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests
Amounts due from/(to) non-controlling interests are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts
approximate their fair value, and are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

() FRUE-RMHNBARZENFRRERN —BEER
IR 11,874,0007T, ( =% —— 4+ HfE/8714,500,0007T
KN — R ERFIREE2,8750007T) < B —HBEER
TR - .8 KR Bl R -

31 Bl ()RR ERRE
FEM (1) FEE MRS SR T IR T - 2 B R
TEIR AR o HEREE S A A AR I E BOE
REfi-
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32 Senior loan note
On 18 November 2011, a senior loan note of HK$500,000,000 was issued
by the Company in settlement of part of the consideration of acquisition of
land parcels in Tieling, the PRC. The senior loan note is interest free for an
initial nine months and bears interest at 4% per annum thereafter, and will
mature on 17 November 2013.

In 2012, the senior loan note was fully settled of which HK$365,711,000
was repaid by cash and the remaining balance of HK$134,289,000 was
settled through settlement agreements. (Note 41)

33 Convertible bonds
(a) 4% convertible bonds

On 15 August 2012, the Company issued 4% convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$49,000,000 in settlement of the senior
loan note. The 4% convertible bonds are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and will be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount plus
4% interest on 14 August 2013 (the “Maturity Date 1”).

The 4% convertible bonds entitle the holders to convert them into
ordinary shares of the Company at any time from the date of issue,
subject to adjustments, to convert for ordinary shares of the Company
until Maturity Date 1. The conversion price of 4% convertible bonds is
HK$1.00 per share.

As at 31 December 2012, the 4% convertible bonds with the principal
amount of HK$47,000,000 were outstanding.

Subsequent to year end, 4% convertible bonds of HK$36,000,000
was converted into 36,000,000 ordinary shares. As of the date of this
report, the outstanding principal amount was HK$11,000,000.
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R-T——F+—A+N\B ARAETHE
500,000,0007T Z B L EREE AU U ES
HEMROBORE-BAERZEREYNEA
BB HEBREFNRI%E WBER-T—=4F
+—A+tB3H-

R-ZT——F BLEEREBRCBHEN EHEE
365,711,0007T LAZR & (B4 - i #2588 1 134,289,000
TCRBBAT A E H ST o (FIsE41)

R B% R &

@) 4%EETJHRRES
RZB——FN\A+HB ARATETALE
75149,000,0007T HI4% 2= B A AL (& H B HE
EEREE - 4% Z B ARIRESFBERHE
WHER—ZE—=FNA+WMA ([BIERA1])
2100% A& 5B INFI B4%FEE -

A% B MR ESFE TRHA ARMNEHRES
RARFERR ABTEH (T FHR)EE
ZHHABERERARE LB - 4%REA]
B EFNERESESRERE1.00T-

R-BE——F+_A=+—H KLEEK
47,000,000 H4% 22 B A AR (& 55 (4 R TT{E

RERIE  7B136,000,0007T AT AR E A O %
/436,000,0000% A% - IAAIRE B Ef - REE
N4 58 A7 11,000,0007T ©



33 Convertible bonds (continued)
(b) Convertible bonds

On 18 November 2011, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$759,210,000 in settlement of
the Tieling Acquisition. The convertible bonds are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and will be redeemed at 100% of the principal
amount on 17 November 2018 (“Maturity Date 2").

The convertible bonds entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time between the date of issue of
the convertible bonds and their expiry on the Maturity Date 2 at a
conversion price of HK$1.53 per share. The holder of the convertible
bonds has the right to require the Company to redeem all or some of
the bonds on the fifth anniversary of the date of their issue.

The convertible bonds or any part(s) thereof may be transferred at any
time with prior notice served to the Company, provided such transfer
shall also be in compliance with the conditions under the convertible
bonds and, save for the consent of the Stock Exchange, none of the
convertible bonds may be transferred to a connected person of the
Company.

The holder of convertible bonds will have the right to convert the
convertible bonds into the shares of the Company subject to, among
other things, any conversion of the convertible bonds (a) shall not
trigger a mandatory offer obligation under Rule 26 of the Takeovers
Code on the part of the holder of the convertible bonds exercising the
conversion right and its party(ies) acting in concert as defined under
the Takeovers Code; and (b) will not cause the public float of the
Company unable to meet the requirement under the Listing Rules.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability and
equity elements. The equity element is presented in equity heading
“convertible bonds and warrants equity reserve”. The imputed
financial cost of the convertible bonds and effective interest cost
of 4% convertible bonds are calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate of 6.5% and 14.4% per
annum, respectively. The carrying amounts of the convertible bonds
and the 4% convertible bonds approximate to its fair value as at 31
December 2012.
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33 AR (&)

(b)

R ES
R-B——F+— A+ N\B ARBETAE
#8578 1759,210,0007T 2 TE B Al H#ARES
LMEAENEEKEEE Y RE - AT RKRES
BB REA WER—E—N\F+—A++
B ([2/HIA2])1%100% K4 286 M -

AR EFETREARND RAl R ESF%E
TTHHMEIH A2 BERRERESREY
1537 RN R R E B - Al R RS 25 55
BEARRERARBREITA R mABEF
EHABEEMALANES

AHRBRE SR E TR AR AARAEHE
AUBARBER TSR EAHEBRANAT
BEESZ G-I BRSERSH PRS- S Al
ABRBEESHT SR TARRMEAL-

AHRRE SRR AR B R AR E 5 LK
AREAD - CEAP B3 ) ER LR R AE
7@ N E S| BRTTE AR 2 AT E ST/ A A
RE-BITBAL (EELWE TR RIBKE
ST RISE26IRE LR B W ERE BT RO
TEEYARRRZ ARFFRERENE LHH
AIZ AR5

AR ESBIEAE RS ED D - s
DEFRA [T ES M RIRE B E ] 2
RN e AR ES 2 HE MR AN R4%E S
AR ES 2 BRI R A TIRABERF S
W5 RIEFRERRFHFE6.5%M14.4% & o D
T+ _A=1+—8 #RELENM%
=R BMBREFZ FAERE A ERS -
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33 Convertible bonds (continued) 33 n@ERESH (&)

(b) Convertible bonds (continued) (b) ABERES (&)
The initial recognitions of the convertible bonds and 4% convertible AR IES RA%R B A MR ES 2 VI HER
bonds are set out as below: HE T
Convertible 4% convertible
bonds bonds
18 November 2011 15 August 2012
TR ESE 4%ELTHERES
—Eg—% —E—_F§
+—A+IJ\H NA+EHH
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Nominal value at date of issue BITRAICZEE 759,210 49,000
Equity component R EB (245,342) (3,409)
Transaction cost paid BERRZ SR - (1,225)
Special reserve R (26,453) -
Carrying amount at date of issue BITHEZEREE 487,415 44,366
The movements of the liability component of the convertible bonds REZABMRES RA%RBAIRRES 28
and 4% convertible bonds are set out below: B EBHF AT -
Convertible 4% convertible
bonds bonds Total
4%ER
AR RS G o3 et
HK’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H - - -
Issue of convertible bonds BITA AR E S 487,415 - 487,415
Imputed interest expense (Note 7) & F BB (HI5E7) 3,648 - 3,648
At 31 December 2011 RZB——F+-A=+—H 491,063 - 491,063
Issue of 4% convertible bonds BEITA% R E R ES - 44,366 44,366
Imputed interest expense (Note 7)  HEF 85I (MH5E7) 32,094 1,678 33,772
Conversion to ordinary shares of EHR AR R EER (M15E34)
the Company (Note 34) - (1,860) (1,860)
At 31 December 2012 RZBE——F+-_A=+—H 523,157 44,184 567,341
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34 Share capital and share options 34 BRAEXRDERE
(a) Share capital @) BZE
2012 2011
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
Ein& B E®TT fig 1785 B BT T
T B T
Authorised, ordinary shares of 5 i% ¥ if A% #%0.1
HK$0.1 each: TTZEERSE:
At the beginning of the year REL] 5,000,000 500,000 1,000,000 100,000
Increase of authorised ordinary 34 VA & I i@ A%
shares - - 4,000,000 400,000
At the end of the year FAEE K 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BERTREEZ
fully paid: 1R
At the beginning of the year REF] 946,350 94,635 673,174 67,317
Issue of shares upon conversion B #249% 28 S AT # %
of 4% convertible bonds' BEHFEEITRD 2,000 200 - -
Issue of shares for the acquired ~ AUWEREEE Y
land parcels in Tieling? IR 7 BEATRR (72 - - 143,000 14,300
Placing of new shares? fic & 3 I - - 125,850 12,585
Shares issued pursuant to BRI ERT 818
share option schemes* Z R - - 4,326 433
At the end of the year RER 948,350 94,835 946,350 94,635
1 During the year, these shares were issued pursuant to the exercise of 4% ! RAFE ZERGERITE=T—=—FN\A+H

convertible bonds issued on 15 August 2012. These shares rank pari passu in

(b)

all aspects with other shares in issue.

On 18 November 2011, the Company issued and allotted a total of
143,000,000 shares of HK$1.53 each to Neo Summit Limited for acquiring
land parcels in Tieling (Note 36). These shares rank pari passu in all respects
with other shares in issue.

On 30 December 2011, the Company issued and allotted a total of
125,850,000 shares of HK$1.1 each and the net proceeds of which were used
to repay senior loan note. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with
other shares in issue.

These shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the exercise of options
granted under the share option scheme by the Company adopted on 22 May
2008 during year 2011.

Share options

2008 Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 22 May 2008 (the
2008 Option Scheme”). Pursuant to the 2008 Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company may, at their absolute discretion, grant
options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules of the 2008 Option
Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any employee, executive
director, non-executive director and independent non-executive
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(b)

HEITZ4%RE A MBRERRET - ZERMN K
REDHEEMBEETRN ZH RS -

? ARARZE——F+ AT \BRIRERA
$£143,000,0000% & f% B 1.537T 2 B 1D F Neo
Summit Limited (¥TU&AR A )  LAEERI A&
&8 2 3R (B1EE36) °

3 ARRRZE——F+_A=+HBTREES
$£125,850,0008% & A% B S #1170 2 B 45 M AT
BRBFERUNEEELAERTIER - ZERMERN
EHEELMEBETRO ZE RS-

¢ ZERT——FRBEARRAR_ZZN\FHA
— = R 2 R AT B 2 R T
m-F——FETREZEZRN -

ERE

225)\5!5:—7&&%*5]

ZJS _ \ 7 J\Eﬁiﬁ + E” imiléum
Hxﬁﬁﬁ% (F_7 SN\F RS - BIE—
SN\ FREETE RARERAITERY
BiEEmeERAL (EER 2T N\F3 ”Hx
BB ZHRA)  ERE(EREE) AR
HIfB QR AL MRS - #1F E%*#%ﬂﬁﬁi
MBI ERITE R KL RIAE -
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34 Share capital and share options (continued) 34 BRAERBEE 9
(b) Share options (continued) (b) BRI (&)
2008 Option Scheme (continued) —ZEN\FRRETE (B)
Movements in the options under the 2008 Option Scheme during the REZZZNERREAE T 2 RREFARE
year and options outstanding as at the beginning and end of the year &) RRNFRFRZ RITERBARNE R B 1R
and their related average exercise prices are as follows: B2 TR EFBENT
Average Number of
exercise price share options
FHITEE R E
(HK$ per share) ‘000
(BT T8
At 1 January 2011 W-E——&—HA—8H 1.76 4,117
Granted BERH 1.41 6,750
Exercised 21Tl 0.92 (4,326)
Lapsed 2R 2.13 (2,667)
At 31 December 2011 R-Z——F+-H=1—H 1.77 40,874
Lapsed 2R 2.13 (1,000)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ——F+=-A=+—H 1.76 39,874
Out of 39,874,000 outstanding options (2011: 40,874,000 39,874,000 R1TE 2 B (—F——45:
outstanding options), 37,207,000 options (2011: 31,541,000 options) 40,874,000 171 2 SRAXE ) & 7 /537,207,000
were exercisable with the average exercise price of HK$1.78 (2011: DR (=& ——4:31,541,000:R 178 ) &
HK$1.92). AITTEEE) o FIFTEEABREK 1787 (ZF
——F:B¥1.927T)
For the share options exercised during year 2011, the related weighted T ——FOEIRBRENS  RITERZ
average share price at time of exercise was HK$1.68. HERA htE TR (B A S 1E1.687T ©
Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise MARTTERRAE 2 BB A RITEENT
price:
Average
Expiry date E|/HAA exercise price Number of share options ("000)
FEHITEER OB HERE (FB)
(HK$ per share)
(BRBETT) m 2011
22 May 2018 “E-)\FRA=-1+=H 213 24,200 25,200
3 December 2019 —E-hFTZHA=H 1.02 8,924 8,924
25 April 2021 —E-—FMA-+HHA 1.70 2,000 2,000
31 August 2021 —E-—FN\A=+—H 1.29 4,750 4,750
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34 Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

2008 Option Scheme (continued)

The fair values of the share options granted under the 2008 Option
Scheme were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
The fair values of the share options, and significant inputs into the
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34 BRERZRRE &
(b) BB )
—EBENFERESTE (8)
BIE-TT N\ FRBESBFMELRRES A
REDNER-EA T EERET - AER
B AR ERZER Y EBHARERBSR

model and assumptions were as follows: R
Date of issue of share options BITRIREZ BH 26 April 2011 1 September 2011
22— 22—
mA=+7xH hA—H
Number of share options RS E 2,000,000 4,750,000
Exercise price (HK$) 1T E (BIT) 1.70 1.29
Share price on grant date (HK$) RIRE BRI ZRRE (BE ) 1.70 1.29
Average fair value BHREE 2 FHRRE (BET)
per share option (HK$) 0.578 0.544
Expected volatility TEET IR 53.98% 55.53%
Expected life of the options (years) TE BAGR AR #E 2 B HR (£F) 10 10
Risk-free rate 42 [ e 1) 2 2.65% 1.788%
Synergis Option Scheme FEEEBRETE

Synergis adopted a share option scheme on 19 September 2003 (the
"“Synergis Option Scheme”) pursuant to the shareholders’ resolutions
of Synergis passed on 19 September 2003. Pursuant to the Synergis
Option Scheme, the directors of Synergis, at their absolute discretion,
may grant share options to eligible persons (as defined in the rules
of the Synergis Option Scheme) who might include, inter alia, any
employee, executive director, non-executive director and independent
non-executive director of Synergis or its subsidiaries.

Movements in the share options under the Synergis Option Scheme
during the year and share options outstanding as at the beginning and
end of the year and their related average exercise prices are as follows:

BREHNEEBR_ZZ=FILATNLBERAZ
BERZER FEEERR-_ZEZ=FhLAT+AI
ARM—IEERETS ([FEERBERET
21 - RIEFETEERENE FETEES
BRUMBEIRNAERAL (EERHEE
BERETSIZRA)  ERE(EREEB)M
EEESHEMBARZAMES HiTEE-
ERITEERBIUIERITE SR ERE-

7 REN S SERBRE 8 TR 2
B IR R 4 R 2 R AT (AR R
AW THTEENT

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FigiTEE REREsE

(HK$ per share) ‘000

(BRBEETT) TR

At 1 January 2011 R-Z——F—HF—H 0.82 12,650
Granted BT 0.83 5,550
Lapsed [ 0.83 (2,100)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=ZRA=+—H 0.83 16,100
Lapsed B R 0.85 (2,850)
At 31 December 2012 R—E——F+-_A=+—H 0.82 13,250
Out of 13,250,000 outstanding options (2011: 16,100,000 713,250,000 R T 2 Mgk (Z T ——%F :

outstanding options), 3,090,000 options (2011: 4,820,000 options)
were exercisable with the average exercise price of HK$0.82 (2011:
HK$0.82).

16,100,000 17 2 R B4 ) & = 53,090,000
PREPEAE ( —Z——4F : 4,820,000:2 0% 1 ) A] &
T T EBAEKS2TT (- ——4F:
BH0.827T) ©
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34 Share capital and share options (continued)
(b) Share options (continued)

)

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise
price:

34 BRERDIRE »
(b) 2B (&)

HARTTEBREZZIHA RITEEMT

Average
Expiry date ELE )] exercise price Number of share options ("000)
BiTEE A (T)
(HK$ per share)
(BlREHETT) m 2011
24 September 2013 —E-=FAA=+HEA 0.82 1,650 1,800
31 August 2015 —E-HENA=1+—A8 0.76 1,500 1,500
24 September 2015 —E-hAFAA-+IA 0.83 8,450 9,050
6 June 2017 —tFRARA 0.86 1,650 3,750
The fair values of the share options granted under the Synergis Option RIEFTEEEEREEI TRE ZEBIREAN A

Scheme were determined using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
The fair values of the share options, and significant inputs into the
model and assumptions were as follows:

BENRE-_AAREEEEAETE - BEEZA
REEZEARAZEEBIERERAT

Date of issue of share options BITRMRME 2 A Ef 7 June 2011 1 September 2011
—ZE—$XAtH —E—FnA—H
Number of share options RS E 4,050,000 1,500,000
Exercise price (HK$) IEE (BBT) 0.86 0.76
Share price on grant date (HK$) ML B ’RE (BT 0.86 0.76
Average fair value BHREE T ARE (BET)
per share option (HK$) 0.212 0.201
Expected volatility TR IR 46.30% 52.92%
Expected life of the options (years) T BRRR R #E 2 B H (F) 6 4
Risk-free rate mE kA= 1.63% 0.53%

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatilities of the
share prices of Synergis over the period that is equal to the expected
life before the grant date.

2002 Share Scheme

The 2002 Share Scheme was adopted by the shareholders of the
Company on 23 August 2002. Pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme,
the directors may make offers to full-time employees and executive
directors of the Group (“the Group” in the context describing the
2002 Share Scheme shall have the definition ascribed to it under
the rules of the 2002 Share Scheme) who have worked for a period
of not less than six months to subscribe for shares in the capital of
the Company. The 2002 Share Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from 23 August 2002, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Share
Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no share was issued and
allotted pursuant to the 2002 Share Scheme.
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mEMBRRWE
Reserves of the Company 35 FAEEE
Convertible
Capital bonds and
Share redemption  Share options Special warrants Retained
Premium reserve reserve reserve  equity reserve profits Total
RERESR
RREE
BHRAE REREERE RRERERE W RIGGR HaGkHE REEH #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%—-A—-H 182,517 4,420 24,696 - - 205,191 416,824
Profit for the year REERT - = . - - 299,435 299,435
Issue of shares BIIRA 125,850 - - - - - 125,850
Transaction cost of issuance of shares BIRAZRBRA (4332 - - - - - (4332)
Issue of share capital upon RERBREMETL
share options exercised A 5,027 - (1,467) - - - 3,560
Equity settled share-based transactions LAM“?%%WZME
- - 2,868 - - - 2,868
Transfer upon share options lapsing wﬂﬂ&%xﬁlﬁﬁiﬁ - - (2,042) - - 2,042 -
Issue of shares and recognition of #mﬁku&ﬂ%i’{i‘éiﬁﬁﬂ&
spedial reserve and equity component of BIRAR
convertible bonds upon completion of TERIARES 2
land parcels acquisition in Tieling BhlRE RS
i 204,490 - - 332,046 245,342 - 781,878
Deferred tax liability on recognition of ﬁﬁnﬂ?ﬁﬂﬁmﬁ’é
equity component of convertible note B EEHIE
%1 - - - - (44,846) - (44,846)
Dividends paid B - - - - - (44,037) (44,037)
331,035 - (641) 332,046 200,496 257,440 1,120,376
At 31 December 2011 and RZZF——
1 January 2012 +=8= + BR
“£--%-8-A 513,552 4,420 24,055 332,046 200,496 462,631 1,537,200
Profit for the year KEREF - - - - - 350,205 350,205
Issue of shares upon conversion of B Z S HARE
4% convertible bonds %&?‘ﬁﬁxf" 1,822 - - - (139) - 1,683
Recognition of equity component of HRA%EE b —H‘*Hx
4% convertible bonds %“H et - - - - 3,409 - 3,409
Deferred tax liability on recognition of 4%ZE —Wﬂﬂ 52
equity component of 4% BRBH
convertible bonds EEHEER - - - - (765) - (765)
Equity settled share-based transactions Mﬁx ?%EE‘*ZHXJE
- - 2,261 - - - 2,261
Recognition of warrants - - - - 17,834 - 17,834
Transfer upon share options lapsing - - (764) - - 764 -
Dividends paid - - - - - (47,318) (47,318)
1,822 - 1,497 - 20,339 (46,554) (22,89%)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-—%
+-A=+—H 515,374 4,420 25,552 332,046 220,835 766,282 1,864,509
Representing: R&
Reserves [ 513,552 4,420 24,055 332,046 200,496 438,972 1,513,541
Final dividend proposed i respect of REBZE-_Z—%
the year ended 31 December 2011 +ZA=+—AHIE
FRZREBS - - - - - 23,659 23659
At 31 December 2011 f——ﬁ A
_+ 513,552 4,420 24,055 332,046 200,496 462,631 1,537,200
Representing: H&:
Reserves f#ME 515,374 4,420 25,552 332,046 220,835 740,298 1,838,525
Final dividend proposed in respect of BEEE_Z——F
the year ended 31 December 2012 TZA=+—HL
FEZRERE - - - - - 25,984 25,984
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—%
+-A=+— 515,374 4,420 25,552 332,046 220,835 766,282 1,864,509
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36 Acquisition of land parcels in Tieling
On 18 November 2011, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital
of Rosy China Investments Limited and Sorano Investments Limited, which
hold the land use rights of certain land parcels in Tieling, the PRC (the
“Tieling Acquisition”), from Neo Summit Limited, which is indirectly and
partially owned by a director of the Company, at a total consideration of
HK$1,828,000,000, which was satisfied by the way of:

(i) HK$350,000,000 by cash consideration;
(i) HK$500,000,000 by issue of senior loan note;

(i) HK$218,790,000 by allotment and issue of 143 million shares at the
issue price of HK$1.53 per share by the Company; and

(iv)  The remaining HK$759,210,000 by issue of convertible bonds by the
Company.

Neo Summit Limited became a shareholder of the Company following the
completion of the transaction. The purchase constitutes an asset acquisition
and a related party transaction. Details of the Tieling Acquisition are
summarised below:

36 UTRBAIRS SRz bR

WZZE——%F+—F+ N8B ZA&EEMHENeo Summit
Limited CErI& AR A 7% ) Wi Rosy China Investments
Limited£ZSorano Investments LimitedZ 2 302 317 I%
N ZME AT AREEEE T2 - E R
#E (T8 W BEETE])  Neo Summit Limited (¥71&75
RAE*)HARREEZMERFFBHER - BRE
778 #51,828,000,0007T - B LA T HI 5 R A -

(i)  75%350,000,0007C AR S RE AT

(i)  7B%500,000,000TEBETELERZESL
K

(i) 7E#218,790,0007Ti5 B AR AR TE TSRS
#1537 At % K2 3% 77143,000,0000% I& 1 32 1
54

(iv) #8%875%759,210,0007T 5 @A &) 3517 A # AL
BEHZ Ao

R AR 5 1% - Neo Summit Limited (¥ BR A
AR ABARRAR ZIRE - HHEWEERK —BEER
BrEEQARIR S AEEHEKESE ZFISEH
[ulNE

Carrying
amount
before Adjustments
combination on acquisition Fair value
SHRIZ HikiEz
IRE{E RE L5RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TT BETT BRTT
Land use rights TP 574,896 1,904,749 2,479,645
Other net assets acquired: BB AE Mt EEFE:
Property, plant and equipment MIEE - HES R AR 569 - 569
Accounts and other receivables BR B M2 H h FE U BR 3R 172 - 172
Cash and bank deposits ] & RRITIFH 84,626 - 84,626
Accounts and other payables B B R E M RE A BR K (76,105) (355,314) (431,419)
584,158 1,549,435 2,133,593

*  for identification purposes only (£ 5% 5
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36 Acquisition of land parcels in Tieling (continued)

37
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36 WrRBAIRESRZHbR (&)

Nominal Fair
Value Value
IREE SfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT BRTT

Satisfied by: PANIVESENE

Cash consideration RERE 350,000 350,000

Senior loan note BEERERE 500,000 500,000

Convertible bonds AR ES 759,210 732,757

Issuance of shares 2ETRG 218,790 218,790

1,828,000 1,801,547

Special reserve, being fair value FRlEECWEEETE

difference between net assets HENREZAABEER

acquired and consideration paid 332,046

2,133,593

Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of & BJUK i s it ~

land parcels in Tieling: WembFE:

Cash consideration paid ERNRERE 350,000

Cash and bank deposits acquired B EER S RIRTTFR (84,626)

265,374

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 25 November 2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired the entire issued share capital of HCPD, which was wholly and
beneficially owned by a director of the Company before the acquisition, at
a consideration of HK$19,500,000. HCPD engages in providing real estate
related investment advisory services. The purchase method is adopted
for this acquisition, resulting in goodwill arising from the acquisition of

HK$23,249,000.

37 KiE—MMELAT
R-Z——F+—A-+HB ARA2EHEEM
BRARWNEHNSHELRE 22 EITRG %A
ARKBEEBEAIHARREELEREREES
RIEAB19,500,0007T - FTEMEBRREENER
HEMRREISEBERY - B E S BRAKRE L
B S FIEE £ 2B 1623,249,000T ©
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37 Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) 37 KE—FHMBATE (&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at
the date of acquisition and the effect of the acquisition are summarised as
follows:

KRR BRI E T BRI EERMAREREZAR
BERKEERZZERDRNT

HK$'000
#¥TT

Consideration transferred: EERRE:
Cash consideration RBERE 5,000
Payable as at 31 December 2011 R-TB——F+ - A=+—HER 14,500
19,500
Net liabilities acquired: 2 EEBEFE:
Property, plant and equipment Y - Hes KR 308
Accounts and other receivables R B e H At FE W BR X 6,991
Cash and bank deposits R& RBITFR 1,426
Accounts and other payables AR B R H h FE AT RR R (3,441)
Tax payable R (33)
Bank loans IRITER (9,000)
(3,749)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: AU EmEE 2 EE:
Consideration transferred EEBERE 19,500
Add: net liabilities acquired mEREEERE 3,749
23,249
Net cash outflow in respect of acquisition of HE-T——F+-A=+—HILFE
a subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2011: FUE BB AR RS ML F8E:
Cash consideration paid ERBReRE 5,000
Cash and bank deposits acquired BUEER & RIRTTIFHK (1,426)
3,574

The outstanding amount of consideration payable of HK$14,500,000 was
fully settled during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The gross contractual amount for accounts and other receivables acquired is
as disclosed above and no amount is expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to HCPD’s workforce,
and the synergies were expected to arise after the acquisition.

The acquired business contributed no revenues and recorded a loss of
HK$2.0 million for the period from acquisition up to 31 December 2011. If
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2011, the contributed revenues
and recorded loss would have been HK$7.3 million and HK$4.1 million
respectively.

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012

KEBEMKBLEB14,500,000T EREE—
T+ A=+ —HIFERNRREN-

SR EUER T R M ERRIBEZ A RSN £
X EE - TRHIN AR AT A E

WIREEMEL  HERRANMEMELRNSEH
1 R BB R TR AT E RO 5 (R0

BWEEBEE _T——F+_A=+—HIHfH"
Fri Bt mE RS T WG EEBE
2,000,0007C * i EEETER — T ——F—F —H%
4R B R R ERE B 2 R A %7,300,0007T
K 7 #4,100,0007T ©



38 Transactions with non-controlling interests — disposal

of interest in a subsidiary without loss of control

On 30 November 2012, the Company disposed of ISP division to Driven
Power at a total consideration of HK$257,488,000, consisting of cash
settlement of HK$180,000,000, 58,666,667 convertible preference shares
("CPS”) and 21,333,333 Bonus CPS. The Bonus CPS will be issued by
Synergis to the Group if the actual profits of ISP division for the year ended
31 December 2012 exceeds HK$30,000,000. As a result of issuance of CPS
by Synergis, the interest of non-controlling interests in Synergis decreased
from 49.06% to 41.69%. The transaction with non-controlling interests has
resulted in a gain of HK$77,664,000 to the Group and was recognised in
other reserve accordingly. There were no transactions with non-controlling
interests in 2011.

The effects of transactions with non-controlling interests on the equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012 are as follows:
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38 FFiRRRE @35 —HH & MR KR H

HMEATER
R-E——HF+—F=+H AQAHETRNE
i 2 k18 B 209 F Driven Power @R 1(B A H
#257,488,000 E R B ERSBEREBE
180,000,0007T * 58,666,667 I A B 4 {5 4 J ([ 7] &
{8 S i% ) 221,333,333 AL 7| 7] &8 4 (8 55 A% o it
EREMEEHRBERSMPREE T ——F+=-A
=+ HIEFEMNER G B85 30,000,000 *
All% E'**EEH1W$¢l?r‘fwﬂﬂTMNEﬁ%h EEI
RETEERETAN T EIRE LR RS
B FEHER AR HE 25 MO AE 25 F149.06% RF&EE41.69% © &t#
T IR 2 5 B AN 5 B 5 R B #577,664,0007T 2 I
& RS R RN B R N ——4F
WEIFERAE TR 5 o

BE_T——F+-_A=1—BLFEHEFZRE
B RXHEARFIEG A ANRIEREZZENT

HK$'000
BRTT
Total comprehensive income for the period AATRERE ARBREGEERGEE
attributable to equity holders of the Company 237,682
Changes in equity attributable to equity holders of P — R0 AR O KR R BB A Bl R T
the Company arising from disposal of interest EENRRRIRERE AEIEERES)
in a subsidiary without loss of control 77,664
315,346
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39 Financial guarantees

2012

39 M¥RE

The Group &5 H The Company &2 H)

201

HK$°000
BRTT
Guarantees given to financial BTN EEREE
institutions for facilities granted to R4 T B et
2R
— subsidiaries NG - - 2,992,586 2,675,042
— jointly controlled entities —HEEHE 364,573 264,340 364,573 264,340
364,573 264,340 3,357,159 2,939,382
40 Contingent liabilities 40 BRER

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group is subject to various claims
on liquidated damages of certain construction contracts during the normal
course of business. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has
applied extension of time to mitigate the liquidated damages and any
resulting liability would not materially affect the financial position of the
Group.

41 Major non-cash transactions
The Group entered into settlement agreements with a third party and Neo
Summit Limited, the holder of the senior loan note, to offset the senior loan
note of HK$134,289,000 by the receivables of the same amount due by the
third party.

* for identification purposes only (£ {5
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RZB-—ZFR-ZF——F+A=+—H &%
ER—MERBRPERZESRETREANZ
THEERE-EFTRE AEBIEERRHBR
BrEEESTE AUMELEZABTEHALRE
ZH BB T EATE-

BEXERERH

RN BE B =7 &Neo Summit Limited (&G R
DR (BEXEREBZEEAN) FIMEER
o REIL DA = 4 R 2 7B H5134,289,0007T 7 JIE UL
FIE BEEBZEEEREE-



42 Related party transactions

*

Before 18 November 2011, the directors regarded Upper Luck Holdings
Limited (“Upper Luck”), a company Incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, as its ultimate holding company and Carrick Worldwide ("Carrick
Worldwide”) a company Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the
immediate holding company. Subsequent to the acquisition of land parcels
in Tieling (Note 36) and the issuance of new shares as part of consideration
to Neo Summit Limited, Upper Luck and Carrick Worldwide hold less than
50% of the issued share capital of the Company and therefore ceased
to be the ultimate holding company and immediate holding company,
respectively, of the Company.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary
of significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary
course of business between the Group and its related parties during
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42 RELAFTNRS

R-ZT——F+—A+/\HA EEHUpper Luck
Holdings Limited ([Upper Luck |) (REBELHE
MR 2 AR B AE SRR AR KiCarrick
Worldwide Limited ([Carrick Worldwide |) (FRRHEE
BABESEMRIZ AR BAEEELR AR R
WA s am st 8 (BT 5E36) 31 TR FNeo Summit
Limited (¥7U& %8 R A R)*){EA 1D R E 1% - Upper
Luck } Carrick Worldwide$ B 28 A 8] D 1A50% 2 B2 3
TTIRA - Ei i 0 BN B A AR R 2 SRR A F]
ek s UNCIR

EREATZ ST :

@ MEAMBHRRARBEREATERN REF
NREBERBERAREREEBERZEARR
SMBEIMT

the year.
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Revenues from jointly controlled entities 3 &5 4k [E45 % & 52 ~ Ui 25
Billing on contract (Note i) EHITIERIBFME (MIFE) 741 2,317
Interest income received (Note ii) B B HA (M 5Ei) 296 -
Service fee on arrangement of ERZHE 2 %2 (B i)
guarantee (Note iii) 308 -
Secondment fees and service centre EUEEEFRGEE LR H O
charges received (Note iv) 2R (MsEiv) 1,623 1,475
Expenses 53
Purchase of a motor vehicle, SHTF-—REEREZEER
membership fee and golfing ER 2£ koG ER
expenses paid to a substantial (MtzEv)
shareholder (Note v) 960 1,192

Notes:

(i) A subsidiary provided electrical and mechanical installation services to a jointly
controlled entity on terms and prices agreed by both parties.

(i) Interest income received on other receivable due from a jointly controlled entity
was based on terms and prices agreed by both parties.

(i)~ The Company provided guarantee to a client for a project executed under
a jointly controlled entity. A service fee was charged to the jointly controlled
entity on terms and prices agreed by both parties.

(iv)  Secondment fees received from jointly controlled entities represent staff
secondment services provided by the Group to the joint venture projects.
The relevant services were reimbursed at an agreed rate based on time and
expenses allocated to the joint venture projects. Service centre charges received
from jointly controlled entities represent administrative services provided by the
Group on a fixed monthly sum negotiated at arm'’s length.

(v) Purchase of a motor vehicle, membership fee and golfing expenses paid to a
substantial shareholder was concluded on terms and prices agreed by both
parties. The transaction constitutes a continuing connected transaction under
the definition in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

for identification purposes only £ {74 5/

FIEE A BB HM B LK TRRIRG T — HEZH
B BRGRRERTEE T WE

[ #22 ) B §8 2 Bt FE WUR 302 B A S - T
B 7710 5E A GTR RBAR AR IR ©

(iiy —~ ARRFHAFREFEETHTHOES —ERE [
—(IFPREER MR R E RS E -
BN 2 AR5 B2 T bARE 75 15 7E MO 8RR I (B AR A kR

(v  WEHFREHEEEEEAREEARSTEER
SEMEIAR RTERBERRS BRHREZELE
SECEBEAMBAO B E LA 2 EREE
FIRAE - W g —HREGIER BB LERS
AR ) 5% SRR I B R R TEHE R R B R
R TYIRAFRAFIL - ABE ABIRE -

v BEAE BN-—HEREARZEEREREANY
BRz2RSHIRETHE 2GR RBEMEIL -
ZXGER—BRBERAERS (ERR EWANE
14AF) ©

B
iy
LA
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42 Related party transactions (continued) 42 RELBRS (&)
(b)  Key management compensation b) FTEEBASZHE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Salaries and other benefits B 2 E AT 71,644 48,361
Bonus TEAT 18,992 20,710
Contributions to retirement scheme RIRETEIZ AR 2,269 1,558
Share-based compensation VAR AR 7 BBt 2 i (8 2,233 2,958
95,138 73,587
43 Capital Commitments 43 BEKIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had the capital commitments in REER  REBZWAEREENFERSWAT

respect of office equipment as follows:

2011

HK$'000

ST T

Authorised but not contracted for BRIEERFTY 1,013 1,340
Contracted but not provided for BRTAEREME 1,701,351 1,311
1,702,364 2,651
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REUBRRME
44 Commitments under operating leases 44 BEHRBIKIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease REEB AEERBENAHE E@EROFTRR
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REZM 2 BAEHEFIRBFRT :
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Land and buildings T REF
— not later than one year —%£—FN 15,879 8,286
— later than one year but not later than —EFEEFRFNK
five years 13,120 12,656
28,999 20,942
Office equipment BN
- not later than one year —E—FNRN 216 188
— later than one year but not later than —BZFREFAFNA
five years 371 380
587 568
29,586 21,510

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases, which typically

3

BEB AEERBTAHEHE EEEO (—&HE
A —E=F) RAREN 2 EHERBERRN

\

run for a period of one to three years, as follows: N
2011
HK$'000
BT T
Land and buildings TH RIEF
— not later than one year —F—FN 19,587 22,026
— later than one year but not later than —BZFEFAFN
five years 8,413 26,900
28,000 48,926
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45 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow from operations is

shown as below:

45 ﬁtéﬁﬁ mE

B 50 B v A1) B

B&RME

BZREMAFEERIIRMOT

2011
HK$'000
BT T
Profit before taxation BR 5% Al A1 201,224 212,086
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 13,992 13,992
Cost adjustment/reversal of impairment loss of ESH&E AR AT A Z WETFERAE
stock of properties credited to cost of sales B AR = (15,089)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)% « #2S3 K R i 2 T E 37,180 34,958
Dividend income from available-for-sale AMEHERBEEZREWA
financial assets (6,840) -
Fair value loss on investment properties in EEBZ "EREMELAERBE
Hong Kong 16,390 12,420
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 HZF - (5,906)
Net finance (income)/costs BE (WA, BRAEEE (9,007) 4,035
Net provision for impairment of receivables FEUSE Iaﬂfﬁﬁéﬁgrgﬁ - 129
Net (gain)loss on disposal of property, HEEE - HEs s CaAl) EiR
plant and equipment HER (65) 183
(Reversal of)/provision for annual leave R (Bm) B (14,428) 3,130
Provision for long service payment REAPRTS S B 1,376 1,929
Share-based compensation VAR n B B 2 (8 2,574 3,746
Share of net profits of jointly controlled entities &1y 1k [E)45 # S 2 7 & 75 58 (81,529) (33,875)
Waiver of amounts due to non-controlling R e IR R R e SR IR
interests - (5,141)
Write back of impairment on unsold stocks of 7K H & ¥ 2 15 & s & [0 %5
properties (4,418) (5,599)
Operating profit before working capital BEES P LR
changes 156,449 220,998
Increase in properties under development BERPYIEEILN (140,850) (36,343)
Decrease/(increase) in stocks and contracting & & @R TREE A, (380)
work-in-progress 38,925 (179,319)
Increase in receivables and prepayments FEUT AR R &i‘ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂﬂ (40,641) (488,086)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from FEUL FEIE AR A 2 k7 (35 0) Rk
a non-controlling interest (3,446) 259
Increase in payables and accruals FH%?A&F‘%%?W*M 219,744 481,916
Decrease/(increase) in restricted deposits SR I ROR A (38 0) 3,715 (3,715)
Exchange differences MEHEH (7,280) 19,914
Net cash inflow from operations L 2B MmN TR 226,616 15,624
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46 ETEMELT

fREMBERERME

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
48 Wi/ 2l Esh FEEFRGEREREAL ERTRBERF TERH
F4% HEAT
Cogent Spring Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$85,000,002  Property investment
BB 78500000 MERE
Ever Apex Construction (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Registered Contractor services
Company Limited 2 BPI5.000  AERERE
KERE (R BRATA
Glenwell Orient Limited Hong Kong - 70% HK$100  Investment holding
SERABRAA £ w00 REER
Guangzhou Fengyu Real Estate Co., Ltd.* The People’s Republic of - 2% HK$80,000,000  Real estate development
(Notes 1 &3) China 80000000  FEHEER
BMEREHEBRAR (HE15R3) hEARANE
HCCG Building and Civil Engineering (Macau) Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Building construction and
Limited R JBPIH25,0007T civil engineering
HERERTALIRE (RF)BRAR BEFRERIALIR
Hsin Chong - Hsin Chong Aster Joint Venture Hong Kong - 100% - Building construction and
ME-MEnfEEe Bk mechanical, electrical and
building services
BTRERKEIRR
ETHHE
Hsin Chong Aster Building Services Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$5,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
MECTEETREERAR BE 78 #5,000,0007C buiding services
KEIRREFRE
Hsin Chong Construction (Asia) Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and
MELER (BM) R e HK$70,002,000 civil engineering
Nonoting BEFEERTATIRE
deferred:
HK$10,000,000
BB
78 170,002,0007C
ERFE
R
751%10,000,0007C
Hsin Chong Construction (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands 100% - HK$150,000  Investment holding
ERRAES BH1500000  REER
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46 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

46 ETEMBLTF (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
F B/ EEhE FEEMGREREREAL BRTRBERSF TERE
FLF HELR
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited Hong Kong - 100% Ordinary:  Building construction and
MEBERERRT BE HK$20,002,000 civil engineering
Nonvoting  EFRERTATR
deferred:
HK$20,000,000
el g
75#20,002,00070
ERRE
BT -
720,000,000
Hsin Chong Construction Company Limited* The People’s Republic of - 100% RMB63,414,650  Building construction and
(Notes 182) China AR¥ cvil engineering
fEEEREBRAR (FH1k2) hEARLME 63414650 BFRERIALE
Hsin Chong Construction (Macau) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2  Construction management
MEEE (RF)ERAA 0 BT services
BEERRYG
Hsin Chong Construction Management Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1  Construction management
MEEEEREBRAT Bk BB services
BEERRY
Hsin Chong Construction Management Services Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000,000  Construction management
Limited ) 7 #1,000,0007T services
MEEEEERBERLA BEEERSE
Hsin Chong E & M Engineering (Asia) Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$2,000,000  Mechanical, electrical and
MERETR (TM)AERAF B 7%2,000,0007T building services
BIRRETRE
Hsin Chong Engineering (Macau) Limited Macau - 100% MOP25,000  Construction management
MEIR(RM)BRAF 2 JBFIHE25,0007C services
BEERRS
Hsin Chong (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore - 100% $$300,000  Construction and provision of
Hnsg gk construction related services
3000007 RE MR ERE AR RS
Liaoning Huisheng Property Investment Limited The People’s Republic of - 100% US$50,000,000  Real estate development
(Note 2) China F4£50000000 EHEEE
REEREEERAA (M2) hEARARE
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46 FEMBLT )

46 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
0F B/ EEhE FREMBREREREAL BRTRAERE TERE
47 LA
Liaoning Tongji Property Investment Limited The People’s Republic of - 100% US$35,499,984  Real estate development
(Note 2) China F935499984T  FHEER
FAEEXERAA (M) REARARE
Hsin Chong Property Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$227,355,000  Investment holding
HENERRARA RERLES 260735007 BALR
Prolific Wealth Limited (struck off on 1 Nov 2012)  British Virgin Islands - 100% US$3  Property development and
Prolific Wealth Limited (74 =% — =% RERAES 931 investment
T-A-B%kKRE) MEBRERE
Hsin Chong Property Development Limited Hong Kong - 100% US$2,502,191  Provision of investment
MEHERRBRAA B F£2,502,1917C and asset management
consultancy services
REBZEREEETEERRE
Rosy China Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$1 Investment holding
RERAES Fe1r REZR
Rife Yard Limited Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000  Real estate development
5 B0 FEHELR
Smart Lane Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 100% - US$1  Investment holding
ERRUES et REER
Sorano Investments Limited British Virgin Islands - 100% US$T  Investment holding
HRRAES Fe1r REZR
Everich Construction (Macau) Limited Macau - 58.3% MOP25,000  Provision of renovation and
BEREE(RM) BRAA 2 BFIHE25,0007C fitting-out works
RUBFRENRBEIR
Hsin Chong Construction (Engineering) Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$22,000,000  Demolition work and addition
MEEEM (TR)BRA B 78#22,0000000  and alteration
FRIREMZREETR
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$5,000,000  Fitting-out, renovation and
MEENKS (BE)ERAT BE JB#5,000,0007C addition and alteration
A& BIEMER
HEIR
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$2  Provision of laundry services
ARERBERAF 9 BT REOEKERH
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$200,000  Provision of cleaning services
RERBERAR ) 2000000 REVERERH
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46 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

46 FEMBLT (&)

Place of
incorporation/ The Group's effective
registration/ percentage of interest held by Issued and
Company operation Company Subsidiaries paid up capital Principal activities
OF B/ EEhE FEEMGREREREAL BRTRBERS TERE
F0F HELR
Optimum Engineering Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$2  Provision of repair and
FETRBRAT Bk BT maintenance services
REEERRERE
S-Club Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$1  Sales of products, provision of
Bk BB copying services and property
holding
HEER RIVEERKR
BRNE
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$2  Provision of security and
MERZRBEBRER 0 BT consultancy services
RtRT RER RS
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$2  Provision of property services
HLRBBR AT BE B¥aT  RUWERH
Synergis Holdings Limited Bermuda/Hong Kong - 58.3% Ordinary shares:  Investment holding
MEEREMERAR BRE/BE HK$33,200000 HEHER
Convertible
preference shares:
HK$58,666,667
il
7%33,200,00070
TEBERR:
75158,666,6677T
Synergis Management Services Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$206,837  Provision of property
MEERREERAT Bk 75 15206,8377L management services and
investment holding
RENFERRBRIRERR
Synergis Facility Management Limited Hong Kong - 58.3% HK$2  Provision of facility
MERBERBRAR 55 BT management services
REtRBERRE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

1 Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
2 Wholly foreign owned enterprise

3 Equity joint venture

* for identification purposes only 1£ {44 5/
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hFEMBRR

Nine months
ended
31 December
Year ended 31 December +-A=1+—8H
HE+-_A=1—-HILEE LENER
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT BB BETT BETT BETT
Operating Results HEXR
Revenue Wz
- Group ] 7,249,312 5,884,204 3,847,823 2,900,304 1,836,740
— Share of jointly controlled entities — AR B 1,560,800 496,924 409,790 582,160 212,331
8,810,112 6,381,128 4,257,613 3,482,464 2,049,071
Profit before taxation BRAEATEF 201,224 212,086 180,548 135,556 19,998
Taxation I (21,134) (22,458) (23,145) (16,502) (14,180)
Profit after taxation BRBL IR RF 180,090 189,628 157,403 119,054 5,818
Non-controlling interests RS (82) (17,209) (21,057) (9,947) 924
Profit attrioutable to equity holders of AREERBAA
the Company MR 180,008 172,419 136,346 109,107 6,742
Assets and Liabilities BEREAR
Total assets BEE 6,758,431 6,005,307 2,522,595 1,912,544 1,766,226
Total liabilities BERE (4,604,833) (4,053,112) (1,708,179) (1,298,118) (1,234,085)
2,153,598 1,952,195 814,416 614,426 532,141

2012 8 FEZL
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Major Projects

+TETREEREB

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS

BREThCEETR
Group's Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
IBAE FREMEES RIAH FRIETI AR ER/REEE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
BFEE
The Intergrated Contract for construction of Public Rental 40% November 2009 November 2013 Hong Kong Housing Authority
Housing Development at Kai Tak Site 1B ZZENF+—A ZET—=F1—A8 EREELZESG
BB AHERRRBERA 2GREIAR
Contract 3 works for the Redevelopment of Hong Kong 100% November 2010 May 2013 Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited
Sports Institute at 25 Yuen Wo Road, Shatin* —T-TF+—A —ET-=FFHA BRBEERARAR
PERRE-ThRERRE SRR ERTE
EZHEHTIRE
Proposed Residential Development at Tsing Lung Road, 100% December 2010 September 2013 Evermatch (Hong Kong) Limited
Area 58, Siu Lam, Tuen Mun ZT-ZTF+=A —T—=FNA KE (BB)BRAR
BFMEER+ \EFERHBEITEFTRRIER
Construction of Development at Ex-Shatin Married Quarters 100% August 2010 March 2013 Hong Kong Housing Authority
FYHCEABEEREERTE —ZT-ZF)\A —ZT—=F=A8 BEEEZE®
Construction of Shatin Area 4C 100% July 2010 April 2013 Hong Kong Housing Authority
DHEB4CRMBETR “Z-TFLR “T-=5MmA BEFEEZE®
Proposed Residential Development at No. 1 Sai Wan Terrace, 100% August 2011 January 2014 Keen Well Holdings Limited
SIL 761, Hong Kong —E——FN\A —E-mFE-A BRaEEERAR
EEGELENRTOI AL REETERIAR
Building Construction Contract for Huawei Hang Zhou 100% February 2011 May 2013 Huawei Investment & Holding Co., Ltd.
Production Plant (Phase Il) —T——%ZA “ZT-=%FFHH EARNEERER AT
ESMMEERE (E_H)HEFRETR
Project Symmetry — New Data Center at Shatin — Main 100% December 2011 November 2013 The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Contract for the Substructure and Superstructure Works ZE——%+=ZA ZT—=F+—A8 Corporation Limited

BFIEERE

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Major Projects

FTBETEREB

BRETHhZEEIR ()
Group's Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
IR FEERERE FAIBH R THA EF /B#EE
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION (continued)
BFERE ()
Proposed Research and Academic Building for 100% February 2012 May 2014 The Hong Kong University of
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology —E-——-%-A —T-MFERA Science and Technology
EBREABHT ERS AR EBRHEAR
Main Contract Works for Wonder 8 Data Centre 60% October 2011 February 2013~ NTT WT Hong Kong Limited
at Tsueng Kwan O Industrial Estate “T—%+8 ZT—=FZA~
BERT EBWNTEET O 2 @R T2
Galaxy Resort & Casino Phase 2 in Cotai City, Macau 100% July 2012 March 2015  Galaxy Cotai Project Management Limited
FOMRLE R RIRGES 5 — BT A2 - RPIRE kil —T-—%F+A —T—-h%¥=A TR TIRERAR AR
CDSJ and USJ Green Campus in llha Verde 100% April 2013 March 2015 Fundacao Catdlica de Ensino Superior
EEBAENPEFERETRE —T—=%4A —T-h%=A Universitario
REIRGREESEHFED
Construction of Public Rental Housing Development 100% December 2012 November 2015 Hong Kong Housing Authority
at Anderson Road Site D ZEZF+ZA ZZ-hFETA ERFEEZESE
REFEMBD AR R EEETE
Construction of Public Rental Housing Development 100% December 2012 January 2015 Hong Kong Housing Authority
at Hung Shui Kiu Area 13 Phases | and 2 —E——fF+—f —Z—RF—A AAFEEZEY
HKRHEI3RET M2 MRAERRASIZETE
Proposed Residential Development at New Kowloon Inland 100% September 2012 May 2014 Panayork Limited
Lot No. 6423, No. 3 & 5 Ede Road, Kowloon Tong* ZE—ZFNA “Z-MERA
NEEREE-RAREEAEERER
URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/Centre 100% October 2012 August 2014 Maxjet Company Limited
Street at Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong* —T——%+A —ZT-mFENA FREBRAA]
BRRERE=N/HRYER EH-TRERRER
SYP/1/001*
Global Network Centre Development at 100% October 2012 January 2014 China Mobile International Limited
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate —Z—=—F+A —Z—-ME—A HEBEERERA A
HERTEPHRBBHRIRBEDORE
2012 F | MELEEEAFRAA
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Major Projects

TETRERE

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETHhZEEIR ()
Group's Commencement Anticipated

Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer

IERE FEERGES FAIBH AT HE EF B#EX

CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS

TARIE

Express Rail Link Contract No. 826 — Huanggang to 30% March 2010 May 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
Mai Po Tunnels —ZT-TFZ=f —RFRA BEGRERAA
BAERREREESORERS26 — 2MEKHREER

Express Rail Link Contract No. 802 — Nam Cheong Property 100% February 2010 September 2014 MTR Corporation Limited
Foundation Removal/Reprovisioning —Z-ZF A —MENA BEREREARAR

BRERRERZES NFERS02 —HENMEMELR
=EHEA

Provision of Interception Facilities of 100% December 2010 May 2014 Drainage Services Department
Jordan Valley Box Culvert, Kowloon City ZT-ZTF+=A —MFERA EBE

NEMEH AR RKETRERLIE

Construction of MTR Express Rail Link Contract 8108, 22.5% January 2011 May 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
West Kowloon Terminus Station South —Z——%—A —hFRA BREEARAF

BEERERRERS 8108 LB A (M) BETR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, 100% April 2011 January 2015 Water Supplies Department
Stage 4 Phase 1 — Mains in Tuen Mun, Yuen Long, %A T—-HE—A KEE
North District and Tai Po

FRRIEEKE TR R 180T T
bR R A SHERKE T2

South Island Line (East) Contract No. 908 100% March 2012 August 2015 MTR Corporation Limited
—Wong Chuk Hang Depot Superstructure —T—-F=A Z—H%F\A BEREEEARAR
BEEA (RER)BEE R E08H — B ML =M

Site Formation and Foundation Works for Proposed 100% April 2012 October 2013 JV of Kerry Properties Ltd./Sino Land Co.,
Residential Development at STTK 525, Kau To Shan, —T-—FMA —E-=%+A Ltd./Manhattan Holdlng Lirited
Shatin, New Territories RERRERRAAZA %’JE%/

1R BN U ER5255 1% ENEXERA Rel/
ERERAEBRTEIETRE BRERERATF

Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang San Wai, 60% June 2012 December 2017 Drainage Services Department
Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai Hang 22X ZE—+tF+=A RHE

NENFE WENEERFTSKBERLR
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Major Projects

FTBETEREB

Group's Commencement Anticipated
Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer
IR FEERERE FAIBH RS THA EF /B#EE
CIVIL ENGINEERING WORKS (continued)
TRIE ()
Shatin to Central Link, Sung Wong Toi and To Kwa Wan 40% August 2012 April 2018 MTR Corporation Limited
Stations and Tunnels, Contract 1109 —Z—ZFN\A —E-\FIA BEEEERATF
DEERRE NERRELER
BB TI2ANRIT11095%
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage - Village Sewerage, 57% October 2012 July 2015 Drainage Services Department
Stage 2, Phase 1 o “T-ZF+H ZE-IFtAR EHE
Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁm?m FREREHERITK
RL
Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage — Village Sewerage, Stage 2, 57% October 2012 March 2016 Drainage Services Department
Phase 2 —E——%F+A —E-RF=A EBE
MR AFKBE R - F RS
BRFKYE RS
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
ERREREHERE
Main Contract for Proposed Addition and Alteration Works 100% October 2012 June 2014 Harbour City Estates lelted
at Ocean Gallery and Ocean Centre in Harbour City, F+A “E-lEFERA BEBEBEXARA
Tsim Sha Tsui
RPBGEREFRB RS FPOERMERRETRE
Proposed Residential Development at New Kowloon Inland 100% September 2012 May 2014 Panayork Limited
Lot No. 6423, No. 3 & 5 Ede Road, Kowloon Tong* ZE—ZFNA E— 46 h A
EREEE-RAN FEATERIERY
URA Project SYP/1/001 at Third Street/Yu Lok Lane/Centre 100% October 2012 August 2014 Maxjet Company Limited
Street at Sai Ying Pun Hong Kong® —ET——F+A —ZE-mMFENA ZREBAA
AR ERE=W/MER/EE- m[@i%ﬁa SYP/1/001*
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICE
BEREEE
Venetian Cotai Parcels 5/6 100% October 2005 December 2013 Venetian Orient Limited
AR PN 03208 AN —ZZRF+A ZE—=F+=A RARMERABRAE
Venetian Cotai Parcel 3 100% August 2012 December 2015 Venetian Cotai Limited
B HT A B 2k 58 = —Z—ZF)\A —hFE+=HA B HT AR B IR A B

2012 8 EZEEBEERAA
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Major Projects

TETRERE

MAJOR PROJECTS IN-PROGRESS (continued)

BRETHRZEEIR ()
Group's Commencement Anticipated

Description Interest Date  Completion Date Client/Ultimate Employer

IERE FRERGES FAIBH AT HE EF /B#EE

ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL

BEIR

Development of Hong Kong Science Park Phase 3 100% June 2012 November 2013 Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks
Main Contract Works for Phase 3a and 3b “T-—FRXA ZZE—=F+—A Corporation
— MVAC and Electrical Installation Domestic Sub-Contract ERERERAR

AEANKEEREIRE - MRa3bERRBE REALE

Central Police Station Conversion and Revitalisation Project 100% December 2012 July 2014 The Jockey Club CPS Limited
Works Contract for Plumbing and Drainage (Package —T——%+=H —ZT-E+LA BESENMRBEERAR
601), MVAC (603) and FS (604) Installation

FIREERERRE KB E 45K (549601) -
i, 22 58(603) K B P £ #1(604) % 5

Proposed Property Development at TW7, 100% September 2011 January 2014 Queensway Investment Limited
Tusen Wan Station Tsuen Wan Town Lot 403, N.T. —ZE——FNA —E-MFE—A BEREABRAR

— Direct Contract of Plumbing and Drainage Installation
MRAZEZRMRAFEZER Y FEVEER (HE)

— KRR
* Part of the contract has been sub-contracted to group companies
BHEHNESHTEEARNRE
# Subcontract being awarded by group companies

SEARAETZAHAEH
~ Awaiting PC certificate
FETIH

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Major Properties

TE2Y=

Percentage of

Description Uses gross area Status Lease term Group’s interest
FEEFR{E
MR i E:S o SE Yk R F1 ERESH
Properties Held for Investment/Own Use/Sale as at 31 December 2012
R-E——-#+-A=+—HZKBE HA HEHE
No. 3 Lockhart Road, Office 77,000 @ Rental Short 100%
Wan Chai, Hong Kong k] GiEh= 2 H
BB S5 B35
Hsin Chong Center Office 107,000 @ Head Office Medium 100%
107-109 Wai Yip Street, 1 A HE H Hj
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
MEHL
BB NEEIEREEA07E1095%
Carparks in Lung Mun Oasis Carpark 116 carparks For Sale Medium 100%
43 Lung Mun Road, E=tiva S EEX v & HHEA
Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEPIE B
BT S PIBEPT BR435%
Loading Bay L101 on 1st Floor, Carpark 1 carpark Rental Medium 58.3%
Fortune Commercial Building, B 1B B Az HE HEA
No. 362 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
60/27,700th shares of and in the
Remaining Portion of Tsuen Wan
Town Lot No. 355
BT R E D8 E3625
PEHEREVERHRELO
2B B 3555 FRER
£27,70015 2 6015
Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, Carpark 8 carparks Rental Medium 58.3%
P253, P254, P255, P256 and P257, EX 2 8{E =iz HE T A

Sun Hing Garden, No. 2 On Po Lane,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong
24/64,299th shares of and
in Tai Po Town Lot No. 26

BB AR L R258 3 B E
P250 ~ P251 ~ P252 ~ P253 ~ P254 ~
P255 + P256 [ P25755% B i
R b ER 2657 5564,29917 2 2415

2012 8 EZEEBEERAA
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Major Properties

ES3/E S
Approximate Percentage of
Description Uses gross area Status Lease term Group’s interest
FEMFR{E
MRS A& @HRamR R F1 RERESHE
Properties under Development as at 31 December 2012
RIE——F+-A=+—HZRBREPHE
17 parcels of nearby land, Residential/ 1,804,000 @ Construction Medium and 100%
south of Ganjiang Road, Commercial and Design long
west of National Highway 102, =/ in Progress R ER K A
Dafanhe Village and Xintun Village, EiE R
Fanhe Town, Tieling County, RETHEITH

Liaoning Province,
People’s Republic of China
IR B i 4R R LW R
AR IR B #4102 38
VAP ST B8 LA RS A1 708 3t

m Gross floor area of square feet 2 EE & (FHR)
@ Gross site area of square metres 483 B2 I F& (S J5K)

HSIN CHONG CONSTRUCTION GROUP LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Directors

BEE

Audit Committee

FZERE

Remuneration Committee

FHEAS

Nomination Committee

REERE

Executive Committee

BiTRAEE®

Company Secretary
LFE

Auditor
173 11

Financial Calendar

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

THRE (FEHETHAEH)

Catherine CHU

KR

Barry John BUTTIFANT

A

Joseph CHOI Kin-hung

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin*

KR

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung?

NS

Abraham SHEK Lai-him?*

atg

Alexander MAK Kwai-wing’

E==RYYS
BER

# Independent Non-Executive Director
* BUHHITEF
#  Non-Executive Director

" FHITEFE

Alexander MAK Kwai-wing (Chairman)
BEEK(EE)

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

PN eSS

Kenneth CHU Ting-kin

FN Y

Abraham SHEK Lai-him (Chairman)
AiSE (£/7)

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung

N iExz

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai

FxE

Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung (Chairman)
wEEsE (FE)

Abraham SHEK Lai-him

VaFEE

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai

FHE

Wilfred WONG Ying-wai
FHE

Catherine CHU

Re&

Barry John BUTTIFANT
S

Joseph CHOI Kin-hung

=

TSANG Oi-yin

PricewaterhouseCoopers

R AGEG RN E TS

Announcement of interim results

Payment date for interim dividend
Announcement of final results

Annual General Meeting for 2013
Ex-dividend date for proposed final dividend
Payment date for proposed final dividend

24 August 2012
5 October 2012
22 March 2013
17 June 2013
18 June 2013

4 July 2013

Principal Bankers

FEERBIT

Reference Banks and
Financial Institutions

ERBITR B ERE

Registered Office
ERRER

Principal Place of Business

FEMER

Principal Share
Registrar and
Transfer Agent

FERMHBRELE

Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar
and Transfer Office

FERMHBFRELIE

Stock Code
B in X 5%

Board Lot
HEEM

Share Price

Website
#Huk

Email Address
EHLE

MBAR

NG IES
AR B H AR

D EFEE
—E-ZFRREAFAE
BURRES 2B %
HR R AR SR H AR

Corporate Information

NYEN

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited
BALBELRITER AR
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
ROIWITAERRAF]

Chong Hing Bank Limited
BIERITHBR AR

Hang Seng Bank Limited
BARITAERAA

East West Bank

EXRT

China CITIC Bank International Limited
FERITEEER AR

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM11
Bermuda

Hsin Chong Center

107-109 Wai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2579 8238

BN EEEE

(& 2151071098

FE$ L

E 5 1 (852) 2579 8238

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

EBEPRESSLARIDA

EEETERRERI83NR

SRR T7181712-17165% 4

00404

2,000 shares
2,000 f%

Year High HK$1.26
2FHm BE1.267T
Year Low HK$0.75
2HEHIK BH0.757T

http:/Amww.hsinchong.com

info@hcg.com.hk

—T-—F)\A=+m1mAH
—E-—%+AAA
—ET—=F=ZA=+=H
—E—=FXA+<tH
—ZET—=FxXA+NH
—E—=F+tAWmA
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